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Financial and Operational Highlights
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Financial and Operational Highlights

O
Currency unit: Renminbi in millions BEREN - AEARK
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZB-tf  TRF T RE  E-nf  ZE-mE ZF-=F%
(restated) (unrestated) (Unrestated) (unrestated) (unrestated)
(E31) (RE51) (R&E31) (RE51) (RE31)
For the year ended note 10 note 11 note 12 note 12 note 12
31 December BET-A=t-HLEE M0 Pz Mz 12 Mz 12 fizE12
Revenue and profit I N:hayil
Revenue WA 88,706 70,400 69,616 33,558 37,659 34,138
Profit before income tax expense TSR ERATHF 11,480 6,291 6,067 3,971 9,372 11,282
Profit for the year EREF 7,949 3,091 2,923 1870 6,957 8,260
Profit for the year attrioutable to ARRREEANEGET
owners of the Company 4,760 666 581 110 4,397 5,385
Core profit before income tax expense B FERH B BATIZ L &H 12,268 10,204 9,980 5,360 9,372 11,282
Core profit attributable to owners RABREE G OET
of the Company 5,522 3,857 3,772 1,498 4,397 5,385
Adjusted earnings before interest, REARTIE BB TER
taxes, depreciation and BHRIRF|(EBTDA)
amortisation (EBITDA) 18,853 16,245 15,659 9,900 13,809 15,151
Assets and liabilities EEHEE
Non-current assets FnBEE 107,663 99,711 94,731 75,160 77,672 74,952
Current assets MEEE 32,895 29,223 28,670 16,477 15,531 17,739
Non-current liabilties ¥nBEE 35,482 22,099 22,099 14,691 14,960 15,567
Current liabilties ok j=td 39,451 44,940 42,302 16,972 19,401 21,051
Net assets BEFE 65,625 61,895 58,900 58,974 58,842 56,073
Capital and reserve RAEFE
Share capital e 65 65 65 65 65 65
Reserve 1 14,680 15,951 14,588 19,591 19,828 20,014
Equity attrioutable to owners KRAREEmER
of the Company 40,025 37,852 36,324 41,195 41,877 39,110
Non-controlling interests izl 2o 25,600 24,043 22576 17,779 16,965 16,963
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Financial and Operational Highlights
B REFRE

O

2017 2016
—E—+tF TR
(restated)
(&%)
For the year ended note 10
31 December BE+-A=1+—HILEE F5E10
Increase/
(Decrease)
Financial indicators B E g, (L)
Net profit margin EREE O 8.96% 4.39% 4.57
Return on total assets (ROA) @ BB ERHE (ROA) @ 5.90% 2.43% 3.47
Return on capital FEARE R E (ROCE) @ 12.28% 7.91% 4.37
employed (ROCE) ©
Liabilities-to-EBITDA ratio @ BEYEBITDABZH @ 3.97 413 (0.16)
Debts-to-net assets ratio © FEERBERO 68.09% 58.42% 9.67
Gearing ratio © BEREBEXO 40.51% 36.88% 3.63
Debts-to-assets ratio @ BEAEXO 31.79% 28.05% 3.74
Average finance cost © FHBERA © 3.65% 3.82% 0.17)
Earnings per share (Basic) EREARBF(ARESD) 58.97 8.25
(RMB cent)
Dividend per share BRRE
- (RMB cent) © — (AREEH)© 21.0 6.5
Dividend payout ratio K B LB 35.61% 78.79%

Notes:

(1)
@)
©)

an

(12)

Net profit margin is profit for the year divided by revenue.

Return on total assets is profit for the year divided by average total assets.
Return on capital employed is the ratio of profit before income tax expense
and interest divided by total assets less current liabilities.
Liabilities-to-EBITDA ratio is the ratio of total liabilities divided by adjusted
EBITDA.

Debts-to-net assets ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest bearing
borrowings, convertible bonds and obligations under finance leases
divided by total equity.

Gearing ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest bearing borrowings,
convertible bonds and obligations under finance leases divided by the
total equity, interest bearing borrowings, convertible bonds and obligations
under finance leases.

Debts-to-assets ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest bearing borrowings,
convertible bonds and obligations under finance leases divided by total
assets.

Average finance cost is the ratio of aggregated amount of each borrowing
multiply by its interest rate divided by the total borrowing.

The dividends payable shall be paid in HK$. The applicable exchange rate
shall be the average exchange rate for RMB to HK$ as announced by
the Hong Kong Association of Banks for the 7 working days prior to the
declaration of final dividend, which is RMB1 to HK$1.2284. Accordingly,
proposed final dividend attributable to owners of the Company is HK25.8
cents per share and HK$2,083 million in total.

Due to business combinations under common control completed in 2017,
the financial information of the Group has been restated to include the
financial position and results of operation of PetroChina Jingtang Co., Ltd.
(“dingtang Co.”) on a combined basis.

The financial information of the Group has not been restated for the
acquisition of Jingtang Co. as the directors consider that the unrestated
financial information is more appropriate for year-on-year comparison of
the change in the Group's business operation.

The financial information of the Group has not been restated for the
acquisition of Jingtang Co. and PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd (“Kunlun
Gas”) as the directors consider that the unrestated financial information
is more appropriate for year-on-year comparison of the change in the
Group's business operation.
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Financial and Operational Highlights
M REFRE

O
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E-tf -"I-xF C—EZ-XF C—ZF-nfF C-T-QmF C-3-=F%
(restated) (unrestated) (Unrestated) (Unrestated) (unrestated)
(E75) (RE51) (RE5I) (RE30) (RE5)
note 1 note 2 note 3 note 3 note 3
For the year ended 31 December HZE+=-A=t+-ALEE Mz M2 Mizs fizEs R
Sales volume of products Em#EE
Sales volume of crude oil BEhmEES
(10,000 barrels) (B#) 1,306 1522 1,522 1675 1,688 1,746
City gas Vi) 118 92 9 21 24 2
CNG CNG 26 25 25 13 15 14
NG NG 38 29 29 23 20 15
Others Hit 6 6 6 8 9 11
Sales volume of natural gas ARREER
(100 million cubic metres) (BuA#) 188 152 152 65 68 62
Sales volume of crude oil Sales volume of natural gas
FhtiEE XARHER
Unit: 10,000 barrels Unit: 100 million cubic metres
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Financial and Operational Highlights
B REFRE

O
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014 2013
B2t ZTNF ZERXf ZEF-nf ZE-RF %=
(restated) ~ (unrestated)  (unrestated)  (unrestated)  (unrestated)
(E51) (RE7) (RE7) (RE5) (RE5)
note 1 note 2 note 3 note 3 note 3
For the year ended 31 December EHZE+-F=+-HILEE iR RS GE] fizE3 R
Sales volume of LPG LPGHEE
(10,000 tonnes) (E) 658 638 638 13 13 12
LNG gasffication volume INGRIrE 128 66 49 35 48 65
LNG entrucking volume INGEEE 21 8 5 3 3
LNG processing volume INGIITE 11 5 7 9 9
LNG processing and terminal INGNIEREER
(100 million cubic metres) (BaAK) 160 80 62 47 60 77
Natural gas pipeline transmission XAREH
(100 million cubic metres) (BuFX) 47 357 357 340 307 253
Stations in operation CEZUY
CNG stations CNG Uk 543 540 540 342 338 258
LNG stations NG 4 603 680 680 849 960 554
LNG plants INGIE 14 12 12 12 12 12
LNG terminals LNG# Yk 3 3 2 2 2 2
Notes: IE
1) Due to business combinations under common control completed in 2017, (1) AR Tt F TR HRES THEBLE M AEEH
the operating information of the Group has been restated to include the BEEREEY  BERIEREARMNESEIR -
operation data of Jingtang Co..
@) The operating information of the Group has not been restated for the  (2) AEBMNBELEHTABKERERATMEY - REZ

acquisition of Jingtang Co. as the directors consider that the unrestated
operating information is more appropriate for year-on-year comparison of
the change in the Group’s business operation.

©)) The operating information of the Group has not been restated for the
acquisition of Jingtang Co. and Kunlun Gas as the directors consider that
the unrestated operating information is more appropriate for year-on-year
comparison of the change in the Group’s business operation.
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LPGHHESE

Unit: 10,000 tonnes
By - B

800

700
638 658

600
500
400
300
200

100

12 13 13
ol—am - -

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Natural gas pipeline transmission
XRRER

Unit: 100 million cubic metres
B BALTK

500

417
400
357
340
307
300
253
200
100
0

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

° o

Financial and Operational Highlights

MBREGRE
O

LNG processing and terminal
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Locations of Natural Gas Business
RARERE D HE

O

Natural Gas
B AR R AR I

Liguefied Natural Gas Stations and Plants
TRAL KR Rk R T &

Liguefied Natural Gas Terminals.
TRAL K AR $2 Uk

CNG station and
LNG station in LNG Terminal in
operation LNG Plant in operation
Province EEZ CNGI K operation 2EZLNG
H#1 LNG ¥4 B EZ LNG TR Bk
. Xinjiang #7548
. Hebei /A1t
. Shandong IR
. Henan 47
. Shanxi /78
. Sichuan 2211
. Inner Mongolia A5
. Jiangsu /L&
. Liaoning &%
. Shaanxi PeEa
. Tianjin X%
. Hubei i1t
. Ningxia £ &
. Guangdong &R
. Hainan &7
. Guizhou &M
. Yunnan EF
. Chongging 2E
. Zhejiang #1T
. Gansu H &R
. Qinghai 5 /&
. Beijing 3£
Jilin &K
. Shanghai £/&
. Anhui 2
. Hunan #F8
. Guangxi &7
. Heilongjiang = #e/T
. Jiangxi T 78
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Locations of Natural Gas Business
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‘ Locations of Crude Oil Exploration and Production Business
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Locations of Crude Oil Exploration and Production Business (.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”) hereby reports the annual result for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”) of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).

In 2017, China’s macroeconomic growth picked up, and
ecological civilization construction speeded up. Natural gas
consumption recorded fast growth, with annual natural gas
consumption of 237.3 billion cubic metres, representing an
increase of 15.3%. During the Year, the Group made full use of
its advantages in assets and business structure, captured market
opportunities and effectively balanced market risks. The city gas
sales volume recorded rapid growth, and Natural Gas Pipeline
transmission volume maintained steady growth. The integrated
operation of LNG produced initial results, and its assets structure
and business structure continued to be optimised. The Company
received the Best Investment Value Award for Listed Companies
of China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards. The Company
showed a good momentum of rapid and steady growth in general.

During the Year, the Group’s revenue was RMB88,706 million;
profit before income tax expense was RMB11,480 million; and
profit attributable to the owners of the Company was RMB4,760
million, representing increases of 26.00%, 82.48% and 614.71%,
respectively, as compared with last year (restated). Basic earnings
per share for the Year were RMB58.97 cents. Excluding the
impairment loss on the property, plant and equipment of LNG
plants and natural gas sales assets of RMB604 million and the
impairment loss on accounts and other receivables of RMB184
million, core profit before income tax for the Year was RMB12,268
million, representing an increase of 20.23% as compared with
last year (restated). Core profit and basic core earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company were RMB5,522 million
and RMB68.41 cents, respectively, representing increases of
43.17% and 43.18%, respectively, as compared with last year
(restated).

The Group agreed to purchase 51% equity interest in PetroChina
Jingtang LNG Co., Ltd. (“Jingtang Co.”) held by PetroChina
Company Limited (“PetroChina”) in September 2017, and
completed the acquisition of Jingtang Co. in December 2017.
Through the acquisition, 3 LNG terminals of PetroChina were all
included in the scope of operation and management of the Group,
and the Group’s intensive operation was further improved.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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In November 2017, No. 4 Shaanxi-Beijing Pipeline commenced
operation, which will effectively alleviate the shortage of gas
supply in Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei in the winter, facilitate the
energy structure optimisation in Beijing and Northern China and
promote the air pollution treatment in such regions.

In December 2017, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Fortunemate
Assets Limited held by the Company, which conducts the
exploration and production of crude oil in Kursangi and Karabagli
oilfields in Azerbaijan. The Company’s strategic positioning of
being committed to developing comprehensive natural gas
utilisation business has become even clearer.

EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION

During the Year, the sales volume of crude oil in the Exploration
and Production business reached 13.06 million barrels,
representing a decrease of 2.16 million barrels or 14.19% as
compared with 15.22 million barrels for last year. Revenue was
RMB1,505 million, representing an increase of RMB14 million or
0.94% as compared with RMB1,491 million for last year. Without
the effect of the Company’s exit from Xinjiang Oil Production
Sharing Contract in August 2016, sales volume of crude oil only
decreased by 0.39 million barrels as compared with last year.
Average realised crude oil selling price of the Group during the
Year was US$46.63/barrel, representing an increase of US$11.97
or 34.54% as compared with US$34.66 for last year. Profit
before income tax expense for the Year was RMB820 million,
representing an increase of RMB808 million or 6,733.33% as
compared with RMB12 million (restated) for last year.

NATURAL GAS SALES

During the Year, Natural Gas Sales volume was 18,772 million
cubic metres, representing an increase of 3,583 million cubic
metres or 23.59% as compared with 15,189 million cubic
metres (restated) for last year. Revenue was RMB72,109 million,
representing an increase of RMB17,528 million or 32.11% as
compared with RMB54,581 million (restated) for last year. With
the increase in sales volume, raw material procurement and
production costs, sales and administrative expenses and labour
costs increased, which, together with the impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment and the impairment loss on
accounts and other receivables, resulted in profit before income
tax of RMB2,110 million, representing a decrease of RMB448
million or 17.51% as compared with RMB2,558 million (restated)
for last year. Excluding the impairment loss on property, plant
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Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

and equipment of natural gas sales assets of RMB275 million
and the accounts and other receivables of RMB184 million, core
profit before income tax of the business segment was RMB2,569
million, representing a decrease of 0.43% as compared with
RMB2,580 million (restated) for last year.

During the Year, the Group vigorously promoted projects for city
gas and city coal-to-gas conversion, replacement of coal by
industrial gas, and oil replacement by gas. The Group developed
110 various utilisation projects and obtained 429,000 new rural
coal-to-gas users. City gas sales volume was 11,825 million cubic
metres, representing a year-on-year increase of 28.18%. The
monthly average Natural Gas Sales volume in Hebei and Jiangsu
each exceeded 2,000 million cubic metres, and Natural Gas Sales
volume of Shandong, Xinjiang, Gansu each exceeded 1,000
million cubic metres.

For CNG and LNG sales terminals, the Group went all out to
reduce costs and increase sales volume. The Group continued to
explore potential and improve performance, which has curbed the
trend of decline in CNG sales volume. LNG sales volume recorded
a significant increase in sales volume as compared with last year.

The development results of natural gas generator and distributed
energy projects were fruitful. During the Year, the Group entered
into 25 cooperation agreements. The construction of Zengcheng
Power Plant commenced, and the construction of Zhoukou
Power Plant recorded smooth progress. Operating power
plants generated electricity of 6.06 billion kWh during the Year.
Heat supply grew by 18% as compared with last year, and gas
consumption increased by 4%.

LPG sales focused on key links including increasing resources,
strengthening terminals, optimising flows and lowering costs,
and recorded sales volume of 6.58 million tonnes for the Year,
representing the best operational results achieved in recent years.

LNG PROCESSING AND TERMINAL

During the Year, the Group recorded sales volume of LNG
Processing and Terminal of 15,995 million cubic metres,
representing an increase of 8,067 million cubic metres or 101.75%
as compared with 7,928 million cubic metres (restated) for last
year. Revenue was RMB6,869 million, representing an increase
of RMB3,606 million or 110.51% as compared with RMB3,263
million (restated) for last year. Profit before income tax expense
of the business segment for the Year was RMB1,946 million,
representing an increase of 155.78% which turned loss into profit
as compared with loss of RMB3,489 million (restated) for last year.
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Excluding the impairment loss on the property, plant and
equipment of LNG plants RMB329 million, core profit before
income tax expense of the business segment was RMB2,275
million, representing an increase of 540.85% as compared with
RMB355 million (restated) for last year.

1. LNG Terminal

During the Year, LNG gasification volume of Jiangsu LNG
Terminal, Dalian LNG Terminal and Jingtang LNG Terminal
under the Group amounted to 12,802 million cubic metres,
representing an increase of 6,235 million cubic metres
or 94.94% as compared with 6,567 million cubic metres
(restated) for last year. LNG unloading volume amounted
to 2,100 million cubic metres, representing an increase of
1,237 million cubic metres or 143.34% as compared with
863 million cubic metres for last year.

During the Year, LNG terminals are benefited from
the demand growth in domicile natural gas and the
enhancement of operating capacity, and Jingtang Terminal
started to be available to third parties. Dalian Terminal
adopted a staged operation model and its unit energy
consumption decreased by 50.8%. Jiangsu Terminal
finished the wharf loading project upgrading, with a LNG
vessel loading and transfer capacity of 40,000 tonnes.

2. LNG Processing

During the Year, the Group’s LNG sales volume was 1,093
million cubic metres, representing an increase of 595
million cubic metres or 119.48% as compared with 498
million cubic metres for last year.

During the Year, 8 LNG processing plants of the Group
entered into processing agreements with PetroChina,
and the utilisation rate of production equipment of LNG
processing plants has improved. 14 LNG processing
plants operated during the Year, with an 18.6% increase in
utilisation rate.
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NATURAL GAS PIPELINE

During the Year, Natural Gas Pipeline transmission volume was
41,689 million cubic metres, representing an increase of 5,958
million cubic metres or 16.67% as compared with 35,731 million
cubic metres for last year. As a result of the lowering of prices
for cross-province pipeline transmission of natural gas with
effective from 1 September 2017, the Group’s revenue from the
Natural Gas Pipeline transmission business was RMB10,755
million, representing a decrease of RMB928 million or 7.94% as
compared with RMB11,683 million (restated) for last year. Profit
before income tax expense was RMB6,733 million, representing a
decrease of RMB1,312 million (restated) or 16.31% as compared
with RMB8,045 million for last year.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The National Energy Administration issued the 13th Five-year Plan
for Energy Development (the “plan”), which states the objective
to increase the percentage of natural gas consumption to primary
energy consumption to 10% by 2020 and that the government
shall actively promote the oil and gas system reform and the
natural gas price mechanism reform and natural gas market
development, reduce the natural gas utilisation cost and expand
the size of natural gas consumption. In 2018, China will continue
to facilitate energy production and consumption revolution to
promote the replacement of major energy consumed by green
energy with low carbon-emission. Environmental supervision will
become an important driving force for rapid growth of the demand
for natural gas, and the trend for natural gas to become a major
energy in the PRC will become more obvious. It is expected that
city gas and industrial gas consumption will maintain rapid growth,
and the demand for natural gas generator and distributed energy
will steadily increase. Imported natural gas will maintain growth
momentum. The macro-environment for the development of the
Group will be more favourable.

The Group is confident in capturing development opportunities
and effectively making full use of its advantages in assets and
business structure in 2018. By centering around structure
optimisation, it will continue to advance the development of QHSE
system building. It will vigorously develop high-end and high-
profitability market and terminal business, expand its natural gas
generator, distributed energy and city gas terminal market, and
play a positive role in PetroChina’s accelerated development of
natural gas business and building strategic and valuable projects.
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Fully promote increase in both sales volume and efficiency
of city gas. The Group will strengthen its coordinated
development with PetroChina, accelerate the development of
new projects, and strive to develop a number of new high-quality
and high-efficiency projects. It will strengthen the development of
users in the existing regions in which it operates city gas projects,
adhere to a flexible marketing strategy, deeply explore users’
potential, stabilize market, and realize the increase in sales volume
and efficiency. The Group will promote value-added services such
as smart home, technical services and physical stores, and build
the growth drivers for non-natural gas business.

Coordinate and optimise the integrated LNG operation.
The Group will accelerate the expansion of Jingtang and Jiangsu
Terminals, optimise the management of terminals, improve
unloading capacity. The Group will further optimise its LNG
plant layout, effectively implement contracted processing, raise
processing volume, and lower operation cost. It will actively
explore the model of making reserves in the summer for later use
in the winter and play the role of emergency peak adjustment. The
Group will strengthen the cooperation with refined oil distributors
and facilitate the construction of oil-gas stations. The Group will
continue to expand the construction of the refilling stations along
the transportation paths and transportation hubs, optimise its
LNG trading network, develop point-to-point supply market, and
improve the competitiveness of CNG and LNG in end-users’
markets.

Accelerate strategic planning for natural gas generator
and distributed energy projects. The Group will continue
to advance the development and construction of natural gas
generator projects in key areas such as Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei,
Shandong, the Yangtze River Delta and the Pearl River Delta, and
expand the size of natural gas generator business. The Group
will actively explore the new mode for energy management and
utilisation, accelerate the development of distributed energy
projects, and expand electricity sales business in an orderly
manner.

Advance the construction of key strategic branch pipelines
in an orderly manner. The Group will insist on early development
of terminal markets as well as mutual support and promotion of
branch pipeline construction and terminal market. During the Year,
the Group strives to commence operation of 4 branch pipelines
including Tengchong and Taihe and complete the construction
of 10 branch pipelines including Chuxiong-Panzhihua, Yueyang-
Linxiang, Honghe and Wafangdian-Changxingdao.
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Accelerate the transformation and upgrading of LPG sales.
The Group will consolidate and strive to expand its resources,
facilitate the construction of wharf tanks and the commencement
of operation of projects under construction, and optimise its
three-level network. The Group will strengthen the development
of institutional customers and promote the exchange of resources
with major domestic distributors to lower operation costs. The
Group will strengthen the increase in both sales volume and
efficiency of end-users, and establish a big data platform and
terminal logistics distribution system for LPG sales using the
internet and the internet of things.

By centering around innovations, breakthroughs, quality
improvement and efficiency enhancement, the Group will
continue to adhere to its operation and management philosophy
of safety, environmental protection, compliance with laws and
regulations, cooperation and sharing, openness and integration.
With the corporate objective of “providing clean energy to serve
a harmonious society”, it will continue to implement its market,
resource, capital, quality and innovation strategies and actively
practice its social responsibility. The Group believes that it will be
able to capture the opportunities and overcome the challenges for
development, make full use of its industry structure advantages,
stick to its philosophy of green development, realise coordinated
development with the natural gas business of PetroChina, and
play a positive role in the development of ecological civilization
and facilitating economic and social development with low carbon
emission. It will continue to improve its corporate values and bring
favorable returns to its shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB21.0 cents per share (2016: RMB6.5 cents per share) to
Shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s register of
members (the “Shareholders Register”) on 4 June 2018 (Monday)
subject to the approval at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company (the “2018 AGM”). The payment will be made on or
before 30 June 2018. The proposed 2017 final dividend amounts
to a total of approximately RMB1,695 million and 2016 dividend
of RMB522 million was paid in 2017. The payout ratio for 2017
(dividend per share divided by basic earnings per share) was
approximately 35.61% (2016 restated: 78.79%). The dividends
payable shall be paid in HK$. The applicable exchange rate shall
be the average exchange rate for RMB to HK$ as announced by
the Hong Kong Association of Banks for the 7 working days prior
to the declaration of final dividend, which is RMB1 to HK$1.2284.
Accordingly, proposed final dividend attributable to owners of
the Company is HK25.8 cents per share and HK$2,083 million in
total.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2018 AGM will be held on 24 May 2018 (Thursday). The
Notice of the 2018 AGM, which constitutes part of the circular
to Shareholders, will be sent together with the 2017 Annual
Report. The Notice of the 2018 AGM and the proxy form will also
be available on the websites of the Company and The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

CLOSURE OF SHAREHOLDERS REGISTER

For the purposes of determining Shareholders’ eligibility to attend
and vote at the 2018 AGM, and entitlement to the final dividend,
the Shareholders Register will be closed. Details of such closures

are set out below:

(i) For determining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2018

AGM:

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration

Closure of Shareholders
Register

Record date

4:00 p.m. on
17 May 2018
(Thursday)

from 18 May 2018
(Friday) to

24 May 2018 (Thursday)
(both dates inclusive)

24 May 2018 (Thursday)

(ii) For determining entitiement to the final dividend:

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration

Closure of Shareholders
Register

Record date

4:00 p.m. on
31 May 2018
(Thursday)

from 1 June 2018
(Friday) to

4 June 2018 (Monday)
(both dates inclusive)

4 June 2018 (Monday)
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During the above closure periods, no transfer of shares will be
registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM,
and to qualify for the final dividend, all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s Branch Registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than the
aforementioned latest time.

The Group’s development was attributable to the strong support
of its shareholders, partners and customers, as well as the
dedicated efforts and contribution of all employees. On behalf
of the Board, | would like to extend sincere thanks to them. The
Group will unswervingly strive to achieve sustainable development
and give back to shareholders and employees with better
development and results.

By order of the Board

Ling Xiao
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Kunlun Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) continued to develop
its natural gas business segment during the year ended 31
December 2017 (the “Year”). Profit before income tax expense
of the Group for the Year was approximately RMB11,480 million,
representing an increase of 82.48% as compared with RMB6,291
million (restated) for the last year. Profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the Year was approximately RMB4,760 million,
representing an increase of 614.71% as compared with RMB666
million (restated) for the last year.

REVENUE

Revenue for the Year was approximately RMB88,706 million,
representing an increase of 26.00% as compared with amount of
RMB70,400 million (restated) for the last year. The increase was
mainly due to the expansion of natural gas business.

Revenue mostly from the Natural Gas Sales, LNG Processing
and Terminal and Natural Gas Pipeline accounted for 98.30%
(2016 restated: 97.88%) of the Group’s total revenue amounting
to approximately RMB87,201 million (2016 restated: RMB68,909
million).

Other gains, net

Other gains, net for the Year was approximately RMB1,335 million,
representing an increase of 98.07% as compared with amount
of RMB674 million (restated) for the last year. The increase was
mainly due to appreciation of RMB against US$ during the Year.

Interest income

Interest income for the Year was approximately RMB211 million,
representing a decrease of 29.67% as compared with amount
of RMB300 million (restated) for the last year. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in average balance of amounts due
from related parties which were interest-bearing.

Purchases, services and others

Purchases, services and others were approximately RMB64,145
million for the Year, representing an increase of 32.77% as
compared with amount of RMB48,312 million (restated) for the
last year. The increase was mainly due to the increase in purchase
volume of natural gas which was generally in line with the increase
in sales of natural gas business.
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Employee compensation costs

Employee compensation costs of the Group was approximately
RMB4,329 million for the Year, representing an increase of
12.53% as compared with amount of RMB3,847 million (restated)
for the last year. This increase was mainly due to the increase
in the number of headcount which was generally in line with the
expansion of natural gas business during the Year.

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation for the Year was
approximately RMB5,651 million, representing a decrease of
0.69% as compared with amount of RMB5,690 million (restated)
for the last year. This was mainly due to the impairment of
property, plant and equipment in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) in 2016 which led to the decrease in their carrying
amounts in 2017. The effect was net off by the increase in
property, plant and equipment transferred from construction in
progress during the Year.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment was RMB604
million for the Year, representing a decrease of 84.56% as
compared with amount of RMB3,913 million (restated) for the last
year. This decrease was mainly due to the recoverable amount
of property, plant and equipment was higher than the carrying
amount.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the Year were
approximately RMB3,264 million, representing an increase of
12.09% as compared with amount of RMB2,912 million (restated)
for the last year. The increase in selling, general and administrative
expenses was generally in line with the expansion of natural gas
business and the increase in royalty expenses in Exploration and
Production business as a result of the increase in realised crude
oil selling price.

Taxes other than income taxes

Taxes other than income taxes for the Year was approximately
RMB441 million, representing a decrease of 16.00% as compared
with amount of RMB525 million (restated) for the last year. The
decrease was mainly due to implementation of VAT Reform that
eliminated business tax in the PRC.
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Interest expenses

Interest expenses for the Year was approximately RMB1,145
million, representing an increase of 75.88% as compared with
amount of RMB651 million (restated) for the last year. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in borrowings in 2017.

Total interest expenses for the Year was approximately
RMB1,728 million of which RMB583 million was capitalised under
construction-in-progress.

Share of profits less losses of associates

Share of profits less losses of associates for the Year was
approximately RMB767 million, representing an increase of
26.78%, as compared with amount of RMB605 million (restated)
for the last year. The increase was mainly due to the increase
in realised crude oil selling price during the Year that in turn
led to the increase in the shared operating result from CNPC-
Aktobemunaigas Joint Stock Company (“Aktobe”).

Share of profits less losses of joint ventures

Share of profits less losses of joint ventures for the Year was
increased by 38.27% to approximately RMB224 million (2016
restated: RMB162 million). The increase was mainly due to the
increase in realised crude oil selling price in Oman project during
the Year.

Profit before income tax expense

Profit before income tax expense for the Year was approximately
RMB11,480 million, representing an increase of 82.48% as
compared with amount of RMB6,291 million (restated) for the last
year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the Year was approximately RMB3,531
million, representing an increase of 10.34% as compared with
amount of RMB3,200 million (restated) for the last year. The
effective tax rate (excluding joint ventures and associates) for
the Year decreased to 33.66% (2016 restated: 57.93%). The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease of impairment loss
on property, plant and equipment. Excluding the effect of this,
the effective tax rate for the Year was 31.83%. (2016 restated:
33.91%).
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Profit for the Year and profit attributable to owners of the
Company

The profit for the Year of the Group was approximately RMB7,949
million, representing an increase of 157.17% as compared with
amount of RMB3,091 million (restated) for the last year. The
profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately RMB4,760 million, representing an increase of
614.71% as compared with amount of RMB666 million (restated)
for the last year.

Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of total assets of
the Group was approximately RMB140,558 million, representing
an increase of RMB11,624 million or 9.02% as compared with
RMB128,934 million (restated) as at 31 December 2016.
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The Company has issued convertible bonds in 2016 to improve :%ﬁ—/_\ilﬂq AARE BT —H A ERESFAR
the debt profile: SEEBHRR
Nominal Annual
Items Date of issue Amount Tenor Interest
HH ®{THH H{E HAPR FR=E
RMB million year %
AREBETT FHA %
Convertible bonds A RES 25 July 2016 3,350 3 1.625
(Stock code: 5690) (B3R - 5690) —ZF—RF
(note) (FfE) +A=-+EA
Note: Please refer to the announcements on the issue of convertible — MiiF : FRHEARRQA TN T —NF+ A BT ERE

bonds published by the Company on the websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company in July 2016.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group has total borrowings of
RMB41,101 million which will be repayable as follows:

B EsTRE ST

R-ZE—tF+-A=1+—H8 *&EEZREEA
R 41,101 BETTARIN TMERE -

2017 2016

RMB’million RMB’million

—E—+tF ZE-RF

ARBBEERT ARKBET

(restated)

(&%)

(Note 30)

(FtEE30)

Within one year —FA 11,805 16,585
Between one to two years —EMF 4,431 1,440
Between two to five years MERF 20,410 10,164
After five years FFENE 4,455 4,316
41,101 32,505

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in RMB,
US$, Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), Japanese yen and Euro as fully
summarised under Note 30 in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The functional currency of the Company and most of its
subsidiaries is RMB and the Company and most of its subsidiaries
are exposed to the exchange gain/(loss) when the RMB is
appreciated/depreciated against other currencies. The details
of the Group’s financial risk factors (including foreign exchange
rate risk) are summarised under Note 4.1 in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Other financial risk factors
are summarised in Note 4.2 and Note 4.3 in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the Year, no share option (2016: none) has been exercised
by the senior executives of the Company as the exercise price of
HK$12.632 was above the market price of HK$7.06 on the share
option expiry date and the share options were lapsed.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB6,556 million. Notwithstanding the net current liabilities
of the Group at 31 December 2017, the Group’s consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis because the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
of the opinion that the Group would have adequate funds to meet
its obligation, as and when they fall due, having regard to the
following:
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(i) the Group expected to obtain credit facility from China
Petroleum Finance Company Limited (“CP Finance”)
amounting to RMB15 billion. On 12 March 2018, the
Group obtained the credit facility of RMB15 billion from CP
Finance;

(i) the Group expects to generate operating cash inflows in
the future; and

(i) the Directors consider that the Group could obtain

financing from various sources of funding.

Consequently, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Use of Net Proceeds from Issuance of Convertible Bonds

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated 14
July 2016 and 25 July 2016 in relation to, among other things,
the issuance of RMB3,350 million in aggregate principal amount
of 1.625% US$ settled convertible bonds due 2019 (stock code:
5690) (the “Convertible Bonds”) (the “CB Announcements”).
Consistent with the intended use as disclosed in the CB
Announcements, the Company has utilised all of the net proceeds
from the issuance of the Convertible Bonds of approximately
US$497 million for the payment for the acquisition of Kunlun Gas.
As of 31 December 2017, the net proceeds from the issuance of
Convertible Bonds have been fully utilised.

Interest Paid

The Group paid interest of RMB1,438 million (2016 restated:
RMB947 million) during the Year.

Dividend Paid

2016 final dividend of RMB6.5 cents per share amounting to
RMB522 million (2015: RMB4.8 cents per share amounting to
RMB407 million) was distributed to owners of the Company
during the Year.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, no short-term

or long-term borrowings were secured by property, plant and
equipment or advance operating lease payment.
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New investment in major projects

Kunlun Gas, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into acquisition agreement dated 28 September 2017
with PetroChina Company Limited (“PetroChina”), pursuant to
which PetroChina has conditionally agreed to sell and Kunlun
Gas has conditionally agreed to purchase 51% equity interest
in PetroChina Jingtang LNG Co., Ltd (“Jingtang Co.”) at a
consideration of approximately RMB1,547 million subject to
adjustment on gain or loss of Jingtang Co. during the transition
period, as defined in the acquisition agreement. This acquisition
will help the Group avoid the horizontal competition between the
Group and PetroChina, which will generate synergies among the
Group’s businesses, enhance operational efficiency and increase
market competitiveness. In the fourth quarter of 2017, Kunlun
Gas obtained all the necessary approvals of the government
authorities of the acquisition and Jingtang Co. has become a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company upon the completion
of acquisition. The final consideration was RMB1,906 million,
including the gains during the transition period amounting to
approximately RMB359 million.

Material Investments

Material investments of the Group are its investments in
associates and in joint ventures.

The Group’s major investment in associates are mainly in its
Exploration and Production segment. The Group has invested
in an associate, Aktobe, located in the Republic of Kazakhstan
with an effective equity interest of 15.072%, the detailed financial
information of which is summarised in Note 18 in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

There is no single material joint venture which significantly affects
the results and/or net assets of the Group. Details of the Group’s
investments in joint ventures are summarised in Note 19 in the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Employee

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately 41,835
employees globally (excluding the employees under entrustment
contracts) (2016 restated: 37,417 employees). Remuneration
package and benefits were determined in accordance with market
terms, industry practice as well as the duties, performance,
qualifications and experience of the employees.
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Final dividend

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of RMB21.0 cents (2016: RMB6.5 cents) per share. The
proposed dividend will be paid on or before 30 June 2018 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s register of
the members on 4 June 2018 (Monday), subject to the approval
at the annual general meeting of the Company. The dividends
payable shall be paid in HK$. The applicable exchange rate shall
be the average exchange rate for RMB to HK$ as announced by
the Hong Kong Association of Banks for the 7 working days prior
to the declaration of final dividend, which is RMB1 to HK$1.2284.
Accordingly, proposed final dividend attributable to owners of
the Company is HK25.8 cents per share and HK$2,083 million in
total.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the Year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted written guidelines on terms no
less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transaction.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model

Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

By the Order of the Board

Zhao Yongqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2018
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2017 (the “Year”).

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles (the “Principles”), code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) and certain recommended best practices (the
“Recommended Best Practices”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions
as set out in the CG Code and complied with all the Code
Provisions throughout the Year.

The Company has also put in place certain Recommended Best
Practices as set out in the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements
of the CG Code, and acknowledges the important role of its
Board in providing effective leadership and direction to Company’s
business, and in ensuring transparency and accountability of
Company’s operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company. The Board is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
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The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
the senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board fully supports the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances where management shall report
back and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Company.

The Company adopted written terms established on division
of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.
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Composition

The Board has the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.
There is a strong element of independence in the Board, which
can effectively exercise independent judgement.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board
comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman) (appointed on 12 January 2018)
Mr Zhao Yongqi (Chief Executive Director)

Mr Zhao Zhongxun

Mr Zhou Yuanhong (appointed on 12 January 2018)

Mr Miao Yong (appointed on 12 January 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee)

Dr Liu Xiao Feng (Member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee)

Mr Sun Patrick (Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member of
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
3 January 2017, Dr Lau Wah Sum resigned as an Independent
Non-executive Director with effect from 1 January 2017 since
he had reached the age of retirement. As disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 12 January 2018, Mr
Huang Weihe, Mr Wu Enlai, Mr Ding Shilu and Mr Zhang Yaoming
resigned as executive Directors with effect from 12 January 2018,
as Mr Huang, Mr Ding and Mr Zhang had reached their respective
age of retirement and Mr Wu had work-related reasons.
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The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each Independent Non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, serving on Board committees, scrutinising
the Company’s performance and monitoring performance
reporting, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Board Diversity Policy

Under Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, the nomination
committee (or the board) should have a policy concerning diversity
of board members, and should disclose the policy or a summary
of the policy in the Corporate Governance Report. The Board has
adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) to
align the board diversity.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
criteria, including but not limited to, skills, knowledge, gender,
age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, length of services and other qualities of candidates.
Board appointments will be made on meritocracy and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, with due regard to the
benefits of the diversity on the Board.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Each Non-executive Director has entered into a formal letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of three years,
subject to the retirement and re-election in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after their appointment. Every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company which provide that
every Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
during the Year shall retire at the next general meeting and every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three years. Code
Provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2 have been fully complied.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws Article 97, no
director will retire by rotation at the Company’s forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment,
so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary.
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During the Year, each of the Directors has attended various in-
house briefings and internal or external seminars/trainings, and
has read internal or external newsletters, updates and other
reading materials covering topics such as business of the
Company, corporate governance, industry knowledge, regulatory
updates, finance and management. The training records of the
Directors in 2017 are set out belows: —

REE FEFEHFZENIESE
WEHBEAR LI BEREA - R

g tEml

K MBS SNED

AREMBEEME O RETBMARRERR - X
R TTERMS  BEEEH  MBELERE -EE—

T FRIIEEHINWT

Reading
materials
relating to the
Attending seminar/ Group, daily
meeting/forum/ business or
giving lecture responsibilities
at seminar of Directors
HE MEEH
1578~ Vi &8 HE
Wi,/ 88 EBRES
BHEER BESMH
Mr. Ling Xiao (Chairman) BELE(LE) N/A TEH N/A T F
(appointed on 12 January 2018) (R=F—\F—AT=HEZHE)
Mr. Zhao Yonggi (Chief Executive Officer) KR (7T #R) Yes E2 8 Yes BEE
Mr. Zhao Zhongxun fizhioN- Iy Yes B2 H Yes EHiE
Mr. Zhou Yuanhong BAE%xE N/A NER N/A FE A
(appointed on 12 January 2018) (R=F—\F—AT=HEZHE)
Mr. Miao Yong BREAE N/A TNEF N/A @A
(appointed on 12 January 2018) (R=F-)\F—HAT-HEZH)
Mr. Huang Weihe v gl Yes BEE
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R=F—=\F—F+ZAFF)
Mr. Wu Enlai REREAE Yes B2 Yes E¥iE
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R=F—-NF—H1T=HFF)
Mr. Ding Shilu THERE Yes BHE
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R=F—=\F—F+ZAFF)
Mr. Zhang Yaoming SRIBEA %A Yes E¥iE
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R=F—-\F—HT=HFF)
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FEELE Yes B2 H Yes BEIE
Dr Liu Xiao Feng ZlEietE+ Yes 28 Yes F BIE
Mr Sun Patrick FEERE Yes B2 Yes E¥Ii&E
Dr Lau Wah Sum EREL N/A TEF N/A N

(resigned on 1 January 2017)

(R-F—tF—F—HFE)
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Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Code Provision A.1.1 stipulates that regular Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals for reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies

and policies of the Company.
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REBTHGXAIIRE EZSTHEREEF
BRZEDIR - KOEBF—IR - AERLHEM TS
KBRS - ANE B AR R B 2 BERE A M
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During the Year, 4 Board meetings, 3 Audit Committee meetings, AFE @ HBITOREFZEEHE —AEFEZEZEE
1 Remuneration Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee &€& —AFMEEC@EL —AIRREES S
meeting were held. &
The attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the AFE BEEFNEFE  BFZRLZEY  FTHZE
Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and EE&RIREZECEZ 2 HFLHEHI AT
the Nomination Committee during the Year is set out below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings
i/ eRRE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
EE EEE BERZEE FMzEe REZES
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr Ling Xiao AERE N/ATNEF N/ANEF N/ATEF N/ANER
(appointed on 12 January 2018) (R=E-NF—HT=HEZ(F)
Mr Zhao Yonggi WKL 4/4 - - -
Mr Zhao Zhongxun fizhis\-Ipioted 4/4 - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong FEBLE NARER N/ANER N/ANER NANER
(appointed on 12 January 2018) (R=F-\F—HT=HEZF)
Mr Miao Yong 2t NANER N/ATNER N/ANER NANER
(appointed on 12 January 2018) (R=F—/\F—F+-HEZ)
Mr Huang Weihe BHASE 4/4 - - 1/1
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R=F—-\F—H+=HEH)
Mr Wu Enlai RERLE 3/4 - - -
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R=F—/\F—F+=A#F)
Mr Ding Shilu TTREE 4/4 - - -
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R=F—-\F—H+=HEH)
Mr Zhang Yaoming RER TS 3/4 - - -
(resigned on 12 January 2018) (R=F—\F—F+=A#F)
Independent Non-executive Directors: BV FH77EE -
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FEERYE 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1
Dr Liu Xiao Feng BlEEEt 3/4 3/3 1/1 1/1
Mr Sun Patrick FEERE 4/4 3/3 1/ 17
Dr Lau Wah Sum ZIEREL
(resigned on 1 January 2017) (R=F—+F—H—HEHF) N/ATE N/ATE R NATER N/ATER
—E—+tFFERE BERERERAR
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors
at least 14 days before the meetings and reasonable notice
is generally given for other Board meetings. For committee
meetings, notices are served in accordance with the required
notice period stated in the relevant terms of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are normally sent to all Directors/
committee members at least 3 days before each Board meeting
or committee meeting to keep the Directors abreast of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary will attend Board and committee meetings,
when necessary, to advise on business developments, financial
and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary. Minutes are prepared after each
meeting and the final version is signed by the Chairman or the
chairman of the relevant committees (as the case may be) and
confirmed by the Board in the following Board Meeting or by the
relevant committee in the following committee meeting (as the
case may be). The confirmed minutes are kept for future reference
and Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at
a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also
contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to
ensure a balance of power and authority.

The positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are held by different individuals during the Year.
Mr Huang Weihe was the Chairman of the Board and Mr Zhao
Yongqi acted as the Chief Executive Officer throughout the
Year. There is no relationship between the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer.

There are written terms on the general division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practice. With the support of the senior management,
the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board
meetings. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated by the
Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible
for developing strategic plans and formulating the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes
for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.

All Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
the members of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors (including one Independent
Non-executive Director who possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise) . Mr Sun Patrick was the Chairman of
the Audit Committee throughout the Year. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s
existing independent auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by independent
auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the relationship with the independent auditor
by reference to the work performed by the independent
auditor, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the independent auditor; and

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings, to
review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, the report on the Company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes and the
appointment of the independent auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the Year has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit Committee from

the Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the independent auditor.

Note (1): Dr Lau Wah Sum ceased to be a member of the Audit
Committee with effect from 1 January 2017.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017

EREET

AEE BREZEEM-2BIIFRTESEK -
BRE-2AAEEEXRERNETUARTBER
RRERNBBILFATER . FEELRLER

$¢f%ﬁiﬁaff BEEZZEGKE /A
RABEBZBEZAIEARA °

ERZBEZIBBAERE MISA

(@) HERAEFSREIVHRRSLBRER - FHE

AR MRS - WE BB R BE T
RHZEREARKTSEIER :

b) 2RBIUZBEITETZ TE  REZFHM
KBS FRAGER AR & BB 37 A BRI 2 BRR - I
HBIRBMERE  EREEREBRAE
FERNESE R

(© R ANRB M BREHE - REEERR
kEBREERZGRABEREFNTCIEENE

L ©
AEE  BERREGCRTZRGH  UEHYH
XENME  UBREREREF - AARANEE

&ﬂﬁ“@*T&E?ﬁ%!%&?&%ﬁﬁ%

BB AL G H AR B ZFHEL LR
REZEMHIERZEATHEERSE

NEREX

B AZEE 2 BE - R ISR EFe
HEZZEGTEIRAER -

ERBLE T
ZLZEEKE -

MHEE(1) : —tF—-A—HRITEAE



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors throughout the Year ©@.
The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, making
recommendations to the Board for approval of the remuneration
policy and structure and making recommendation or determining
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets annually for
reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and determination
of the annual remuneration packages of the Executive Directors
and the senior management and other related matters. The
Company Secretary is responsible for collection and administration
of the human resources data and making recommendations to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the Year to
review the remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
assess performance of Executive Directors, approve the terms
of Executive Directors’ services contracts and review and make
recommendation of the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and the senior management for the Year to the Board.

Note (2): Dr Lau Wah Sum ceased to be a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 1 January 2017.
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The remuneration paid to the senior management by band for the

AEREXNTERAEREABZFHHMRBES L

Year is set out as below: N
Senior Management emolument BREBAEZHE
Year 2017
—
RMB1 - RMB1,000,000 AR TE AR 1,000,000 7T 2
RMB2,000,001 - RMB2,500,000 AER# 2 000,001 7tE AR 2,500,000 7T 1
3
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEESE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprised of four
members including three Independent Non-executive Directors
and the Chairman of the Company throughout the Year ©.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

3. to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;
4. to make recommendations to the Board on the

appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the Chief Executives;

Note (3): Dr Lau Wau Sum ceased to be a member of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 1 January 2017.
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5. to regularly review the time required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities; and

6. to do such other things to enable the Nomination
Committee to discharge its powers and functions conferred
to it by the Board.

In performing its duties, due regards would be given to the Listing
Rules and the associated guidance.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the Year to
review Board composition, proposal for Directors’ re-election
on retirement, the appointment of new Director as well as the
objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance functions as required under the CG Code:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board considered the following corporate
governance matters:

- adoption of corporate governance functions under the CG
Code;

- review the usage of annual caps on continuing connected
transactions of the Group;

- review the compliance with the CG Code; and
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- review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk
management systems of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

Code Provision A.6.4 stipulates that directors must comply with
their obligations under the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and, in addition, the Board
should establish written guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealings in
the securities of the issuer.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”) in respect of the dealings in
the Company’s securities by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 73 to 79.
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During the Year, the fees charged by KPMG for the audit of
the Company and its subsidiaries amounted to approximately
RMB20 million (2016 restated: RMB16 million). In addition,
approximately RMB4 million (2016 restated: RMB2 million) was
charged by KPMG for non-audit services. The non-audit services
mainly consist of taxation services, interim review, advisory and
other professional services. The fees charged by other auditors
of the Group for audit services during the Year amounted to
approximately RMB10 million (2016 restated: RMB4 million).

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

M

General Meeting

Under the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting will be taken by poll except where the
Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands. Details of the
poll procedures are included in all notices/circulars to
shareholders and will be explained during the proceedings
of meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company subsequent to the close of
the shareholders meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as
the Chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees,
are available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

During the Year, two general meetings were held on
2 June 2017 and 19 December 2017 which were the 2017
annual general meeting and the special general meeting for
approval of the continuing connected transactions for the
years 2018 to 2020, respectively. The attendance records
of the Directors to the 2017 general meetings are set out
below: —
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Directors Attendance
= HESBRY
Mr. Ling Xiao (Chairman) EERE(TE)

(appointed on 12 January 2018) (R=ZF—NF—H+=AEZF) N/A TR
Mr. Zhao Yongai (Chief Executive Officer) B (7T A8ET) 2/2
Mr. Zhao Zhongxun fickion-lbitas 2/2
Mr. Zhou Yuanhong (appointed on 12 January 2018) [BERITE

(R=F—)\F— A+ =HEZ() N/ATR i
Mr. Miao Yong (appointed on 12 January 2018) BEAE(R=ZF-\F—HTZHEZHF) N/ATEA
Mr. Huang Weihe (resigned on 12 January 2018) BRNEE(R=F—/1F—HA+=H

BHEHITEE) 2/2
Mr. Wu Enlai (resigned on 12 January 2018) RERAE(R=F-NE—F+=H

FIHTEE) 2/2
Mr. Ding Shilu (resigned on 12 January 2018) THE%E (R =F-1F—HA+=H

HAHTEE) 2/2
Mr. Zhang Yaoming (resigned on 12 January 2018) REREE (R -F-NNF—H+=H

BHIHTEE) 1/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHPITEE
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FEELE 2/2
Dr Liu Xiao Feng S EE 1/2
Mr Sun Patrick FEELAE 2/2
Dr Lau Wah Sum (resigned on 1 January 2017) ERBL (K =F—+F—F—HFL) N/ATE A

(2) Rights of Shareholders to Convene Special General (2) BRRBBEBRRISHAEZEF

Meeting

A special general meeting shall be convened on the written
requisition of shareholder(s) holding at the date of the
deposit of the registration not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company which as at the date of
the deposit carries the voting right at general meetings
of the Company deposited at the registered office of
the Company in Bermuda (Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda) and the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong (39/F, 118
Connaught Road West, Hong Kong) for the attention of the
Board.

The written requisition shall specify the objects of the
special general meeting and signed by the requistionist(s).
If the Board does not, within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the written requisition, proceed duly to convene
the special general meeting the requisitionist(s) or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the special general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which special general meeting may be convened by
the Board, provided that any special general meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months
from the date of deposit of the written requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.
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Shareholders’ Communication

Corporation communications such as interim reports,
annual reports and circulars are sent to the shareholders
in a timely manner and are also available on the website
of the Company. The Company’s website provides the
shareholders with the corporate information, such as
principal business activities and latest development of the
Group, as well as the share price and dividend history of
the Company. Also, it provides information on corporate
governance and corporate social responsibilities of the
Group as well as the compositions and functions of the
Board and the committees. For efficient communication
with shareholders and in the interest of environmental
protection, arrangements were made to allow shareholders
to elect to receive corporate communications of the
Company by electronic means through the Company’s
website.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the
Company, such as telephone hotline, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to
make any query that they may have with respect to the
Company. They can also send their enquiries to the Board
through these means.

Investor Relations

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are
dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains website at http://www.kunlun.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
shareholders investment and the Company’s assets. The internal
control system of the Company comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and
standards. The Company also has an internal audit department,
which is responsible for monitoring the internal governance of the
Group and overseeing the risk management and internal control
system of the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses annually
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system which
covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls as well as risk management, the adequacy of
resources, qualification and experiences of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial functions. Having reviewed the
assessment report issued by an external advisory firm, the Board
considers that the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are effective and adequate.

The Group has been attaching great importance to internal
control and risk management. The Company continued to
facilitate the building of its internal control system, gradually built
and improved a comprehensive risk management system, and
effectively promoted its operation in compliance with the laws
and regulations. It actively pushed forward the integration of risk
management and business and gave full play to the guiding role
of risks in its management.

MATERIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL IN
2017

In 2017, following the acquisition of PetroChina Kunlun Gas
Co., Ltd, in order to strengthen the management and control of
material risks and cultivate the risk management culture of the
Company, it selected the headquarters and 18 subsidiaries to
conduct risk assessment and prepare risk management reports
during the Year. After thorough research and analysis of changes
internally and in external environment and in view of its objectives
for production and operation for 2017, the Group conducted a
comprehensive review and analysis of its risk events in 2016, the
exceptions to internal control tests, as well as the information on
major risks and the risks for the Natural Gas Pipeline segment set
out in the risk management reports for the past few years, which
has formed the basis for risk assessment of the Company for
2017.

The Group reports on the management and control of its major
risks in 2017 as follows:
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MARKET RISK

In response to the challenges to be brought by the changes in
price policies, the Group analyzed its sales structure analysis in
advance, strengthened its communication and coordination with
users, enhanced LNG sales in liquid form, and commenced non-
natural gas operation, which has effectively mitigated the impacts
of the changes in policies. The Group continued to optimise its
customer structure, formulated plans for the development of new
markets and customers, and refined natural gas sales plans.
The Group conducted a survey on the demand for natural gas in
winter and made plans in advance, communicated with upstream
suppliers in an effective manner to secure steady resources, and
made early preparations for allocation of resources for emergency
response to effectively cope with market demand.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT RISKS

The Group has in place strict procedures for the review and
approval of preliminary designs, the review of design quality of
construction drawings and project bidding proposals, project
progress, on-site construction quality, construction safety and
project inspection for acceptance. The Group strengthened
the implementation of the principle of “whoever grants the
construction contract must conduct supervision, recruit labour
and assume responsibility” to ensure the smooth and orderly
progress of projects and transfer of projects with “zero defects”
to the production department for production commencement
arrangement. The LNG terminal project has achieved preliminary
results. Natural gas branch pipeline project made steady progress,
and the construction of city gas projects was accelerated.
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION RISKS

With “risk prevention and control” as the core and the objective
of continuing to enhance “four key areas and four in-place”
and implementing the safety and environmental protection
accountability system, the Group coordinated and made
comprehensive plans and strengthened process supervision to
ensure that the risks are kept under control. The Group further
improved the QHSE system by reviewing, designing and issuing
implementation plans in accordance with the principle that
whoever is responsible for the work shall be also responsible
for safety, preparing and revising QHSE system documents and
comprehensively regulating risk management. It strengthened
and improved all employees’ ability to perform safety and
environmental protection responsibilities through the assessment
of safety and environmental protection responsibility performance
ability. It strengthened the building of HSE standardisation at low-
level stations and continued to consolidate the foundation for
safety. The Group improved the assessment mechanism, broke
down safety and environmental protection responsibility indicators,
and entered into safety and environmental protection responsibility
letters at various levels. It formulated and implemented the
Rules for Assessment of Quality, Occupational Health, Safety
and Environmental Protection Performance Indicators, refined
assessment indicators, strengthened assessment, and promoted
management improvement.

RISK OF PRODUCTION INTERRUPTION AND
PRODUCTION CAPACITY MISMATCH

The Group strengthened the three-level dispatch management and
ensured that the important production and operation monitoring
ratio of 100% through the timely warning of abnormal situations
by the SCADA system. The Group strengthened the operation
and maintenance management of equipment and improved
equipment management to maintain the availability ratio. The
Group implemented a number of measures to strengthen pipeline
safety and improved the pipeline operation reliability. It prepared
and issued the “Gas Transmission Pipeline Integrity Management
Guide (Line Part)”, organised entities under the Group to revise
management and operation documents, and carried out serious
consequence identification and risk assessment. It conducted
flood season branch pipeline risk inspections during sensitive
times such as winter, flood season and holidays to ensure smooth
operation. It completed the preparation of the “Maintenance and
Repair System Construction Plan (2018-2022)”, and continued to
improve the business skills in respect of dispatch operation, on-
site operation, line inspection and maintenance and repair teams.
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INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT RISK

The Group improved the investment management and decision-
making system, established investment rules and systems
matching its own characteristics, and set up an investment
management and decision-making system with four levels,
being provincial regional companies, the assessment committee
(functional departments), external expert review and the general
manager office (the board of directors).

RISK OF HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group initially established a selection and recruitment
mechanism based on comprehensive assessment.

It adopted differentiated remuneration and established a
remuneration system under which remuneration is based on and
varies with position and reflects position responsibility and the
remuneration matches position performance.

For internal control and risk management, the Company will
continue to strengthen risk management and improve internal
control system, enhance compliance awareness, and continue
to carry out material risk assessment. The Company will prepare
risk management strategies, solutions and supervision and
improvement plans in light of its own situations in order to
ensure the feasibility of the measures and effective management
and control in 2018. By placing emphasis on comprehensive
improvement in basic management, a solid foundation will be laid
for the continuous improvement in operation, overall improvement
in management and high-quality and healthy development of the
Company.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review of the results of each business segment of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), major risks
and uncertainties facing the Group’s business operations, and
the Group’s business prospects are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 14 to 22 of this annual report.

(1) Business Strategy

The National Energy Administration issued the 13th
Five-year Plan for Energy Development, which states
the objective to increase the percentage of natural gas
consumption to primary energy consumption to 10%
by 2020 and that the government shall actively promote
the oil and gas system reform and the natural gas price
mechanism reform and natural gas market development,
reduce the natural gas utilisation cost and expand the size
of natural gas consumption. In 2018, China will continue
to facilitate energy production and consumption revolution
to promote the replacement of major energy consumed
by green energy with low carbon-emission. Environmental
supervision will become an important driving force for
rapid growth of the demand for natural gas, and the trend
for natural gas to become a major energy in the PRC will
become more obvious. It is expected that city gas and
industrial gas consumption will maintain rapid growth,
and the demand for natural gas generator and distributed
energy will steadily increase. Imported natural gas will
maintain growth momentum. The macro-environment for
the development of the Group will be more favourable.

The Group is confident in capturing development
opportunities and effectively making full use of its
advantages in assets and business structure in 2018. By
centering around structure optimisation, it will continue to
advance the development of QHSE system building. It will
vigorously develop high-end and high-profitability market
and terminal business, expand its natural gas generator,
distributed energy and city gas terminal market, and play
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a positive role in China’s accelerated development of
natural gas business and building strategic and valuable
projects. The Group will continue to fully promote increase
in both sales volume and efficiency of city gas, coordinate
and optimise the integrated LNG operation, accelerate
strategic planning for natural gas generator and distributed
energy projects, advance the construction of key strategic
branch pipelines in an orderly manner, accelerate the
transformation and upgrading of LPG sales.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s business are mainly operated by its
subsidiaries in the PRC and overseas, which in their
businesses should abide by the relevant laws and
regulations, including those relating to exploration,
production and sales of crude oil, gas operation and
service, gas facilities protection, prevention and handling of
gas safety accidents, price determination regime of natural
gas, environmental protection, and labour security. The
Group has also obtained the requisite business licenses,
qualifications, approvals and permits which are necessary
for conducting its operations in the PRC and overseas.

During the Year, to the best of the knowledge and
information of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the Group has complied with the relevant laws,
regulations and other applicable requirements that have a
significant impact on the Group and there have not been
any illegal or non-compliant acts which would materially
impact the Group's normal and continuing operations.

Key relationships with stakeholders

The Group recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to its healthy growth and strives to maintain
effective communication with its stakeholders, including
its Shareholders, investors, employees, customers and
suppliers. This has facilitated the Group’s sustainable
development in various aspects, including its business
operation, environmental protection and work environment.
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Corporate communications are provided to the
Shareholders of the Company in a timely manner. The
Directors participated in the general meetings held during
the Year to enable effective communication with the
Shareholders. The Company also continues to enhance
communications and relationship with its investors.
Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the development of the Company.

The Group adheres to the principle of fair recruitment and
treatment of its employees, and has established sound
occupational health and safety policies to create a desirable
work environment to its employees. Remuneration
package and benefits of the employees are determined in
accordance with market terms, industry practice as well
as duties, performance, qualification and experience of the
employees.

The Group adopts a market-oriented approach to closely
monitor the demand for its products and coordinate its
production, transmission and marketing activities with an
aim to provide greater value to its customers. The Group
has established long-term relationship with its major
customers, including PetroChina and other independent
third-party customers which are primarily industrial users
of the Group's gas products. The ageing analysis and
further details of the Group's accounts receivables are
set out in Note 24 in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The Group did not rely on any major
customer during the Year, and will continue to adopt
multiple measures to develop users and expand marketing
channels.

At the same time, the Group adopts scientific approach
in managing its supply chain and controlling costs of raw
materials. The Group has also received strong support
from its largest supplier, PetroChina, in maintaining stable
supply for its midstream and downstream natural gas
business. The Group has maintained a good relationship,
and did not have any significant disputes, with its major
customers and suppliers during the Year.

The Group has upheld its mission of “Low-Carbon
Economy Green Development” in its long-term business
strategy. It has placed a great emphasis on environmental
protection by promoting energy conservation and emission
reduction with a view to contributing to the sustainable
development of the environment and maintaining long-term
growth of the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
are the exploration and production of crude oil and natural gas
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Republic of
Kazakhstan, the Sultanate of Oman, the Republic of Peru, the
Kingdom of Thailand, the Republic of Azerbaijan, and the sales
and distribution of natural gas, LNG processing, LNG terminal and
transmission of natural gas in the PRC.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 80
and 81.

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of RMB6.5
cents per share amounting to approximately RMB522 million was
paid during the Year. The Directors recommended the payment
of a final dividend of RMB21.0 cents per share for the Year,
totalling approximately RMB1,695 million. The dividends payable
shall be paid in HK$. The applicable exchange rate shall be the
average exchange rate for RMB to HK$ as announced by the
Hong Kong Association of Banks for the 7 working days prior to
the declaration of final dividend, which is RMB1 to HK$1.2284.
Accordingly, proposed final dividend attributable to owners of
the Company is HK25.8 cents per share and HK$2,083 million in
total.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 84 and 85, and Note 28 in the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 27 in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY EAT iR EE
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders MRZZT—+tFR_FT—"F+_A=+—H &2
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows: AR R T
2017 2016
— —ERF

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARBAETL

(restated)

(&%)

Contributed surplus BEHAR 109 109
Retained earnings BIFRT 15,477 12,536
15,586 12,645

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the BBRRE—NN\—FREVAKIEE])  AREI2E
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for #EBRERAIHHEITHIR « AT - AR EE RIER
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a I ' NMEEBEHMBHBPERIVETRE @ EH D

dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if: K
(@)  itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its () RESGEIHNEEER FELRHEE
liabilities as they become due; or EEEAE 5K

()  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be lessthan (b)) EEBEZAJSREEBEARHEBEREEITR
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital KR RE 2 HFE -
and share premium accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS B

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the  ARARIZ AR & B FEE G BE L RERODET
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda would oblige the &3 R E AR BIZBIZLL Hl[A IR B AR R I THAR ©
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES FEA - &5 iEm A
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, ARG HEEMAMBRARNAFEREREA - HE

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the S B AR A BEAI D o
Year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman) (appointed on 12 January 2018)
Mr Zhao Yongqi (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Zhao Zhongxun

Mr Zhou Yuanhong (appointed on 12 January 2018)

Mr Miao Yong (appointed on 12 January 2018)

Mr Huang Weihe (resigned on 12 January 2018)

Mr Wu Enlai (resigned on 12 January 2018)

Mr Ding Shilu (resigned on 12 January 2018)

Mr Zhang Yaoming (resigned on 12 January 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey

Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Mr Sun Patrick

Dr Lau Wah Sum (resigned on 1 January 2017)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 3
January 2017, Dr Lau Wah Sum resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director with effect from 1 January 2017 since he had
reached the age of retirement. As disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 12 January 2018, Mr Huang Weihe, Mr Wu
Enlai, Mr Ding Shilu and Mr Zhang Yaoming resigned as Executive
Directors with effect from 12 January 2018, as Mr Huang, Mr Ding
and Mr Zhang had reached their respective age of retirement and
Mr Wu had work-related reasons.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

During the Year, the Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against its Directors and senior management arising
out of corporate activities.
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BRIEF BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors
Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman)

Aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director on 12 January
2018, and served as the Chairman from 12 January 2018.

Mr Ling is currently vice president of PetroChina Company
Limited (“PetroChina”) (Stock Code: 00857.HK), general manager
of PetroChina Natural Gas Sales Branch Company (Natural
Gas and Pipelines Branch Company) (“Natural Gas Sales
Branch Company”) and chairman of the board of directors of
PetroChina Pipelines Company Limited (f A mEEEREER
Al) (“PetroChina Pipelines”). Mr Ling is a professor-level senior
engineer and has over 30 years of experience in the Chinese
petroleum and chemical engineering industry. Mr Ling obtained
a bachelor’s degree in petroleum transportation and storage
from East China Petroleum Institute in July 1982. In June 2008,
he obtained a doctorate degree in oil and gas storage and
transportation from China University of Petroleum (Beijing).

From June 2001 to August 2004, Mr Ling was deputy director
of Xinjiang Petroleum Administration. From August 2004 to
December 2007, he had successively been chairman of the board
of directors and general manager of Western Pipeline Company
Limited (Fa3f& &4 R & T2 7). From December 2007 to March
2009, he acted as executive director, general manager of Western
Pipeline Limited Company (F 58 & AR & (72 7]). From March
2009 to November 2013, Mr Ling was general manager of the
Western Pipeline Branch Company. From November 2013 to
March 2016, he was general manager of PetroChina West-East
Gas Pipeline Branch Company (B A AP REE B ED A 7))
and general manager of West-East Gas Sales Branch Company
(AR EREHE D2 7). From March 2016 to September 20186,
Mr. Ling was deputy general manager of PetroChina Natural Gas
and Pipelines Branch Company and deputy general manager
of Natural Gas Sales Branch Company. From September 2016
to November 2017, he was deputy general manager of Natural
Gas Sales Branch Company and general manager of PetroChina
Pipelines.
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Mr Zhao Yonggqi (Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 57, was appointed as a Chief Executive Officer in December
2013, appointed as an Executive Director in June 2014 and
appointed as a general manager in February 2016. Mr Zhao is
a professor-level senior economist and he has over 30 years of
experience in the oil and gas industry in China. Mr Zhao became
the deputy general manager of PetroChina Dagang Oil Fields
Sales Company in May 1997, the deputy general manager of
PetroChina North China Sales Company in December 1999, the
general manager of PetroChina Inner Mongolia Sales Company in
October 2004. He became the general manager of China Marine
Bunker Co., Ltd. in November 2009, the general manager of
PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd. (“Kunlun Gas”) in August 2011,
and began to concurrently serve as an executive director of the
same company in October 2011. He became the deputy general
manager of PetroChina Natural Gas Sales Branch Company
(Natural Gas and Pipeline Branch Company) in November 2017.
Mr Zhao was elected a representative to the 11™ National People’s
Congress of the PRC in January 2008.

Mr Zhao Zhongxun

Aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in May 2016. He is currently the deputy general manager of
department of planning and programming of China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC”) and PetroChina. Mr Zhao is
a professor-level senior economist. He has nearly 30 years of
working experience in the oil industry in China. Mr Zhao obtained
a Bachelor of Engineering from China University of Petroleum
with a major in management of industrial engineering in 1988,
and obtained a EMBA degree from the Business School of the
University of Texas (Arlington) in 2006. Mr Zhao was appointed
as the deputy general manager of department of planning and
programming of PetroChina since October 2006, the deputy
director general of department of planning and programming of
CNPC and the deputy general manager of department of planning
and programming of PetroChina since June 2007, the deputy
general manager of department of planning and programming of
CNPC and PetroChina in May 2011.
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Mr Zhou Yuanhong

Aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director on 12 January
2018. Mr Zhou is currently deputy general manager of M&A
Department of CNPC and PetroChina and director of investee
companies of CNPC and PetroChina. Mr Zhou was appointed to
the aforementioned positions in October 2016. Mr Zhou obtained
a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Xi'an Petroleum Institute
in June 1991. In November 2003, he obtained a master’s degree
in international accounting from University of New South Wales in
Australia. From May 2002 to August 2003, he was deputy head of
finance division of PetroChina Natural Gas and Pipelines Branch
Company. From August 2003 to April 2006, he was deputy
head of equity management office under M&A Department of
PetroChina. From April 2006 to July 2008, Mr Zhou was head of
equity management office under M&A Department of CNPC and
PetroChina. From July 2008 to October 2016, he was a full-time
director and full-time supervisor of M&A Department of CNPC
and PetroChina. From October 2016, Mr Zhou has been deputy
manager of M&A Department of CNPC and PetroChina and
director of investee companies thereof. Mr Zhou is also a director
of CNPC Capital Company Limited (Stock Code: 000617.SHE), a
listed company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr Miao Yong

Aged 45, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 12 January 2018. Mr. Miao is currently chief accountant of
Natural Gas Sales Branch Company. Mr Miao was appointed
to the aforementioned position in July 2017. Mr Miao, being a
senior accountant, obtained a bachelor’'s degree in finance and
accounting from Xi’an Petroleum Institute in June 1996. In January
2011, he obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from Qinghua University. Mr Miao has successively worked
for China National Oil and Gas Exploration and Development
Corporation (FEIAREIEEFEEAF]) and PetroChina in their
respective taxation and prices divisions under the finance
departments. From July 2009 to June 2012, he was deputy chief
accountant of Finance Department of PetroChina. From June
2012 to December 2016, he was chief accountant of PetroChina
Southwest Pipelines Branch Company (Bl A3 Fa & 85 A 7).
From December 2016 to July 2017, he was Chief Accountant of
PetroChina Pipelines.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey

Aged 68, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 1998. He is chairman of IAM Holdings
(Hong Kong) Limited, a Hong Kong based investment firm,
and has over 35 years’ experience in merchant banking and
commercial banking. He is a non-executive director of The Bank
of East Asia, Limited, an independent non-executive director of
Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, Kowloon Development Company
Limited, Pokfulam Development Company Limited and Tai Ping
Carpets International Limited. He was an independent non-
executive director of China Everbright International Limited until
24 May 2017. Mr Li has a Master of Business Administration from
Columbia University and a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering
from Brown University.

Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Aged 55, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 16 April 2004. Dr Liu has more than
23 years of experience in corporate finance and has worked in
various international financial institutions since 1993, including
N.M. Rothschild & Sons, NM Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong)
Limited, JP Morgan Chase, DBS Asia Capital Limited, China
Resources Capital Holdings Company Limited. He was an
independent non-executive director of Haier Electronics Group
Company Limited (stock code: 1169) since June 2007 up to June
2014, an independent non-executive director of Honghua Group
Limited (stock code: 196) since January 2008 and an independent
non-executive director of Cinda International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 111) since July 2016, the independent non-executive
director of Sunfonda Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1771)
since May 2017 and the independent non-executive director of
Hisense Kelon Electrical Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
921) since September 2017, the issued shares of all of which are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He is also currently an independent director of UBS
Securities Co., Ltd. Dr Liu obtained a Master’s degree and a
Ph.D. from the Faculty of Economics, University of Cambridge
in 1988 and 1994 respectively, a Master of Science degree in
Development Studies from the University of Bath, England, in
1987, and a Bachelor of Economics degree from Southwest
University of Finance and Economics, China (previously known as
Sichuan Institute of Finance and Economics, China) in 1983.
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Mr Sun Patrick

Aged 59, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 February 2016. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Trinity Limited, Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd, China NT Pharma Group
Company Limited and China Railway Signal & Communication
Corporation Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent non-executive director of CRRC
Corporation Limited and China Railway Construction Corporation
Limited, both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. He is a vice-chairman of The Chamber
of Hong Kong Listed Companies and was its chairman (2013 -
2015) and Honorary Chief Executive Officer.

Mr Sun was an independent non-executive director and non-
executive chairman of Solomon Systech (International) Limited, a
non-executive director of Renhe Commercial Holdings Company
Limited, an executive director of Value Convergence Holdings
Limited and SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (all of which
are listed companies in Hong Kong), and an independent non-
executive director of China Railway Group Limited (listed on the
Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange), China CNR
Corporation Limited (which was delisted from the Stock Exchange
in May 2015 due to merger with CRRC Corporation Limited) and
The Link Management Limited (the manager of The Link Real
Estate Investment Trust which is also listed in Hong Kong), the
senior country officer and head of investment banking for Hong
Kong of JP Morgan Chase, group executive director and head of
investment banking for Greater China at Jardine Fleming Holdings
Limited. He was a member of the Takeovers & Mergers Panel and
the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities and Futures
Commission, deputy convenor of the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange and a council member of the Stock Exchange.

Mr Sun graduated from the Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania, the United States, with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Economics in 1981. Mr Sun also completed the
Stanford Executive Program of Stanford Business School, the
United States, in 2000. Mr Sun is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the United Kingdom, and a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Chief Financial Officer
Mr Wang Gang

Aged 53, was appointed as Chief Financial Officer on 12 May
2016. He is a professor-level senior accountant and is currently
the chief accountant of the Company. Mr Wang graduated
from Beijing Institute of Finance and Trade majoring in financial
accounting, and obtained an EMBA degree from the College of
Business of the University of Houston in the United States. Mr
Wang has about 30 years of working experience in the petroleum
industry in China. He previously worked in the supply and sales
unit of the Finance Bureau of the Ministry of Petroleum Industry
of the PRC, and the infrastructure financing division, financial
management division and taxation and prices division of the
Finance Bureau of CNPC. He was also previously the deputy
head of taxation and prices division of the finance and assets
department of CNPC, and the deputy head, and later head,
of taxation and prices division of the finance department of
PetroChina. Mr Wang was the chief accountant of West-East
Gas Pipeline Branch from February 2006, the chief accountant
of Kunlun Gas from August 2008, and his current position
commenced from May 2016.

Company Secretary

Mr Cheng Cheng (Vice President, Company Secretary)

Aged 50, was appointed as the Company Secretary on 11 July
2016. He served as an Executive Director from June 2004 to
May 2016 and is currently a Vice President of the Company.
Before joining the Company, Mr Cheng has over 25 years industry
experience working at various departments and sections of
CNPC including 3 years in Canada as vice president of CNPC
International (Canada) Limited. Mr Cheng has a master’s degree of
Business Administration from the University of Calgary, Canada, a
master’s degree in Energy and Environment Economy from Scuola
Superiore Enrico Mattei, Milan, Italy and Diploma in Petroleum
Technical Economy from Jianghan Institute of Petroleum, the
PRC.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of
its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and
in which a Director of the Company or any entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Commencement of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”)) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which any
such Director and chief executive of the Company is taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b)
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company; or which (c) were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuer under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange are set out
below.

Ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 Each of the Company

ESEn

RZZE—tF+A=+—0 ARRZTESKE
ZITBABRA RGBS HEAREEE (EXRF
HFREEGO([FHERBEGD ) EXVE) 2%
7 RGO RESHT  #HE : QBBREFRHPE
RPIEXVEE T K8 EEME RN E] REFAFT 2
En kB (BRIERIEES KEE RO 2 G E
EHERARREMESEREBITHAEHRE &
mIORR) 5 Bk (0)IRIKFEFH K EIE 1505 352 {5k 7E
PARRNBIFE 2 ZRMAZERSIAR © 3K(0)
REBE R Prag s EARRI ([ EARRI D) T2 Eme
TAESETEFRZ2BRETRARNG AR R
BT B BOR B SN AT o

ARBEREEOOI B ZEBER

Capacity and Percentage
Nature of of Issued
Number of Interests Shares
Name Shares Sk (HhERTRe
®H BB B EEME 2B
Li Kwok Sing Aubrey (note) B2 (M) 1,000,000  Beneficial owner 0.012%
EmEEA
Note: PEE -

The interests held by Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey represent long position in
the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries and
its holding companies a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouses and children under 18 years of age) to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or its associated corporations.

SHARE OPTIONS
Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company are
set out in Note 27(b) in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.
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Shares options were granted to the employees of the Company
under the executive share option scheme approved by the Board
on 3 June 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”), details of
which are set out below:

Number of Share Options
EREYE

Outstanding Outstanding

at 1 January Granted Exercised Lapsed at 31 December

2017 during the during the during the 2017

Date of Exercise Exercise ~ RZE-t#% Year Year Year RZE-tF

Name grant period price -A-H REEE REEE REEE  +tZA=t-H

#e RiiAH i ] ke AR B Bt EAN CESH

HKS 000 000 000 000 000

A i i f i i

Employees 17/05/12 17/08/12 - 16/05/17 12632 14,200 - - (14,200) -
€& “F-CE _% _E\ﬂ+tﬁi
BATER “E-tFRRT/A

14,200 - - (14,200 -

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the date on which the share options were
lapsed was HK$6.99.

During the Year, no share options had been exercised by
the employees of the Company as the exercise prices of the
outstanding share options were above the market price of the
Company’s shares, and the relevant share options had lapsed.
The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on 2 June 2012, and
following lapse of share options as detailed above, there were no
outstanding share options that remain exercisable by the Directors
and/or employees of the Company under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme.

No new share option scheme was adopted after the expiration of
2002 Share Option Scheme on 2 June 2012. No new option was
granted for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO, showed that the
Company has been notified of the following interests, being 5%
or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests
are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of the directors
and the chief executive of the Company.

AN BB BB BE S R Sk A B HA 2 BT 2 N E 5 Uk
B AE6.998TT °
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Percentage of the
total number of
Number of Shares B% 10 48 8L
BoEE Shares in issue
Name Direct Interest Indirect Interest e T
=g ity EEER BaotE
Sun World Limited (“Sun World”) @ 4,708,302,133 (L) - 58.33%
('sun World ) 4,708,302,133 (41)
PetroChina Hong Kong Ltd.
(“PetroChina Hong Kong”) - 4,708,302,133 (L) 58.33%
([ PetroChina Hong Kong |) 4,708,302,133 (#F)
PetroChina - 4,708,302,133 (L) 58.33%
H A H 4,708,302,133 (41)
Fairy King Investments Ltd. @ 277,432,000 (L) - 3.43%
277,432,000 (#F)
CNPC International Ltd.(“CNPCI”) @ - 277,432,000 (L) 3.43%
(TCNPCIJ) 277,432,000 (&)
CNODC @ - 277,432,000 (L) 3.43%
277,432,000 (4F)
CNPC M@ - 4,985,734,133 (L) 61.76%
PO HEE 4,985,734,133 (41)
Notes: BsE -
o Sun World is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PetroChina Hong 1" Sun World /& PetroChina Hong Kong Z%ﬁlﬁﬁ%’%
Kong, which in turn is wholly-owned by PetroChina. PetroChina is 7] » ifi PetroChina Hong Kong i 1 B 75 jii 2 &
owned as to 86.47% by CNPC. Accordingly, CNPC is deemed to A - iR EA Al R AR SR E A 86.47% 1
have interest in the 4,708,302,133 (L) shares held by Sun World. o B - P ELA S B AR B 5 Sun World FT
Mr Zhao Yongai, an Executive Director of the Company is also the #5,2.4,708,302,133 (47 ) RIR DA FE B #E 2 » A
director of Sun World, which is a substantial shareholder of the DAPITEFHKBREMBARAEEBRR (F
Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO). = RBHFLHEEGIZEXVES) Sun World 2 E % -
@ Fairy King Investments Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of @ Fairy King Investments Ltd. J5CNPCI 2 % & [} &
CNPCI, which in turn is wholly-owned by CNODC, which is in turn ‘37l - T CONPCIFECNODC 2 A # A » BHEA
owned as to 100.00% by CNPC. Accordingly, CNPC is deemed S 52 B % /5 CNODC 2 100.00% 4 25 © A It »
to have interest in the 277,432,000 (L) shares held by Fairy King Bl £ h £ 8 3548 /3 11X Fairy King Investments Ltd.
Investments Ltd.. FiFE2 277,432,000 (4F) B A& R B fE 2 o
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors  BR EXFIEEEIN - RZTE—LF T+ A=+ —

and the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any
person (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company were not aware of any person (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other members of the Group, or any options in
respect of such capital.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than share options as set out in Note 27(b) and the
issuance of RMB3,350 million in aggregate principle amount of
1.625% USD settled convertible bonds due 2019 with conversion
price of HK$7.05 per share set out in Note 31 in the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company had no
outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or other
similar rights as at 31 December 2017 and there had been no
other exercise of convertible securities, options, warrants or
similar rights during the Year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group conducted the following connected transactions
during the Year:

(i) On 28 September 2017, Kunlun Gas (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and PetroChina (the controlling
shareholder of the Company) entered into an acquisition
agreement in relation to the acquisition of 51% equity
interest in PetroChina Jingtang LNG Co., Ltd. (“Jingtang
Co.”) by Kunlun Gas from PetroChina for a consideration
of RMB1,546,954,800. Jingtang Co. has become a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company upon completion
of the acquisition. Please refer to announcements of the
Company dated 28 September 2017 and 14 December
2017 for further details.

(ii) On 29 December 2017, the Company and CNPC
International (Kura) Ltd. (an associate of CNPC, the
controlling shareholder of the Company) entered into a
sale and purchase agreement in relation to the Company’s
disposal of 100% equity interest in Fortunemate Assets
Limited for a consideration of US$11,218,000. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 29
December 2017 and 22 January 2018 for further details.
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Continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, which
are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules, are as follows.

FHRBAETZHERERS - BAREETHERE
TAABZEITIN T EE -

Annual cap
Amount incurred for 2017 for 2017
Nature of transactions Details “E-tEEEEE —E-tf
RAME #E Equivalent to EELR
RMB' million HKS$ million HK$ million
AEBBET  BHARBER BEBT
(i Provision of products and services by As disclosed in the Company’s 7,908 9,218 13,232
CNPC and its subsidiaries (‘CNPC announcement dated 28 December 2015
Group”) to the Group and circular dated 22 January 2016
EAREERENEAR ((ThEE]) RARAIRSBA-E-RE+-A=T/\R
AR ERMEERRRS LAERZE-F-A-TZH
ZBERRE
(i Purchase of the Group’s share of crude As disclosed in Company’s 762 887 3,568
oil by the CNPC Group announcement dated 7 November 2014
PREEREEAREZRANK and circular dated 11 November 2014
RARFIREA-E—ME+—AtA
LAERZE-MET-A+—H
LSRR
(i) Rental payments As disclosed in the Company’s 1 13 39
REFE announcement dated 28 December 2015
and circular dated 22 January 2016
RARAIRSBA-S-RE+-A=T/\B
ZAERZE-F-A-TZH
LSRR
(iv) Purchase of oil and gas products from As disclosed in the Company’s 30,984 36,116 85,644
the CNPC Group by the Group announcement dated 28 December 2015
TEERETHEE AR and circular dated 22 January 2016
AAREmR RARFIRSEA-E-RE+-A-T/\R
LAERZE-RE-AZTZH
ZBHPRE
v) Provision of products and services by As disclosed in the Company’s 15,040 17,531 26,080
the Group to the CNPC Group announcement dated 28 December 2015
TEER AR EREERRRS and circular dated 22 January 2016
RARRABA-E-RET-A-T/R
ZAERZE-F-A-TZH
LR
(vi) Pipeling transmission fee for the As disclosed in the Company’s circular 3419 3,936 N/A
transmission of natural gas received dated 19 February 2011 Tag

and receivable from Beijing Enterprises

Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
BR KBS RERARA R RAKE

RAEERAR EBERER

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

WRDRESHA-Z—F-A+tAH
BRI RE
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company. The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed
that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered
into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the independent auditor of the Company to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor
of the Company has issued its letter containing its following
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 189 to 194 of
the Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules.

Nothing has come to the independent auditor’s attention that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not received the approval of the Company’s Board of
Directors;

(ii) are not in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company if the transactions involve provision of goods or
services by the Group;

(iii) have not been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcements
dated 7 November 2014 and 28 December 2015 and
circulars dated 11 November 2014 and 22 January 2016
with respect to the aggregated amount of each transaction
involved.

A copy of the auditor’s report has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.
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The Company has confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
29 November 2017 and the circular of the Company dated
1 December 2017 (the "Circular"), the Company had entered into
the New Master Agreement (as detailed in the Circular) with CNPC
on 29 November 2017 with respect to, among other things, the
renewal of certain continuing connected transactions between
the Group and the CNPC Group for the three years ending
31 December 2020. These continuing connected transactions
have been duly approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held on
19 December 2017. Please refer to the Circular for further details.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Group has entered into certain entrustment management
contracts in relation to the management and operation of the
Leng Jiapu Contract and PetroChina Beijing Gas Pipeline Co.,
Ltd.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s purchases and revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services attributable to major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers
Percentage of revenue from sales of goods or
rendering of services attributable to
the Group’s largest customer
Percentage of revenue from sales of goods or
rendering of services attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers

48%

51%

18%

25%

PetroChina, a listed subsidiary of CNPC, is the Group’s largest
supplier and customer.

Save for the above, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the close directors owns
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company)
has an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.
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DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to RMB871,557.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are reviewed
and recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
during the Year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, as at 20 March 2018, none of the
Directors and their respective associates had any interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the businesses of
the Group (as would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules if each of them were a controlling shareholder).

Name of Director Name of company

Nature of interest
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Nature of competing business

BEEnR NEEH EEME BEEBME
Ling Xiao PetroChina Vice President Exploration, development and product and
EE A LA BlEH marketing of crude oil and natural gas
oM BRRARZ iR - BRI EAE RTS
HE
Zhao Zhongxun PetroChina Deputy General Manager  Exploration, development and product and
D FR A0 of Department of marketing of crude oil and natural gas
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Programming
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Name of Director Name of company Nature of interest Nature of competing business

EEnE NCIEE EmME BEEBME

Zhou Yuanhong PetroChina Deputy General Manager  Exploration, development and product and

BRI R EIAH of M&A Department marketing of crude oil and natural gas
BRES R AR Rl R RARZ MR - FEEEAEE RT5

HE
Miao Yong Natural Gas Sales Chief Accountant Marketing of natural gas
25 Branch Company BEETRD KARTIGHE

RAFHES LA

As the Board is independent of the board of the above entity,
the Company has therefore been capable of carrying on its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the above
business.

EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

This is no significant event affecting the Company after the date of
the statement of financial position.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Messrs KPMG, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for reappointment of Messrs KPMG
as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhao Yongqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2018
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Kunlun Energy Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kunlun
Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 224, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

° o

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZRHERE

BYZHMBRE
HEREFRERAFARRK
(REFZEZMA I BIRAA])

BR

A8 AT (R 2EFXIENF0R
EER4ABEMERERAR (CATEE ERR])
REWBAR (G [ E5E ) s MEERER - it
REVBREREN-_Z—tF+-A=+—HH
FEMBYRREREZA LFENGE 2E K
R RAEREIRNGERESRER  UREE
MIEHREAMT - BRIESARRME -

BPIRG  ZEGEAVBRREREEEGHE
RE((EESMAE ) BMAKEEMBREE
) ((BRUBHRELE D EEMHP SRR &
SER-_T—tF+-A=1T—HNREUBRR
K BEREEEZALFENGARVBRRALES
Reng YO BREB(QFEHDNIEBRRKZ

BREELR

BAEREEESTM ISR EEETER)
(TBEAEHEL D ETES - RAEZFELT
AEENEEDEARRE [ RBE A BRI ER
RAEFENEE] BoPIEE— M - REFLEES
SRR E R EE ST BIET A ([57R1)) A
RBEPHARERAMBEHRRNETHENERE
Ko BB BEEE - YO ETELERER
AR STRIR ) B BRER AT » HAIEIE - Fff
FIEGHRTRE TR MEE M ARMNETE
RIRHERE

T FFEHRE BERERARARA

O



o ©)

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEER &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

PSSt SR

RET FHRERBERMNEXAE - RREAH
REMBHREANEARAEENTR - BLFHEE
ERPIFEFBEFAMBRE MDA RETR
2 o BT SLELFRIEHEBIER

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Assessing impairment of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants

FERIER AR (TLNG D) in TR &YRE

The key audit matter
BEETEE

In view of the volatile LNG prices, management considered
that there were indicators that the Group’s property, plant
and equipment attributable to different LNG processing
plants may be impaired as at 31 December 2017.
HRINGERKE  EEERRR_T—tF+_H
=+—H EXBELNGINIMNYE  KFEREREIFE
BIERE -

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recognised impairment of RMB128 million and RMB201
million in respect of equipment and machinery and
construction in progress, respectively, in certain of the
Group ' s LNG processing plants.
BE_ZT—+F+_A=+—H > EKEHIBHLNGHN
ITREZEREBNERIESFIBRREARKE 1288
STEARE201B8T -

Management performs impairment assessments of the
Group’ s LNG processing plants whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of these assets may not be recoverable.

BEFEHABRARERT BEEEINGINTHAEEEE
HEAROE - EIRESHHETRER -

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy 3(e) on pages 101 to 102.
BB S EENL 16 K5 101 £ 102 Ef:T 3() 898,

FHBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RPN ETNMEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of LNG
processing plants included the following:

BAIFLEHE LNG il TRRERER FHEF B A MER ¢

° assessing management’s identification of cash-
generating unit (“CGU”), the allocation of assets to
each CGU and the methodology adopted in the
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts
with reference to our understanding of the Group’s
LNG processing business and the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

. BEEME S5EINGINITESNERREHEE
FPEAESK - it EEERSEABML((HE
EEBU])NRATE BREECERCELSNHE
A EARKANFTRBEERELESEEE

° assessing management’s cash flow forecast for
each CGU by comparing the key assumptions
adopted by management, in particular, forecast
LNG selling prices, forecast production costs and
expenses and the discount rate applied, with our
understanding, experience and knowledge of the
Group’s LNG processing business and the LNG
industry in general;

. RESERERANRR  BHERKLINGHE
B £EXANERARKANTE X - EHM
% BEEBEINGIITEBMINGTTERIEFETT

& HERSELABUMNTRRESTERIEL T

il ;
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Assessing impairment of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants

FHERIE R AR ([LNG 1) 50 T MR &9RE

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy 3(e) on pages 101 to 102.

FERAR A B IR 5t 16 X 58 101 2 102 17t 3(e) HI 8 &

The key audit matter

BERENSEE

Each LNG processing plant operated by the Group
has been identified as a separate CGU for impairment
assessment purposes. Management compares the carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment allocated to
each CGU with respective recoverable amount, which is
estimated by preparing a discounted cash flow forecast,
to determine the amount of impairment loss, if any. The
preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts involves
the exercise of significant management judgement in
determining the relevant inputs to the discounted cash flow
forecasts and the assumptions adopted therein, including
forecast LNG selling prices, forecast production costs and
expenses and the discount rates applied.
EETRERHE - B2 E&SSELNG NIRRT ABL
WERESEEEN  WEHLEYE  BEEREBHOREE
EEFRRREREAE L& eI 0 & 2T RERE
B(0A)  EERTRBReREEINBIET  BEES
HBZEERBENBIESREERARKINGHEER
HEMATMEMESEAARKANITRE - EHEKRH
B o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMPWET OAEEZEE

° comparing the forecast LNG selling prices with
external market data;

. HOREDRI L R Y FERI R SR LNG $HE B % BT I5 8UE
EITHE

° comparing key financial data, including revenue,
production costs and expenses, in the cash flow
forecasts with the budgets approved by the board
of directors;

. FORE RIS P MO RA B2 BUR (B WA - A ERCAH
ER) BAEFEEENTEETNEURETLE ¢

o assessing whether the discount rates applied in the
cash flow forecasts were within the range of those
adopted by other companies in the same industry;

. FHERER AT RANTREELRHEITEANALR
AIEANEESEEN
o comparing the actual results for the current year with

management’s estimates in their cash flow forecasts
prepared in the previous year to assess the historical
accuracy of the management’s forecasting process;

. BAFERNERAERE F—FEENRENGTD
EREMETETHE - AL E 12 B TR /9 £ 7
M
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The key audit matter

BHRESE

We identified assessing impairment of LNG processing
plants as a key audit matter because the impairment
assessments involve the exercise of significant
management judgement, particularly in forecasting LNG
selling prices, production costs and expenses and in
determining appropriate discount rates, all of which could
be subject to management bias in their selection.
HIRERNHTEEREEL ERHE - THREHHARK
LNG HE B - £EKAMNE AN TRAIA LR E @O
BE - QibREAHEREARXIIEEEBRANTE -
BAPIRRE ST LNG I LR 8V B E RN F R AR E T E 18 -

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy 3(e) on pages 101 to 102.

BRI ERZENTAE 16 X E 101 = 102 Ef15t 3(e) 89S 1B %

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BPNETNAEEZEE

o performing sensitivity analyses of the key
assumptions adopted by management, including
forecast LNG selling prices, forecast production
costs and expenses and the discount rates applied,
to assess what changes thereto, either individually
or collectively, would result in a different conclusion
being reached and assessing whether there were
any indicators of management bias in the selection
of key assumptions; and
HRENRPOHZEERERR - BEARKINGIHE
B FEXNSMERULKANTRE - E1TH
RS - NAHE AR BRRE B EEIOEA R Y
BERARERNTERAEETESBRBERRNBE
PRLGHFEEAEEEBRANTR : &

° assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of LNG processing plants with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

. RIFRITEHERNER - 5 EREHEETE
HET BB ING I TROBERH K EE -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED

FEMBRRREBETRELIMER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S

REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wilson Wai Shun Lee.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

20 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—ZT—+tF —ERF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
BiEE AREBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B 5 38(b)
Revenue WA 6 88,706 70,400
Other gains, net Habzs - HE8 7 1,335 674
Interest income FLE WA 8 211 300
Purchases, services and others FREE - RIS M E A (64,145) (48,312)
Employee compensation costs 1E B &R A 9 (4,329) (3,847)
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation WE - BREREE (5,651) (5,690)
Impairment loss on property, M - BB R&E
plant and equipment BEEE 16 (604) (3,913)
Impairment loss on accounts JRE WA B 7 % EL A P MR IR
and other receivables REEE (184) -
Selling, general and administrative expenses 4% « —RIEMEIEEH (3,264) (2,912)
Taxes other than income taxes BRETISEILASN 2 I8 (441) (525)
Interest expenses FEZH 10 (1,145) (651)
Share of profits less losses of: FEAE ST RE1E -
— Associates - Bt R 767 605
— Joint ventures -aAME 19 224 162
Profit before income tax expense BRETEHE HANER 11 11,480 6,291
Income tax expense Fri5HiE A 13 (3,531) (3,200)
Profit for the year FERER 7,949 3,091
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2wk -
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HignsHoEEian
to profit or loss: ZIEH :
— Exchange differences on translation - P mERBRE
of financial statements, net of nil tax, of: ZEHZERE
MBRETHIAE -
— Subsidiaries -MWEBAA 9 66
— Associates - BN A (18) (122)
— Joint ventures -BEhHE (66) 47
— Fair value loss on available-for-sale -AitHEEREEL
financial assets, net of tax NEEE -
MErBiIE R (139) 272)
Other comprehensive income Hig2mks (214) (281)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEKZEHATE 7,735 2,810
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Fe2EWER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
BaE AREBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B 5 38(b)
Profit for the year attributable to: FAEGERT -
— Owners of the Company Y /NI) 4,760 666
— Non-controlling interests — FEfE S s 3,189 2,425
7,949 3,091
Total comprehensive income for the year FAELEERERTE
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company Y /NI 4,601 477
— Non-controlling interests — FERE S s 3,134 2,333
7,735 2,810
Earnings per share for profit attributable KRR RIRREREF] 2
to owners of the Company & 14
— Basic (RMB cent) -ER(ARES) 58.97 8.25
— Diluted (RMB cent) -#E(ARED) 56.21 8.25

The notes on pages 88 to 224 form part of these financial % 88 £224 BN AR R 2 — &7  F
statements. Details of dividends payable to owners of the — PUEMBEN AR BIBERABEFHITHNHITES5 o
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note

15.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HEMBIRAR

As at 31 December 2017 R=—Z—+F+—-_H=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
BiEE AREBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B 5 38(b)
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 16 95,735 87,859
Advanced operating lease payments T EEHER 17 3,782 3,833
Investments in associates REtE N R 2 18E 18 3,515 2,803
Investments in joint ventures REBELEZIRE 19 1,918 1,285
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 21 352 457
Intangible and other non-current assets | N EMIERSEE 22 1,173 2,424
Deferred tax assets RETIEE E 32 1,188 1,050
107,663 99,711
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 23 1,559 1,242
Accounts receivable JEUBR R 24 2,846 2,958
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ENZREEMREEE 25 6,640 5,858
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMEEEHBEER 26 21,850 19,165
32,895 29,223
Total assets REE 140,558 128,934
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HEMBIRAR

As at 31 December 2017 A=—ZE—+F+-HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
BRE ARBEERT ARKBEER
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B ¥ 38(b)
Equity R
Capital and reserves attributable ARATBRREMBARR
to owners of the Company &
Share capital %N 27 65 65
Retained earnings EIEEF 28 25,280 21,836
Other reserves HAnf e 14,680 15,951
40,025 37,852
Non-controlling interests FEEFIE RS 25,600 24,043
Total eqUtY e R 65625 61895
Liabilities =V
Current liabilities i =R
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities JERTRRF R ST AR 29 26,569 26,784
Income tax payable FERTFTSHL 32 495 725
Other tax payable E AT 424 680
Short-term borrowings MEEE 30 11,805 16,585
Obligations under finance leases RbE &R 33 158 166
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 39451 44940
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Long-term borrowings REEE 30 29,296 15,920
Convertible bonds AR E 5 31 3,230 3,156
Deferred tax liabilities BETIEA G 32 1,075 907
Obligations under finance leases BB EAE 33 193 334
Other liabilities HiaE 1,688 1,782
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Sodeey 2209
Total liabilities BwERE 74,933 67,039
Total equity and liabilities BEkEEREE 140,558 128,934
Net current liabilities FREBEEFE (6,556) (16,717)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAE 101,107 83,994
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson20 M -ZE—/\F=A -+ REEEFS# EL XE T

March 2018.

Zhao Yongqi
K

Executive Director #I7TE %

The notes on pages 88 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.

% -

Miao Yong
BB

Executive Director #I7TE %
%88 E 224 HMMI B AT HEREK 2 — 85 °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEHEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATRRE

Share Retained Other
capital earnings reserves Sub-total

ks REBR  HbRk Nt

Non-
controlling Total
interests equity

FEOMER  BRAE

Note RMB'million  RMB’million  RMB'million ~ RMB'million  RMB’million ~ RMB'million
i3 AR¥EER ARMEER ARWEER ARWEER AR¥EEn ARMEER

Balances at 31 December 2015, R-E-EE+-F=T-RLH

as previously reported (MBEE5) 65 22,083 29,628 51,756 22,55 74312
Business combination under common - R T2 £HAH

cortrol 1), 380) - 8 1,354 1,443 1,385 2698
Balances at 1 January 2016, RZF-NE-A-REH(E)

as restated 65 22,152 30,982 53,199 23,941 77,140
Changes in equity for 2016; ZE- A EERSE.

Profit for the year ERgH - 666 - 666 2425 3,091

Other comprehensive income Eth2EkE - - (189) (189) ©2) (281)
Total comprehensive income EnrEbEeE

for the year - 666 (189) 47 2,333 2810
Transfer between reserves FlEhER - (809) 609 - - -
Final dividend for 2015 “E-RERERE - 407) - (407) - (407)
Lapsed share options EANERE - 34 (34) - - -
Acquistion of PetroChina Kunlun Gas SR RIBERIMRAB AT

Co., Ltd. (‘Kunlun Gas’) ([EmiR)) 3(a) - - (15,612) (15,612) - (15,612)
Issuance of convertiole bonds BuEnEs 31 - - 195 1% - 1%
Acquisition of subsicleries WeEELE - - - - 2 2
Disposal of subsidlaries RENBLH - - - - (1) (1)

Dividend to non-controling interests ~ BASER I i85 2R &
Capital contributions from FiEttER TE
non-controling interests

2,608 2609

308 308

- 08 (484 (15824

REE-RETZR=T-BES

Balances at 31 December 2016

65 2183 16,91 37,852

24,043 61,89
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEREEHER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE O
Attributable to owners of the Company
AAARFER Non-
Share Retained Other controlling Total
capital earnings reserves Sub-total interests equity

ks REBN AR NOFEHMER  BRAE
Note RMB'million  RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB’million

it ARBEER ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER ARWEER ARWAER

=

Balances at 31 December 2016,
as previously reported

Business combination under common
control

R-2-AFTZR=t-RER

(JE25) 65 21,671 14,588 36,324 22,516 58,900
KREHT 2 ZHBAa%
2[b), 38(0) - 165 1,363 1,528 1,467 2,99

Balances at 1 January 2017, R-F—tF-A-RER(E)

as restated 65 21,836 15,951 37,852 24,043 61,895
Changes in equity for 2017: ZE-tEERSE.

Profit for the year ERgEH - 4,760 - 4,760 3,189 7,949

Other comprehensive income Eth2ENE - - (159) (159) (55) (214)
Total comprehensive income EnrEbEeE

for the year - 4,760 (159) 4,601 3,134 1,135
Transfer between reserves fERER = (833) 833 - - -
Final dividend for 2016 “E-ERERE 15 = (522) - (522) - (522)
Lapsed share options EXNERE - 39 (39) = = -
Acouisition of PetioChina Jingteng ~~ WEHRRRERIAAR

NG Co, Ld. (ngiang Co’) ~ BBAT(7EAT) 205, 38 - - (18 (1908 - (1,906
Acquistion from non-controling W ER e

interests - - - - (16) (16)
Dividend to non-controling interests ~ BH\JE25 1R 2R 8 - - - - (3,029) (3,029)
Capital contrioutions from R 2 TE

non-controling interests - - - - 1,634 1,634
Disposal of subsiciaries G - - - - (166) (166)

- (1,316) (1,112) (2,428) (1,577) (4,005)

Balances at 31 December 2017 W=E-tE+ZA=t-RBkk 65 25,280 14,680 40,025 25,600 65,625

The notes on pages 88 to 224 form part of these financial 5 88 & 224 B WM i A #REK 2 — 85 ©

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GRBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—ZT—+tF —ERF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
BiEE ARBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B 5 38(b)
Cash flows from operating activities REEBFEBZRERE
Profit for the year F N F 7,949 3,091
Adjustments for: FEE -
Income tax expense FriSti& A 3,531 3,200
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation E -« BRENREE 5,651 5,690
Share of profits less losses of associates JE (R A Bl F R B 18 (767) (605)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures EhEERFRTBER (224) (162)
Impairment loss on property, YIZE -~ BB R
plant and equipment BEBE 16 604 3,913
Net losses on disposals of property, HEME - WEREEZ
plant and equipment i be s - 35
Net exchange (gains)/losses &5 (a) /EiRFsE (609) 415
Interest income B U A (211) (300)
Interest expense FELH 1,145 651
Changes in working capital: LEESEH
Accounts receivable FEUTBR K 112 (171)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets AR AR H A RENE E (580) (250)
Inventories FE (317) 30
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ER R K FEET A& 997 1,648
Other tax payable Efth eI FR IR (256) (50)
Cash generated from operations REEECHE 17,025 17,135
Income tax paid ERFTER (3,738) (3,004)
Net cash generated from operating REEREEZESFE
activities 13,287 14,131

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z =%

—tF+=A=+—ALLFE
O

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
BRE ARBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B =¥ 38(b)
Cash flows from investing activities REEKFBzRERE
Dividends received from associates B E QA RIE IR B 329 74
Dividends received from joint ventures BEEPERM RS 160 7
Acquisitions of available-for-sale BARHEEeRMERE
financial assets - (17)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W B Bt B A A) (1,547) (15,564)
Acquisition of joint ventures WEEEPE (637) -
Capital contributions to associates MEERRNEE (207) 32)
Capital contributions to a joint venture MEETEETE - (15)
Proceeds from disposal of advance MEEMEEEER 2
operating lease payments Frigsa 139 66
Proceeds from disposal of associates HEBE R ZFTSRIE 10 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE  mERBEY
plant and equipment FriS A 422 601
(Decrease)/increase in amount due FE U A R IR
from an intermediate holding company CR /ile] (6) 3,389
Capital expenditure BEARE (12,330) (9,231)
Interest received 2R & 185 306
Loans to an associate BERF— F‘ﬁﬂé"p*é’& (173) -
Loans repaid by joint ventures BEPEEEBENR - 56
Loans repaid by third parties FE=FEEER 162 28
Net cash used in investing activities BRAXBRAZREFE (13,493) (20,332
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHRME2RASRE
Capital contributions from non-controlling JEIE SIS T E
interests 1,433 303
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BENARRRRERE 28 (522) (407)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IR I R AR B (5,205) (711)
Increase in borrowings BEEMN 26,377 17,197
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (17,182) (7,782)
Interest paid B E (1,438) (947)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds 277 R[22 ({&E% 2 Fi{55 KIE - 3,348
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid EfNRERE TH%K%*B (146) (146)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid &1 Vﬁéﬁﬁﬁfﬂ% F 20D (24) 31)
Acquisition from non-controlling interests ) FEE 1) 1 A 2 U B (16) -
Net cash generated from REEBREE
financing activities ZHREFE 3,277 10,824
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ReERBESEHEERE ZEM 3,071 4,623
Cash and cash equivalents at1 January R—A—AZHER
HEEEEB 19,165 14,380
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EZRE B E& (386) 162
Cash and cash equivalents RT+ZA=+—HAZ2HER
at 31 December HEeLEEH 26 21,850 19,165

The notes on pages 88 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kunlun Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its ultimate holding company is China National Petroleum
Corporation (“CNPC”) which is a company established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The immediate
holding company of the Company is Sun World Limited
(“Sun World”), which is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. On 18 December 2008, PetroChina
Company Limited (“PetroChina”), a subsidiary of CNPC,
acquired 100% equity interest in Sun World. Since then,
PetroChina has become an intermediate holding company
of the Company. As at 31 December 2017, PetroChina
indirectly owned 58.33% (2016: 58.33%) equity interest in
the Company.

The address of the Company’s principal office and
registered office are 39/F, 118 Connaught Road West,
Hong Kong and Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are the exploration and production
of crude oil and natural gas in the PRC, the Republic
of Kazakhstan (“Kazakhstan”), the Sultanate of Oman
(“Oman”), the Republic of Peru (“Peru”), the Kingdom
of Thailand (“Thailand”) and the Republic of Azerbaijan
(“Azerbaijan”), the sales of natural gas, liquefied natural gas
(“LNG”) processing and terminal business and transmission
of natural gas in the PRC.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiE=ZE—t+tF+=A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) had two (2016: two)
major production sharing arrangements in the PRC and
Azerbaijan. On 1 July 1996, the Group entered into an
oil production sharing contract (the “Xinjiang Contract”)
to develop and produce crude oil in Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous Region, the PRC. On 30 December 1997, the
Group entered into another oil production sharing contract
(the “Leng Jiapu Contract”) to develop and produce crude
oil in Liaohe, Liaoning Province, the PRC. In 2002, the
Group acquired the third production sharing arrangement
to develop and produce crude oil in Azerbaijan. The
Xinjiang Contract expired on 31 August 2016. Further
details in relation to the Leng Jiapu contracts and the
Group’s share of results and net assets in this arrangement
are shown in Note 35.

The oil operations in the PRC are conducted through
production sharing arrangements with PetroChina,
whereas the oil operations in Azerbaijan are conducted
through production sharing arrangements with both
PetroChina and a third party. The Group is entitled to a
fixed percentage of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of those oil operations in accordance with the respective oil
production sharing contracts entered into with PetroChina
and the third party.

— A& (48)
RIE—+F+_A=+—H ARFRHE
WEBAR (FHE [ AEE ) EPE RAEFE

BM(ZF =N M)BEERERD KL -
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FEARRREERB NR-_TTE_F A&
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RENEERB - FEARER T —RF
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BRAEERZ LG 2 RERFEES
FITBIFESS ©

AEERFPRZEBES  HEBaRTEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 3(y) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 comprise the Group and
the Group’s interest in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for available-for-sale financial assets which
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out in Note 3(h).

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiE=ZE—t+tF+=A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 5.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB6,556 million. Notwithstanding the
net current liabilities of the Group at 31 December
2017, the Group’s consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis
because the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) are of the opinion that the Group would
have adequate funds to meet its obligation, as and
when they fall due, having regard to the following:

2 HEREEE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

(i) the Group expected to obtain credit facility
from China Petroleum Finance Company
Limited (“CP Finance”) amounting to RMB15
billion. On 12 March 2018, the Group
obtained the credit facility of RMB15 billion
from CP Finance;

(ii) the Group expects to generate operating
cash inflows in the future; and

(iii) the Directors consider that the Group could
obtain financing from various sources of
funding.

Consequently, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

On 28 September 2017, Kunlun Gas, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
acquisition agreement with PetroChina. Pursuant
to the acquisition agreement, Kunlun Gas agreed
to purchase and PetroChina agreed to sell 51%
equity interest in Jingtang Co. at a consideration of
approximately RMB1,547 million. The consideration
will be settled in RMB and subject to adjustment by
the gains or losses during the transition period, as
defined in the acquisition agreement.

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE —=

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The acquisition was completed on 14 December
2017 and Jingtang Co. has become a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group since
then. As PetroChina and the Group are ultimately
controlled by CNPC, the acquisition of Jingtang
Co. was regarded as business combination under
common control. To consistently apply the Group’s
accounting policy for common control combination,
the acquisition has been accounted for based on
the principles of merger accounting as set out in
Accounting Guideline 5, Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations (“AG 5”) issued
by the HKICPA. The financial statements of the
Group have been prepared using the merger basis
of accounting as if the current group structure had
been in existence throughout the periods presented.
The final consideration was RMB1,906 million,
including the gains during the transition period
amounting to approximately RMB359 million. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group paid
RMB1,547 million to PetroChina.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEETHE(8)

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
Notes 3(0) and 3(p) depending on the nature of the
liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiE=ZE—t+tF+=A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 3(h)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture (see Note 3(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses.

A listing of the Group’s principal subsidiaries is set
out in Note 41.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or Company and other parties contractually
agree to share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE —E—+F+-_F=+—HItEE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EEEUR ()
(CONTINUED)
(b)  Associates and joint ventures (Continued) (b) HEATRESELE(E)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment.

Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised as profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised as other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
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the carrying amount of the investment under the RE#EED  ZSRIESEEALSE
equity method together with the Group’s long-term B E AR NEELEFREZ—
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s BB o

net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017

AEBRBENRREELE ZER
PELE 2 RERBE DL A KB
B B st R - HER
ERERSCHEREE RERME
RABRSN  MBEREBER - REHRE
1B BTN B A RERR ©

HRBE AR IR ERRREELE
ZE RZMA REEETEE
HEtE o i - WEHEBIRETIEA
BE o



3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

° o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE
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(CONTINUED)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 3(h)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated at cost less impairment losses. Impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount.

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that the investments in
associates and joint ventures may be impaired or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased. If any such indication
exists, the investment’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount is the greater of its
fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the investment. Where an investment
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of investments that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

(b)
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEETHE(8)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Associates and joint ventures (Continued) (b) HMEATRESELE(E)
- Recognition of impairment losses - fER B E R

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or ERENHEMBREELSN
loss if the carrying amount of an investment, ZEEERREATKE S
or the cash-generating unit to which it B EgeBatERRER
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. B MIReELBEMNERZR
Impairment losses recognised in respect of BEEEgETUSE  5EBE
cash-generating units are allocated first to SRERSEABM(H—4
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill Biy) 2 EAEEREE
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or N BIFRRE A (S —4E
group of units) and then, to reduce the BR)PHMEEZREE -
carrying amount of the other assets in the BEEFAETSREENE
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, 18 Bl A B 2= 88 & B A (0
except that the carrying value of an asset will AEtE) sk FERAEMAEIA
not be reduced below its individual fair value JE) °

less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses - P[] et B B AR
An impairment loss is reversed if there has i AYEEE E AT B & 58 2 fh st
been a favourable change in the estimates HIREEES) - Blg#LE#H
used to determine the recoverable amount. ZREEE o TR E 2 REE
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to B UREBTFEIEER
the asset’s carrying amount that would have BEEBETREERETECEE
been determined had no impairment loss FREEAMR o FTEE 2 R EE
been recognised in prior years. Reversals BRERELR c FEFAER
of impairment losses are credited to profit =
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
Listings of the Group’s principal associates AEEFEBERTREEDR
and joint ventures are shown in Notes 42 and X2RBEHRHERMFE2 R
43, respectively. 43 °
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(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Accounting for production sharing contracts

Production sharing contracts constitute joint
operations. The Group shall recognise in relation to
its interest in joint operations:

(i)

(V)

v)

its assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any
liabilities incurred jointly;

its revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operations;

its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operations; and

its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly.

Foreign currencies

(i)

(i)

Functional currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The Company’s
functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

(c)

(d)

EEBER(8)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE —E—+F+-_F=+—HItEE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3  EEZFBUR ()
(CONTINUED)
(d)  Foreign currencies (Continued) (d)  HpEE (&)
(i) Translation of foreign currencies (i) IEEE (E)

(Continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that RBRTIRAAINE BB E
are measured in terms of historical cost ZIEBEERAE BRS
in a foreign currency are translated using EZ@%?@;@? o AN EHEIL
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the A TFEINEZIFEEEER
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and BREEEATEERAZEX
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies "mE .

that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are
translated into presentation currency at
the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into presentation currency at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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(CONTINUED)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties (Note 3(f)) and construction in progress,
are initially recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost where it is probable that
they will generate future economic benefits. Cost
represents the purchase price of the asset and other
costs incurred to bring the asset into existing use.
For construction in progress, cost comprises direct
costs of construction as well as interest charges,
and foreign exchange differences on related
borrowed funds to the extent that they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest charges, during the
periods of construction. Construction in progress is
transferred to property, plant and equipment when
the asset is substantially ready for its intended use.
Subsequent to their initial recognition, property, plant
and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, depletion and amortisation (including
any impairment).

Depreciation to write off the cost of each asset,
other than oil and gas properties (Note 3(f)), to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives is
calculated using the straight-line method.

The Group uses the following useful lives for
depreciation purposes:

Buildings 40 years or over the
remaining period of
respective leases
whichever is the shorter

- Natural gas 10-30 years
pipelines

- Equipment and  4-30 years
machinery

- Motor vehicles 4-14 years

- Others 5-12 years

No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until the assets are completed and ready
for use.

ITEE

(e)

st BUR (48)

3% - BERKRE

WY - BELERE(BREABEX
AR (30 AR AERETIZ) #
KRAJBEEAKLEN D - HEUIPmRMA
ARERA M BIRARALR ° KAIEE
EZBEBNEEEZERRARESL
ZEAMEAR - MERTIZEM S - KA
BREEEHRNERZENSE - FE
X th R AR S B X R 2 H e
RZERZRE - HEIRENELA(E
BE G - BEAYE  BE &R
B - AR HERIR - W% - BB K
REERARRITE - BRENEH
(B EERE) ASK -

FENRBEATEARE R A
ERFIMHEREE (LB RRA
RN FIFE3(M)) 2 KA ZEHF
PREME -

REBERANATAIERFHAERN
5

- BF AFHEHEZ
FR T HARR (LA
BN EB%E)
- KAREE 10-304F

- RN 4-30%F

- =2 4-144F
- Hib 5-124F

HETREAT T MR RALEMAAE
RITE -

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @



o ©)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE —E—+F+-_F=+—HItEE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEETHE(8)

(CONTINUED)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values and useful lives of assets are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties (Note 3(f)) and construction in progress,
are reviewed for possible impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the carrying amount of a cash generating
unit exceeds the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use, which is the estimated
net present value of future cash flows to be derived
from the cash generating unit.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant
and equipment are determined by reference to their
carrying amounts and are recorded in profit or loss.

Interest and other costs on borrowings to finance
the construction of property, plant and equipment
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. Costs for repair and maintenance
activities are expensed as incurred except for
costs of components that result in improvements
or betterments which are capitalised as part of
property, plant and equipment and depreciated over
their useful lives.
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(CONTINUED)

U]

Oil and gas properties

The successful efforts method of accounting is used
for oil and gas exploration and production activities.
Under this method, all costs for development
wells, support equipment and facilities, and proved
mineral interests in oil and gas properties are
capitalised. Geological and geophysical costs are
expensed when incurred. Costs of exploratory wells
are capitalised as construction in progress pending
determination of whether the wells find proved
oil and gas reserves. Proved oil and gas reserves
are the estimated quantities of crude oil and
natural gas, which by analysis of geoscience and
engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable
certainty to be economically producible from a given
date forward, from known reservoirs, and under
existing economic conditions, operating methods,
and government regulation before the time at which
contracts providing the right to operate expire,
unless evidence indicates that renewal is reasonably
certain regardless of whether the estimate is a
deterministic estimate or probabilistic estimate.
Existing economic conditions include prices and
costs at which economic producibility from a
reservoir is to be determined. The price shall be the
average price during the 12-month period before
the ending date of the period covered by the report,
determined as an unweighted arithmetic average
of the first-day-of-the-month price for each month
within such period unless prices are defined by
contractual arrangements, excluding escalations
based upon future conditions. The cost shall be that
prevailing at the end of the period.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESTFHHR (E)
(CONTINUED)
] Oil and gas properties (Continued) 1] BHERRARYE ()

Exploratory wells in areas not requiring major
capital expenditure are evaluated for economic
viability within one year of completion of drilling.
The related well costs are expensed as dry holes
if it is determined that such economic viability is
not attained. Otherwise, the related well costs are
reclassified to oil and gas properties and are subject
to impairment review (Note 3(e)). For exploratory
wells that are found to have economically viable
reserves in areas where major capital expenditure
will be required before production can commence,
the related well costs remain capitalised only if
additional drilling is underway or firmly planned.
Otherwise the related well costs are expensed as
dry holes. The Group does not have any significant
costs of unproved properties capitalised in oil and
gas properties.

The Ministry of Land and Resources in China issues
production licenses to applicants on the basis of the
reserve reports approved by relevant authorities.

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortised
at the field level based on the units of production
method. Units of production rates are based on oil
and gas reserves estimated to be recoverable from
existing facilities based on the current terms of the
Group’s production licenses. The Group’s oil and
gas reserves estimates include only crude oil and
condensate and natural gas which management
believes can be reasonably produced within the
current terms of these production licenses.
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(CONTINUED)

(9) Intangible assets

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains or losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EEZBR(E)
(CONTINUED)
(9) Intangible assets (Continued) (90 EEEEGE)
(i)  Other intangible assets (i) EBEMBEEEE

Other intangible assets that are acquired
by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses. Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while
their useful lives are assessed to be
indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life
of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed
annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of
change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite
lives as set out above.

The carrying amount of each intangible
asset is reviewed annually and adjusted for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount and is recognised
in profit or loss. The recoverable amount
is measured as the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use which is the
estimated net present value of future cash
flows to be derived from the assets.
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(CONTINUED)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss
as incurred. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any dividends or interest earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out in Notes 3(r)(iv) and (v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to
hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses.

(h)
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEETHE(8)

(CONTINUED)

(h)

(i)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-
for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception
to this, investments in equity securities that do
not have a quoted price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot
otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses.

Dividend income from equity securities and interest
income from debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method are recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policies set out in Notes
3(r)(iv) and (v), respectively. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of debt securities are also recognised in profit
or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.
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(CONTINUED)

@i

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost
or valuation of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset,
the life of the asset, as set out in Note 3(e).
Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in Note 3(e). Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESTFHHR (E)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Leased assets (Continued) (i) HEEE (E)

()

(k)

(ii) Operating lease charges (Continued)

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of lease term.

Inventories

Inventories include natural gas, liquefied petroleum
gas, compressed natural gas, materials for
natural gas pipelines, crude oil and marina club
debentures and wet berths held for sales which
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories is primarily determined
by the weighted average cost method, which
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads, but
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the cost of completion and selling
expenses.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of
an asset or a group of assets, where the customer
is able to specify the major structural elements
of the design. The accounting policy for contract
revenue is set out in Note 3(r)(iii). When the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
at the end of the reporting period. When it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
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(CONTINUED)

(k)

U

(m)

Construction contracts (Continued)

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in
the statement of financial position as the “Gross
amount due from customers for contract work” (as
an asset) or the “Gross amount due to customers
for contract work” (as a liability), as applicable.
Progress billings not yet paid by the customer are
included under “Accounts receivable”. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are
presented as “Advances from customers” under
“Accounts payable and accrued liabilities”.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision
made for impairment of these receivables. Such
provision for impairment is established if there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables. The factors the Group
considers when assessing whether an account
receivable is impaired include but not limited to
significant financial difficulties of the customer,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation and default or delinquency
in payments. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where
the number of shares that would be issued on
conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an
equity component.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EEZBR(E)

(CONTINUED)

(m) Convertible bonds (Continued) (m) TEBRES (E)
At initial recognition the liability component of the EA%WATJEE - ATERESNBEE
convertible bonds is measured as the present Bszi)(ﬂg&Zﬁi%fkl%%ﬂﬁ&ﬁ@w
value of the future interest and principal payments, H—ﬂﬁ%%%ﬂ’]*ﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁ A%
discounted at the market rate of interest applicable EITIREHIRER FriS SRR 1B
at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities NiptER AR ijﬁ"/\%EE’JEﬂ%%E
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess WRAERE D - FARITES S/
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised TEMNRZEAZEMERIEN LGS
as the liability component is recognised as the EZ8BERERED -
equity component. Transaction costs that relate to
the issue of a compound financial instrument are
allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
The liability component is subsequently carried at BEDDEBIZEHKARTER - LB
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in %E‘B PR E S AR SR Ty
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated REBNEEFE - #afloene
using the effective interest method. The equity HRESERRERR  BE2EHFE
component is recognised in the convertible bond B ER AL o
equity reserve until either the bond is converted or
redeemed.
If the bond is converted, the convertible bond equity WEHEER - AlERESEREE
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the BRI REAEREREERZR
liability component at the time of conversion, is AEBRGOREEREEITRONK
transferred to share capital and share premium as B - MEHFWER - AR E A5
consideration for the shares issued. If the bond is mREESEEEARTRET -
redeemed, the convertible bond equity reserve is
released directly to retained earnings.

(n)  Cash and cash equivalents n) BERREEEIEH
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank ReEMREEEBERRERITAFE
and on hand, deposits held with banks and highly Re  FTHRIRTT ZEFUA K A] BE Ry
liquid investments that are readily convertible into R MERE 2 BT - WA IRE
known amounts of cash and which are subject to BEEZFRRLRNEAR=EARNE
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been Hzmnalrs -
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(0) Accounts payable (o) FEMTERRX
Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair FERER R TSR A T EER - HBR

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017

REBRNZ I B HR AT E -



3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

° o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiE=ZE—t+tF+=A=+—HILFE

(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has unconditional rights to defer
settlements of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

Taxation

Income tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE —E—+F+-_F=+—HItEE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 BEEEBUER (8)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Taxation (Continued) (@ BEE)

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date
in the countries where the Group, associates and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from initial recognition of
goodwill. The deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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(CONTINUED)

(a)

)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

The Group also incurs various other taxes and levies
that are not income tax. “Taxes other than income
taxes”, which form part of operating expenses,
primarily comprise resource tax, urban construction
tax, education surcharges and business tax.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the
profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sales of goods

Sales are recognised upon delivery of
products and customer acceptance, net
of sales taxes and discounts. Revenue
is recognised only when the Group has
transferred to the buyers significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities,
and when the amount of revenue and the
costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably
and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EEZBR(E)
(CONTINUED)
(7  Revenue recognition (Continued) M WAERGE)

(i)  Rendering of services (i) PR
Revenue from the rendering of services REIREH AR IR IR 15 B
is recognised in the profit or loss upon FEHEANER - BROEKE
performance of the services. No revenue BEARE - REMRBSH A aEM
is recognised if there are significant FEFEERTHABEZ - =
uncertainties regarding recovery of the e MR S B ER K AT
consideration due, the possible return of RERSEHETEMB AT - BIfE
service being rendered, or when the amount T wERRE
of revenue and the costs incurred or to be
incurred in respect of the transaction cannot
be measured reliably.

(i)  Contract revenue i) EAPA
When the outcome of a construction WRERRE N ERIEA] S
contract can be estimated reliably, revenue fhat - WATERATERB ST
is recognised using the percentage of EHER - 2REZFEARL
completion method, measured by reference EHEZE KNG R 2
to the percentage of contract costs incurred FFEHKAERER DLEE o
to date to estimated total contract costs for
the contract.
When the outcome of a construction MREE N 2 ERARET S
contract cannot be estimated reliably, fhEt - WAERAgERE 2 &
revenue is recognised only to the extent of R AT R ©
contract costs incurred that it is probable will
be recoverable.

(iv)  Dividends (ivy K&
- Dividend income from unlisted - FLEMEE ZREBA

investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment
is established.

- Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.
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(CONTINUED)

r

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time
apportioned basis that takes into account
the effective yield on the assets.

Government grants

Government grants are the gratuitous monetary
assets or non-monetary assets that the Group
receives from the government, excluding capital
injection by the government as an investor. Special
funds such as investment grants allocated by the
government, if clearly defined in official documents
as part of “capital reserve” are dealt with as capital
contributions, and not regarded as government
grants.

Government grants are recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group is able to comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Government grants
in the form of monetary assets are recorded based
on the amount received or receivable, whereas non-
monetary assets are measured at fair value.

Government grants received in relation to assets
are recorded as deferred income, and recognised
evenly in profit or loss over the assets’ useful lives.
Government grants received in relation to revenue
are recorded as deferred income, and recognised
as income in future periods as compensation when
the associated future expenses or losses arise; or
directly recognised as income in the current period
as compensation for past expenses or losses.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESTEHHR (E)
(CONTINUED)
(t  Provisions L BE

(u)

Provisions for environmental restoration,
restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: (i) the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events;
(ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and (iii) reliable
estimates of the amount can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Retirement benefit plans

The Group contributes to various employee
retirement benefit plans organised by PRC
municipal and provincial governments under which
it is required to make monthly contributions to these
plans at prescribed rates for its employees in the
PRC. The relevant PRC municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of existing and future retired
employees of the Group in the PRC. The Group has
similar retirement benefit plans for its employees
in its overseas operations. Contributions to these
PRC and overseas plans are charged to expense
as incurred. The Group currently has no additional
material obligations outstanding for the payment
of retirement and other post retirement benefits of
employees in the PRC or overseas other than the
monthly contributions described above.
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(CONTINUED)

v)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted,
including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price); excluding the
impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and including the
impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to save). Non-market
performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total amount expensed
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital for the shares issued.
When the options expire or are lapsed, the equity
amount recognised in the employee share-based
compensation reserve is released directly to retained
earnings.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(w) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family,

U)

(i)

(i)

(b) An ent

is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s

parent.

ity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

U)

(i)

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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(CONTINUED)

(w)

()

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vil A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management and Executive Directors for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EEZBR(E)
(CONTINUED)
(yy Changes in presentation currency and (y) ZESIE¥HESTBRES
accounting policies
(a) Change in presentation currency (a) ZEIEKEE
The previous consolidated financial REEFOEGZE T BRE—

statements of the Group have been
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”).
Having considered that most of the Group’s

ELX/%TE((/%TEJ)E@J %%’
BT -REARBNEER
KRSR1Z K’EIK*B"“%LA

transactions are denominated and settled in AREFEREE  EFE2R
RMB following the Company’s acquisition of y= \,Zv?/c:\ﬁﬁ“#&i'%ﬁﬂﬁliﬂ
Kunlun Gas in 2016, the Board of Directors E¥HBTEARBES

considers that the change of presentation
currency from HK$ to RMB in the
consolidated financial statements enables
the shareholders of the Company to have a
more accurate picture of the Group’s financial
performance.

The change in presentation currency have

ﬁ]%%ﬂ?ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁ%
FITSR3R -

2INEREFHENEM - 1

been applied retrospectively. The comparative BAEVBRRPHOLEERETE
figures in the consolidated financial KRB THEAARKE - Ho
statements were translated from HK$ to REFEMBRARFNEE R

RMB using the applicable closing rates for
assets and liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position and applicable
average rates that approximated to actual
rates for items in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Share capital,
share premium and reserves were translated
at the exchange rate at the date when the
respective amounts were determined (i.e.
historical exchange rates).
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(CONTINUED)

(y) Changes in presentation currency and
accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The HKICPA has issued several amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of
these, the following amendments are relevant
to the Group:

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

o Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement
of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

° Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
taxes: Recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses

None of these developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented.
However, additional disclosure has been
included in Note 26(b) to satisfy the new
disclosure requirements introduced by the
amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash
flows: Disclosure Initiative, which require
entitles to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4 MR EERSR T AAFEE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4.1

Financial risk factors

Exposure to foreign exchange rate risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group is also exposed to
equity price risk arising from its equity investments
in other entities. The Group’s exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

Risk management is carried out by the management
of the Group under policies approved by the Board
of Directors. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

4.1

M EREER

AEE—REBHBESH Y RINER
% EERRLRBE S RBAE -
AEBTAEREMERNBARE
R A A E R R o REBAIEZ
FRBOBERARAEEANEEZS
JeR\ e ) B 755 L i 5 3R AR I B D1 Bt
IS

RREERASEEEEREESS
B2 BRETT - BEIEEEENEE
R - PARELR K2 B A1 B RO ERER
BE 2 - DA AR BT ERZ

measures are implemented on a timely and effective A N B 1R I BEYE R\ B 2 75 2 I A
manner. There has been no change to the Group’s g o

exposure to the risks mentioned above or the
manner in which it manages and measures the
risks.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
rate risk primarily through sales and
purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currencies
of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currency giving rise to this
risk is primarily United States dollar (“US
dollar”). The Group is also exposed to
foreign exchange rate risk in respect of the
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
which are denominated in HK$ and US
dollar.

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to foreign exchange rate risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in RMB, translated
using the spot rate at the year end date.
Differences resulting from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

HBEREEREMIAATEE(H)

41 BEEBEZ(E)

(a)

SMERE (AF)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Renminbi)

hMeER
(MAREHT)
2017 2016
g-tF ZE0F

US dollar HK$ US dollar HKS

n B eI B

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

AE®EER AE®EER AREBET AREBET

(restated) (restated)

(E5) (&51)

Note 38(b) Note 38(b)

fi3+38(0) i¥38(0)
Accounts receiableand  FEARERFR

other curent assets Hthn8aE 5 9 4 12

Cash and cash equivalents  B&RBESEEE 360 216 591 235
Accounts payable and AR

accrued liabiities ek (100) (14) (30) (24

Borrowings [g& (7,249) (3,222) (7,659) (2,129)

Gross exposre arising EEREER

flomrecognised assets  BEEE

and liabilties 288 (6,984 [3011) (7089 (1.906)

The Group did not enter into any hedge
contracts during any of the years presented
to hedge against its foreign exchange rate
risk. However, management monitors the
related foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4 HMBEREERSMTIAEATE(E)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 BIEEKEE (E)
(a)  Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued) (a) MERE ()
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRINREAEERIREER
change in the Group’s profit after tax HEHEXERAEZRRZAB L
(and retained earnings) that would arise if MR - NEBARBE R
foreign exchange rates to which the Group F(RRFAF) H RN 2
has significant exposure at the end of the (REEATE EfhE o B B 45
reporting period had changed at that date, &) o
assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.
2017 2016
—E-tf —TRF
Effect on Effect on
Increase/ profit after Increase/ profit after
(decrease) tax and (decrease) tax and
in foreign retained in foreign retained
exchange earnings exchange earnings
rates RMB’million rates RMB’million
(restated)
HERBiR R
BHR pintlpd
RIFER BIFEF
fE & -7 B k-7
EH/(TH) AR®EER LA/ (TR) ARKEER
(E7))
US dollar e 5% (293) 5% (298)
(5%) 293 (5%) 298
HK$ BT 5% (127) 5% (81)
(5%) 127 (5%) 81

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of
the instantaneous effects on each of the
Group entities’ profit after tax and retained
earnings measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB
at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

R EFERSE
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4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within
the Group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2016.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises primarily from cash and
cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
other receivables, amounts due from related
parties and loans to third parties.

A substantial portion of the Group’s cash
at bank and time deposits are placed with
state-owned banks and financial institutions
in the PRC and management believes that
the credit risk is low.

The Group performs ongoing assessment of
the credit quality of its customers. The ageing
analysis of accounts receivable is presented
in Note 24.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE —=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, other
receivables, amounts due from related parties
and loans to third parties included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk. No other financial assets carry a
significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset.

The Group’s liquidity risk management
involves maintaining sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. Management prepares monthly
cash flow budget to ensure that the Group
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group arranges and negotiates financing with
financial institutions and maintains a certain
level of standby credit facilities to reduce the
Group’s liquidity risk.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
net current liabilities of RMB6,556 million.
The Group will continue to undertake various
measures in order to further improve its
liquidity position in the short and longer term.
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4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Given the low level of gearing and continued
access to funding, the Group believes that its
liquidity risk is not material.

Analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities
based on the remaining period at the date
of the consolidated statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity dates are
presented in Notes 29, 30 and 31.

(d) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
changes arising from equity investments
classified as available-for-sale equity
securities (Note 21).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on
the stock exchanges in Australia, Hong Kong
and the PRC. Listed investments held in the
available-for-sale portfolio have been chosen
based on their longer term growth potential
and are monitored regularly for performance
against expectations. All of the Group’s
unquoted investments are held for long term
strategic purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE —=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

Equity price risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2017,

it is estimated that

an increase/(decrease) of 10% (2016: 10%)
in the relevant stock market indices (for
listed investments) with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit after tax (and

—tF+=A=+—ALLFE
O

4 HHERBREERREMIAATEEGE)

4.1

B EbRE & ()

(d) KREEKREEE)

F:;*t¢+—ﬂ_+*
CBRERHEMEHS GRS
ﬁﬁﬁ%hmh@&bmkj

B, WA 10% (—ZF—
AN = B § B B 1% 5 A

10%) -

NE

(RRFAN) RiraEDEM

retained earnings) and other components of BRI g, G A )
consolidated equity as follows: N
2017 2016
:g_‘tﬁ —Z- /\$
Effect on Effect on
profit after Effect profit after Effect
tax and on other tax and on other
retained  components retained  components
earnings of equity eamings of equity
HiRke  BRSER Uhite  HEAER
BHRRE RftiR B EfARK
BRz¥E Hozve Bilzg8 HhieE
RMB’million  RMB’million RMB'milion  RMB'million
ARBEER ARYEER AREBETL AREEER
(restated)
(E31)
Change in the relevant RAEREREY
equity price risk variable: £
Increase )l 10% - 2% 10% - 31
Decrease B (10%) - (26) (10%) - (31)

R EFERSE

ERERARAR @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE —E—+F+-_F=+—HItEE

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Equity price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained earnings) and other
components of consolidated equity that
would arise assuming that the changes in
the stock market indices or other relevant
risk variables had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.
It is also assumed that the fair values of the
Group’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with
the relevant stock market indices, that none
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments
would be considered impaired as a result of
the decrease in the relevant stock market
indices, and that all other variables remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2016.

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern, optimise returns for owners and to
minimise its cost of capital. In meeting its objectives
of managing capital, the Group may issue new
shares, adjust its debt levels or the mix between
short-term and long-term borrowings.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio which is calculated as the sum of
interest-bearing borrowings, convertible bonds and
obligations under finance leases divided by the
sum of total equity, interest-bearing borrowings,
convertible bonds and obligations under finance
leases. The gearing ratio at 31 December 2017 is
40.51% (2016 restated: 36.88%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE —=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.2

4.3

Capital risk management (Continued)

There were no changes in the management’s
approach to capital management of the Group
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.

Fair value estimation

(a)

Financial assets measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

4

FEMBHRRMEE

—tFT-A=+—HILFE

RBEREEREMTIAATEE(SH)

4.2 EXERERE (R

BEEHAKENENEEHESF
NAE|EE - KRB REMBARIY
PEKBIMNEVERZRAR

43  DT{EMH
() BAFEIBZEBAE
AFEER

TREVWAKESHRIAZR
TE ZECRTANKESH
RIRIEE M RESTE - WO
RBEBVBHREEAFE 135
RNFEFAEFREZ=ZBRF
BEZEE - BRAFENEDE
B THE2E N T EEF AR
REEzABEEREZME
EiE -

- EAE: EERE
— 80 A B (D5
B ERSAERAER
il PR
BB ATE -

- BEoRHE: EFRFEC
ﬁ&iﬁJ)\iﬁ(Tf(EﬂﬂiﬁuL
HE Rz AT ERE A
BB AW REAEKX
TT&E;&HJ)\%@F?E
NTE - TR BRE
A%&TEZ%?@%FD%%HE‘EZ
A -

- FZRMHE: FREX
TABREARETE
ZRFE e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H = —=

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

—tFT-A=+—HILLFE

HBEREEREMIAATEE(H)

43 DFEMHE (E)

(a)

BRFETEBZETHEE (F)

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at Fairvalue at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2017 categorised into 31 December 31 December 2016 categorised into
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 216 Level Level2 Level3
NoE-tF H=E-tE+Zf=t-8 NIEIF HIE-NETZAZT-H
+ZR=1-H WATEHBAEA +ZA=1-F HATEAENER
ZAYE £-# 24 L PN & 2R =4
RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'milon ~ RMB'milon ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion
AR¥EER ARMEER ARWEEL ARMEER ARYBET ARMEET ARERER ARMEER
(restated)
(&51)
Recurringfairvalue ~ E¥HATEHE
measurements
Avalable-for-sale THESHEE
financial assets
- Listed - Pl 28 - - 383 33 - -
- Uniisted = 74 - - /! 74 - - 74
During the years ended 31 December 2017, HE-Z—tF+-_A=+—
there were no transfers between Level 1 and HIEFE F—RRE_RZ

Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they
occurred.

Information about fair value measurements

As at the date of the statement of financial
position, all the listed equity securities are
stated at fair values, which have been
determined by reference to bid prices quoted
in the respective stock exchanges. The
equity securities in the PRC amounted to
approximately RMB74 million (31 December
2016 restated: RMB74 million) are stated at
cost. These securities do not have quoted
market price in an active market and their fair
values cannot be reliably measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a) Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

The movements during the year in
the balance of these Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:

4 HHERBREERREMIAATEEGE)

43 DFEMHE (E)

(a) BEAFETBZLTHEE(H)

AEERBE=MAFEFER
Rz BB

RMB’million

AREBET

At 1 January 2016 RZZ—RE—H—H 79

Disposal RE (22)

Addition NE 17
At 31 December 2016, 1 January 2017 RZZE—R"E+=ZRA=1+—H"

and 31 December 2017 —T—+tF—-A—H

kZZ—+F+-A=1+—H 74

There were no gains or losses from Level 3 HE_Z—RER-_Z—tF

fair value measurements recognised in profit TZA=+—BILFE  HiE

or loss and other comprehensive income RiEmE Rk EM 2R ERER

for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2017.

FE=MAFEFE 2 WHE

B

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
as of 31 December 2017 and 2016 are not
materially different from their fair values.

The fair value of convertible bonds is
based on discounted cash flow using an
appropriate debt yield from comparable
bonds in the market, which is similar to the
interest rate applied for the recognition of
amortised costs.

The fair values other than convertible
bonds are based on discounted cash
flow using applicable discount rates
based upon the prevailing market rates of
interest available to the Group for financial
instruments with substantially the same
terms and characteristics at the dates of
the statement of financial position. Such
discount rates ranged from 4.35% to 4.90%
(2016: 4.35% to 4.90%) per annum as
at 31 December 2017 depending on the
type of the borrowings. An analysis of the
carrying amounts of long-term borrowings is
presented in Note 30.

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are regularly evaluated by the
Group, based on historical experience and other factors
which include expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiE=ZE—t+tF+=A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and judgement are
described as follows:

(a) Estimation of oil and natural gas reserves

Estimates of oil and natural gas reserves are key
elements in the Group’s investment decision-making
process. They are also an important element in
testing for impairment. Changes in proved oil and
natural gas reserves, particularly proved developed
reserves, will affect unit-of-production depreciation,
depletion and amortisation recorded in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for property, plant
and equipment related to oil and gas production
activities. A reduction in proved developed reserves
will increase depreciation, depletion and amortisation
charges. Proved reserve estimates are subject to
revision, either upward or downward, based on new
information, such as from development drilling and
production activities or from changes in economic
factors, including product prices, contract terms or
development plans.

(b) Estimation of impairment of non-financial
assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
was suffered any impairment. Property, plant
and equipment, including oil and gas properties,
are reviewed for possible impairments whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Determination as to whether and how much an
asset is impaired involves management estimates
and judgements such as future prices of crude oil
and natural gas, discount rate used in discounting
the projected cash flows and production profile.
However, the impairment reviews and calculations
are based on assumptions that are consistent with
the Group’s business plans. Favourable changes
to some assumptions may allow the Group to
avoid the need to impair any assets in these years,
whereas unfavourable changes may cause the
assets to become impaired.

PSR ST a5t R FE (48)

AETTAREZE kA 2 EE2 R T
X

(@) ABRRARMEZMGET

AHERARFEEZ B EAEEZ
REAREFEHER - ARIE
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AARBEZ B - LERKEACH
RHE  BRERAKERAMHR
RELEOH R RAREERSDRE L
WE - BENREMLERCENES
e BRELEN - RPCHEHE
ZRAEIEMTE  BRLEES
B o RO ELF AIRBENERHEL
[ EskE T™MERT - flan - REFREE
RERAERSIKARERRZEZL
ZHER - BREMER - ARIER
KB EF -

(b) FEBMEEZREMT

AEBEELEFRAHERTRME -
WE - BELRE(BEARERA
ROE) HEERHRBERECETR
FREER] BB Z @S T AR 28
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

6 REVENUE 6

Revenue mainly represents revenue from sales of crude oil,
sales of natural gas, LNG processing and terminal business
and transmission of natural gas. Analysis of revenue by
segment is shown in Note 37.

LN

WAETBRERBFEER B HEXAR
LNG N T B2 {828 575 M B ik R AR Z WA
RIBEAD IR FE ST

7  OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hibdeis o iFEE

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE-RF

RMB’million RMB’million

AREEERT ARBBHET
(restated)

=
Note 38(b)
Bii 5 38(b)
Net exchange gains/(losses) ER W (E18) F58 609 (415)
Rental income e WA 93 115
Government grants TR 4R 272 813
Others HAth 361 161
1,335 674

Government grants for the year ended 31 December 2017
and 2016 mainly represented compensation of reduction
in income due to the implementation of Value-Added-
Tax Reform from the PRC government. There were no
unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to
the receipts of these grants. There is no assurance that
the Group will continue to receive such grant in the future.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group have
recognised and received related government grants of
RMB272 million (2016 restated: RMB813 million).

HE_Z—t+tFR_FE—RF+HA=1—
AEFEZBA#EEEZEPRBAEE R
REHAEEBRARDOREE - EXZE
T RO N0 A P A R ERK IR AN Bt sk B 518 o
FEARBAEBE BN BERFEWRDZ A -
REBEE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—HIEFE "
AEEDHRLWEEERTHARE
2EETL(ZE—RFEY : AR¥813H

4 —

&) °

8 INTEREST INCOME 8 FIBWA

2017 2016
—E—+E —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B 5F 38(b)

Interest income on: FIEZFEWA -
— Amounts due from related parties — PR RAESE 77 5B 58 150
- Bank deposits - IRITFR 153 150
211 300

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

9 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION COSTS 9 EEMERAE

2017 2016
—B—tF —TAF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT AREBET

(restated)

(&%)

Note 38(b)

B 5 38(b)

Salaries, wages and allowances e TERZERL 3,889 3,426

Retirement benefits scheme RIRESFEIEK

contributions 440 421

4,329 3,847

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group RRPABUARZAE - ARE2EAERK

participates in various defined contribution retirement plans MRS SR8 TERNES AT BEK

organised by municipal and provincial governments for BIRGTE - AREARZHEBIHS - EAR

its staff. The Group is required to make contributions to BT RRE 2 14% ZE 20% [A R ARG 8 1E 41

the retirement plans at rates ranging from 14% to 20% of Ao B LAl FEHEFON  AREEAAE

the salaries, bonus and certain allowances of its staff. The HZEH AR MR REN N REARR

Group has no other material obligation for the payment T-BEZF—LFTZA=ZTHLF

of pension benefits associated with these plans beyond B AREHABARBAMOEET(ZF
the annual contributions described above. The Group’s —NFEY  ARE4ABET) °

contributions for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
RMB440 million (2016 restated: RMB421 million).

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

10 INTEREST EXPENSES 10 FBXZH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBEER
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
Bii5E 38(0)
Interest expenses on: FHEZFMEXZH :
Bank loans RITER 400 245
Senior notes BERE 234 229
Debentures payable ERES - 23
Convertible bonds (Note 31) A sERES (I3E31) 128 54
Other loans, from: HEmER B :
— An intermediate holding company - — BRI AT 17 130
— An immediate holding company - —EEEERAT 107 136
— CP Finance — FRRE 678 345
— Fellow subsidiaries - ARWBAF 143 58
Finance charges on obligations under ~ BIEFEREZBMEER 8 ¢
finance leases, from:
— A fellow subsidiary - —RHIRZK B AR 13 18
— A third party -—HRE=F 8 10
Less: Amounts capitalised B AL eRE (583) (597)
1,145 651
Amounts capitalised are borrowing costs that are ERNreBAREREGREZEEMBAR
attributable to the construction of qualifying assets. The THENEERES BE-ZT—tF+=A4
average interest rate used to capitalise such borrowing =+ —BHILFE BRMEUFEEERAMA
cost was 4.08% (2016 restated: 4.06%) per annum for the ZFHFERERE408%(ZE—NFEF :

year ended 31 December 2017. 4.06%) °
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Financial Statements
FEMTEIRFTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11

ltems charged in arriving at the profit before income tax
expense include:

R P15 91 & A i 1

FRETSIREAANE 2 IERIA AR ¢

2017 2016
—ZT—+tF —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B ¥ 38(b)
Amortisation of advanced operating FENEEHERNEREE 2 #H
lease payments and intangible assets 164 154
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETN S
— audit services - ZERT 30 20
— non-audit services - I BURTS 4 2
Cost of inventories recognised EERBFRZ 2 FEKAR
as expense 64,322 48,978
Depreciation and depletion of property, #1% « FiE KRB ZITE KB
plant and equipment 5,487 5,536
Operating lease expenses KEAERT 450 461

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

12

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S 12 EERETIZ#NE
EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments of directors for the years ended HE_Z—+tFR_FE—RF+HA=1—
31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows: AIEFEREEZMeFBNT
2017
ZE-tF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2017
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
1 3 S S 3
EZHe RREEA MiEA FHEIfER Hy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%®Tn AR®Tn AR%TR AR%Tzn
Directors: I
Mr Huang Weihe BEMEE(RZS-N\F
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —A+ZBEHT) - - - - -
Mr Wu Enlai REREE(RZT-N\F
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —A+=HE({T) - - - - =
Mr Zhao Yongg B E - 642 - 51 693
Mr Zhao Zhongxun fichot:lIpivte - - - - -
Mr Ding Shilu THEEE(RZS-N\E
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —A+=HE({T) - - - - =
Mr Zhang Yaoming TEALE(RZT—N\F
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —A+ZBEHT) - - - - -
Mr Ling Xiao EERE(M_E-NE
(appointed on 12 January 2018) —AT-REZMA) - - - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong FEBxE (RZE—\F
(appointed on 12 January 2018) —AtZBREZHE) - - - = -
Mr Miao Yong BREAE(R-F-N\F
(appointed on 12 January 2018) —AT-REZMA) - - - - -
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey ZEERE 253 - - - 253
Dr Liu Xiao Feng BlEzietE+ 211 - - - 211
Mr Sun Patrick FEERE 211 - - - 211
Dr Lau Wah Sum BERBL(R-T—+tF
(resigned on 1 January 2017) —A—RE) - - - - -
675 642 - 51 1,368
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S 12 ESRETIZEME (B)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
2016
“ENEF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2016
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e R RIK  Z2RF
EERe  RAEEREA WiETEAL SR @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETL  ARETT AR%Tn ARt AR%Tn
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(&51) (&31) (E51) (E51) (E51)
Directors: £
Mr Huang Weihe BRATE (RZT—RF
(appointed on 18 February 2016) ~“ATN\BEZ{A) - - - - -
Mr Wu Enlai REREE - - - - -
Mr Zhao Yongg KR E - 399 - 11 410
Mr Zhao Zhongxun HEE e (RZT—RF
(appointed on 12 May 2016) RAT-REEMA) - - - - -
Mr Ding Shilu THEAE(RZS—RF
(appointed on 12 May 2016) hA+-BEZE) - - - - -
Mr Zhang Yaoming RERTE (RZT—RF
(appointed on 12 May 2016) RAT-REEMA) - - - - -
Mr Zhang Bowen REELE (RZT—1F
(retired on 12 May 2016) T A+=BEA) - 975 - 122 1,097
Mr Cheng Cheng EEE (R —RF
(resigned on 12 May 2016) AR+ =HE(T) - 780 - 97 877
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FEELE 264 - - - 264
Dr Liu Xiao Feng flEetE+ 220 - - - 220
Mr Sun Patrick FEERE(RZT—RF
(appointed on 18 February 2016) —A+/\BEZT) 191 - - - 191
Dr Lau Wah Sum AEREL (NS —tF
(resigned on 1 January 2017) —R—BE{E) 397 - - - 397
1,072 2,154 - 230 3,456

The discretionary bonuses of the directors of the Company
are reviewed and recommended by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board of Directors, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

ARREENNBARTHEZESLERE
AEBENKLEE  EFNEARRMATL
RS HBETRMYAEESIELERERZ

B

R EFERSE

ERERARAR



©)

O

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

12 DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S 12 ESRETIZEME (8)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in REEINTFAEEREESMEALTEE
the Group for the Year including one (2016: three) director —H(ZE—RFZR)EF - FEzMe
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented EREMSTPRE - FRENTHTHHE
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining four (ZZE—RF : MB) ALzMeunT

(2016: two) individuals during the Year are as follows:

2017 2016
ZE—tF AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
(restated)
(&%)
Salaries and other emoluments e RHEAMABME 5,906 4,550
Discretionary bonuses IS TELT - -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 684 296
6,590 4,846
The emoluments fell within MenFTHEE : Number of Individuals
the following band: & B A B
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 LA T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 B TE
1,500,000 7T = 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 BT E
3,000,00078 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 &2
3,500,00078 7T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 BLE
4,500,00078 7T - 1
None of the directors has waived their remuneration during E-TEFET_A=THLFE - #§
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). BEEREEME(ZT—RF: &) -
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company BE_T—tFt-A=1t—HLEFE &
did not incur any severance payment to any director for NCIR &SRR EIE- 3 AR NP =152
loss of office or any payment as inducement to any director NERFIBEREMEEMARR R ZFHIE
to join the Company (2016: Nil). (Z2—RF 8| -

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017



° o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE FrisBi&EH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT AREBET
(restated)
(E3)
Note 38(b)
B 3T 38(b)

Current tax ENHARE1E

-PRC - 3,470 3,227
- Overseas - 85N 61 23
3,531 3,250
Deferred tax (Note 32(b)) ERERE (& 32(b)) - (50)
3,531 3,200

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for as the
Group has no assessable profit for the year (2016: Nil).

In accordance with the relevant PRC income tax rules and
regulations, the PRC corporate income tax rate applicable
to the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is principally 25%
(2016: 25%). The operations of the Group’s certain regions
in the PRC have qualified for certain tax incentives in the
form of a preferential income tax rates ranging from 15% to
20% (2016: 15% to 20%).

Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the applicable
rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

P50 2 g BB AN F B 3 4R AR B FI -
A E TSR R R (2B K
%) o

BIEABEPREEERLRE - BARK
SERFEZHB AR 2P RBEMSHRMR
KFERBB(ZFT—RF:25%) A&
EEREE THE S CEFEE THEESR
&t ZEERUMSHBERAEE - M
MENRI5%E20% (ZF—"F  15% =
20%) °

BINE N2 RS B IEANF E 2 fh et BRI

SRR AREEEFE 2 LT EE 2R
AR -

T FFEHRE BERERARARA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H = —=

13

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 13

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax expense
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

—tFT-A=+—HILLFE

FrisBiER (§)

REBERASHE RN 2 B 5
ﬁHEAK’EIZqﬂlm%Fﬁ%%ﬁm%—ﬁﬁﬁ 2

ok B 477 AR i

the corporate income tax rate in the PRC applicable to the EReEs =207 ¢
Group as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
Bt 5% 38(0)
Profit before income tax expense BRET1STLE ARG H 11,480 6,291
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% BT 25% (ZF—/RF : 25%)

(2016: 25%) FTE IR 2,870 1,573
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETZ 54 23
Effect of different tax rates MEEZR 7B (26) 118
Tax effect of income not subject to tax ~ BAEMFIURA Z FRiFF 2 (184) (70)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT HIFR Sz i 2 TR F 7 22

for tax purposes 186 227
Tax effect of share of profits less losses  JEEHFE N )R A RE B 2 g &

of associates (132) (105)
Tax effect of share of profits less losses  BIEA B ERFBEE L RS E

of joint ventures (38) 27)
Tax effect of deferred tax not recognised A2 uk%RIEZHi‘%%‘E 597 1,277
Tax effect of recognition of deferred tax ~ FERIAE G 8 AR IR LT 18

not recognised in prior years 2B E (125) (19)
Tax effect of withholding tax 2k IR B 2 TR

on dividends received or receivable 2B 329 203
Income tax expense FriSfis i 3,531 3,200

The domestic income tax rate used in the calculation
above is the PRC tax rate which is the jurisdiction where
the operations of the Group are substantially based.

B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

14 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 14

(@

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB4,760 million (2016
restated: RMB666 million) and weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the Year
of approximately 8,072 million shares (2016: 8,072
million shares).

Diluted earnings per share is calculated based
on the Group’s profit attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately RMB4,845 million
(2016 restated: RMB666 million) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of approximately
8,620 million shares (2016: 8,072 million shares)
after adjusting for the effect of convertible bonds,
calculated as follows:

(i)

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company (diluted)

O
BREXRBEFRT
() BERERBFTIRERRARRE

HAREEZBNHOARKEA47608 E
TT(ZE—RFEY : AR¥oeocrn
B URFABBITEBRINET
HELN8MEER(ZE—XRNF:
8072 BBR)ETE -

HAEREFNTEELAREE
MBS R T TR IR A A B AR R RS AR
EEZHEFNOARKA4845FET(=
T-RFEY: ARKescBEET)
K& mAR Nt 98040 8,620 B B R
T REBOT2AER) KT

are -

() ADFRREMGEER (H5F)

2017 2016
—B—tF —TAF
RMB miillion RMB million
AREEERT AREBHET

(restated)
(E31))
Note 38(b)
Fii5E 38(0)
Profit attributable to /NG eyl
owners of the Company 4,760 666
After tax effect of effective B FRF| & 3 Al S E 51
interest on the liability BEXINRTIRTE
component of
convertible bonds 85 -
Profit attributable to RN AR (G s ) ()
owners of the
Company (diluted) 4,845 666

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

14 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 SBREXRIEERTR (&)
(CONTINUED)

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary (i) EERMEFHE(EE)
shares (diluted)

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
million shares  million shares
BER BER
Weighted average number A +—=HA=+—HH&

of ordinary shares at TR ke T8

31 December 8,072 8,072
Effect of conversion of AERES CBREE

convertible bonds 548 -
Weighted average number A +=—H=+—HH

of ordinary shares TR i I8 (EE)

(diluted) at 31 December 8,620 8,072
The effect of the Company’s share options Bz FR"F+=-_B=1+—
and convertible bonds was anti-dilutive for HIEFE - N2 R IERE AT
the year ended 31 December 2016. The HRESNTERREE - BB
share options were lapsed during the year AERE I T —+tF+ A
ended 31 December 2017. =+ —HIEFEERK -

15 DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 15 ZAASIREELKRE
THE COMPANY

(i) Dividends payable to owners of the Company (i) REEZESRATRRABKE
attributable to the year
2017 2016
ol Bt of : 5 ZE-RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKBER
(restated)
(&251)
Proposed final dividend attributable RRFIRREIGER 2
to owners of the Company for 2017 ZE—FRERE (M3 @)
(note (a) 1,695 -
Final dividend attributable to owners of RATIRREN
the Company for 2016 (note (b)) TR NE RIS (FIEE () - 522
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(ii) Dividends payable to owners of the Company

15

FAEIREGRRE (8)

(i) E-MBRFEEMCEQITRRNKE

attributable to the previous financial year, (REEEHRERIZM)
approved and paid during the year
2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEBERT AREBEER
(restated)
(Z51)
Final dividend in respect of the previous FUBEERNRERE
financial year, approved and (RAFERERT)
paid during the year 522 407
Notes: FEE -

@)

At the meeting on 20 March 2018, the Board of
Directors proposed final dividend attributable to
owners of the Company in respect of 2017 of
RMB21.0 cents per share amounting to a total
of approximately RMB1,695 million. The amount
is based on approximately 8,072 million shares
in issue as at 20 March 2018. The financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable as
the final dividends were proposed after the date
of the statement of financial position and will be
accounted for in equity as an appropriation of
retained earnings in the year ending 31 December
2018 when approved at the 2018 Annual General
Meeting.

Final dividend attributable to owners of the
Company in respect of 2016 of HK7.4 cents per
share (equivalent to RMB6.5 cents) amounting
to a total of approximately HK$597 million
(approximately RMB522 million) were approved
by the shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting on 2 June 2017. The amount is based on
approximately 8,072 million shares in issue as at
28 March 2017 which was paid on 30 June 2017.

(@) R-ZE—- N\EFZA=-tHHNEZ
F EECERRBELRAQAKRE
BT —tFREABREETR
CI0AREBD - BHEHOAR
#1695 BE T - ZEFEIIERZ
Z-N\FZF-F+HDZETZY
8072 BEBRRMFTHE - AR Lt
REARR BN A AR R R B BB IR
B AN ARBREZSVBHRE
A BFR T \FRREFAE
FERER - ZEREEE AR
AR EBEE-_T-N\E+—
A=+—HLEFERGFAMNZD
K ©

(0) ANRABIRREE T —NERGR
BABRT4HILEEREKE.5
ARESD)  BEAHEN7EE
BT (WARKES22EEIT) » R
BER-_ZT—tFA-HET2ZK
RIEF ARG FHE - ZEB|IHER
—E—HE=A-+NBEETY
#8072 EBRBRMEE - WER
—E—tFEXNA=ZTBEX

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 P - BERRE
Equipment
Oilandgas  Natural gas and Motor Construction
Buildings ~ properties Pipelines  machinery Vehicles Others i progress Total
AR

B7 RRRNR  RAREE  BEREE " B ERIR E ]
RMBmilon ~ RVBmilion  RMBmilon  RMBmilon  RMBmilion  RMBmiion  RVBmilon  RMBmilon
AEMAEL ARMEER ARMEEL ARMEEL ARMAER ARMEER ARMEEL ARMEEL

Cost: il
Balances at 31 December 2015, NE-RETZACT-AER

as previously reported (fushE251) 3,691 2177 34,951 48,652 3,135 1,357 19,406 123,369
Business combination nder LR T ERAK

common control - - - 5214 5 - 13 5232
Balances at 1 January 2016, NZE-RNE-F-RER

as restated (&) 3,691 12177 34,951 53,860 3,140 1,357 19,419 128,601
Cunency translaton dlfferences SHERER 3 186 R 49 8 - % 303
Addtions hE 39 176 3 46 38 74 9,784 10,160
Disposals e (19 (32) (16) (388) (100) 8] (312) 870)
Transfers E-F 10 162 3,289 8,436 - 8 (12,009) -
Balances at 31 December 2016, REE-NETZAZT-RER

as restated (inE5) 3,824 12,669 38,259 62,009 3,080 1,436 16,911 138,194
Balances at 31 December 2016, NZE-NETZRA=T-AER

as previously reported (fIshE251) 3,824 12,669 38,259 56,490 3,081 1,436 16,808 132,667
Business combination Under LR T ERAN

common control - - - 5519 5 - 13 55371
Balances at 1 January 2017, NE-tE-A-BER

as restated (nZ5) 3,824 12,669 38,259 62,009 3,086 1,436 16,911 138,194
Cunency translaton dlfferences SRERER @ (79) - @ “ ) ®) %0)
Addtions hE 56 8 - 24 40 1 14,181 14,395
Disposals e (1) - - (346) (108) @ (188) (655)
Transfers El 383 - 11,097 4433 - 100 (16,013) -
Balances at 31 December 2017 WoF-tF+-Azt-BER 4,250 12,677 49,356 66,118 3014 1,544 14,885 151,844

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% BRERRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Equipment
Oilandgas  Natural gas and Motor Construction
Buildings  properties Pipelines ~ machinery Vehicles Others i progress Total
FHR
BT RARME  RAREE  REREE at- i fEIR 4%
RVBmilon ~ RMBmilon ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMBmilion ~ RMBmilon ~ RMB'milon ~ RMB'million
AREBER AREEER ARMBER AREEER AREEET \RMEED A\REEER AREEER
Accumulated depreciation ZitERE#R:
and depletion:
Balances at 31 December 2015, RZE-RE+-A=T-BER
as previously reported (s 231) 97 10,666 11,626 15,066 1,763 403 - 40,450
Business combination under REZH T ERAH
common control - - - 478 2 - - 480
Balances at 1 January 2016, NT-E-A-BER
as estated (&) 97 10,666 11,626 15,533 1,765 403 - 40,930
Curency translaton difierences SHERER - 198 2 7 2 1 - 210
Charge for the year FERRH 130 562 1145 3330 a4 % - 5,53
Disposals i (13) 33 )] (146) ) & - (254)
Impaiment loss REEE 3 4 - 2001 - 5 1837 3913
Balances at 31 December 2016, MIE-ETZAZT-BER
as restated (1n&51) 1,067 11,440 12,762 20,745 1993 501 1837 503%
Balances at 31 December 2016, RIE-NETCACT-BER
5 previously reported (fna2s) 1067 11,440 12,762 19993 1990 501 1837 49580
Business combination Under LEAH T ERAH
common control - - - 752 3 - - 759
Balances at 1 January 2017, RZE-tF-F-BLH
as restated (1nE7) 1,057 11,440 12,762 20,745 1,993 501 1,837 5033
Cunency translaton differences GHENZE ) (65) 0] 1) @ ) - 84
Charge fo the year FEESH 147 28 1,148 3,659 21 68 - 5,487
Disposals i3 (13) - - (190) (29) 1) - (233)
Impaiment loss AR 2 - - 3% - 18 22 604
Balances at 31 December 2017 REE-tE+-A=T-BER 1,211 11,613 13,906 24,536 2,189 505 2,069 56,109
Net book value: FEFE:
Balances at 31 December 2017 NZE-ETZRA=T-AER 3,039 1,064 35,450 41,562 825 959 12,816 9,135
Balances at 31 December 2016, RIE-NETACT-BER
as festated (1nEj5) 2,767 1229 25,497 41,064 109 935 15,074 87,859

e i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H = —=

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The buildings of the Group are mainly located in the PRC.

Other assets mainly comprises of containers, roads,
bridges and others.

As at 31 December 2017, the legal title registration of
certain of the Group’s properties with carrying amount of
approximately RMB598 million (2016 restated: RMB615
million) is subject to certain administrative procedures to
be completed by the relevant local government authorities.
However, the Board of Directors of the Company is of the
opinion that the risks and rewards of using these assets
have been transferred to the Group.

Certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment are
situated on leasehold land in the PRC which was granted
for use by the relevant government authorities to the Group
at nil consideration with no specific terms of usage.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held certain
equipment and machinery under finance leases expiring
from 3 to 4 years at an effective interest rate of ranging
from 5.04% to 5.32% (2016: 5.04% to 5.32%). At the end
of the lease term, the Group has the option to purchase
the leased equipment and machinery at a price deemed to
be a bargain purchase option. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals. As at 31 December 2017, the net book
value of equipment and machinery held under finance
leases of the Group was RMB683 million (2016 restated:
RMB723 million).

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE —=

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recognised impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment of RMB604 million (2016 restated: RMB3,913
million), including RMB329 million (2016 restated:
RMB3,844 million) for LNG processing plants. In view of
the fluctuations in LNG supply and prices during the year,
the Group reassessed the risk exposures of certain of its
LNG processing plants (each of these LNG processing
plants being a cash generating unit). The carrying amount
of the related property, plant and equipment exceeded its
estimated recoverable amount as a 31 December 2017
and 2016. Accordingly, impairment losses, amounting to
RMB128 million (2016 restated: RMB2,007 million) and
RMB201 million (2016 restated: RMB1,837 million), were
recognised under “Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment” in the Group’s consolidated statement
of comprehensive income with respect to equipment and
machinery and construction in progress respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and
equipment with respect to the LNG processing plants as
at 31 December 2017 amounting to RMB1,455 million
(2016 restated: RMB3,003 million) were determined based
on the value in use calculations applying appropriate pre-
tax discount rate of respective LNG processing plants,
ranging from 14.4% to 17.8% (2016: 14.8%). LNG price
assumptions were primarily based on market expectations.

16

R EMBRRMEE

—tFT-A=+—HILFE

W - BERRE (R)

BHEZZT—tF+-A=+—HLFE "
$%lﬁM%% 5 K 5& A E B 1R A
REABEET(ZE—RNFEY : AR
3913FEETT) * BIELNG I THA RE 329
ABBIT(ZZ—RFEY: AR®38447H
BL) c ERFERNLNGHEREBE LS K
SEDEHNTEESE T ING I IRKE SR
E(ZEINGIHIESEABARSEL
Bh) RZTE—tHER=-ZT—XF+=A
=+—H H@EYxE BELRENEEDE
FRBE T ATUREI S5 - Bt - B E R
BUMERETIRRZHAEBEBARE128688
T(ZE—RF&EY : AR®2007EET)
MARE21BET(ZE—RFEY: A
Eﬁéﬁ 837 BET) DRIRASKELE2EK
mrIME BEERXREBREEE]ET
EE%\°

RZZF—tF+ZA=+—H  B@ALNGM
THHYZE - BEREEBETRESEAAR
M4BT (ZZE—RNFEH  ARK
3003%?%73) Jh % FB AE 8 LNG b0 Tk A9

HEBMAMIREHR144%E17.8%(=F
—NF 1 14.8%)FTE 2 FREBERE ° LNG
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

17 ADVANCED OPERATING LEASE PAYMENTS 17 FEMEEHEERIE

The Group’s advanced operating lease payments mainly AEBEZEMEEHEREEEHRTER
represent land use rights and comprise: Bt

2017 2016

—E—tF AN

RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBET

(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B 5E 38(b)
Balance as at 31 December, R+ZRA=+—B#&#%(WUEE5))
as previously stated 3,637 3,521
Business combination under HEWES T 2 EZBE 6
common control 196 201
Balance as at 1 January, as restated N—A—H#&s (ES) 3,833 3,722
Currency translation differences EHETE AR - 6)
Additions NE 197 283
Amortisation for the year NEEEES (109) (100)
Disposals k= (139) (66)
Balance as at 31 December R+ A=1+—H8#&% 3,782 3,833
These advanced operating lease payments are amortised G EBNEEHERIANRBESEILAS
over the related lease terms using the straight-line method. T & HAPR T LA SH o
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FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REMZEATZITRE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREBET
(restated)
(&%)
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 3,165 2,453
Goodwill Bl 350 350
3,515 2,803
Details of the principal associates are set out in Note 42. R EBENAFFBHNWEL2 -
Summarised financial information of a material associate, TREN —MEREZE QG 2K E R
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and Z - EORETBEARNEAEEFEHFRE
reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated NREREGEP B MR AREE :
financial statements, are disclosed below:
CNPC - Aktobemunaigas
Joint Stock Company
(“Aktobe”)
([ Aktobe J)
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET AREEER
(restated)
(&%)
Gross amounts of the associate’s  Ef& N\ 5 245
Current assets mBEE 2,933 4,993
Non-current assets FERBEE 15,353 15,346
Current liabilities MEEE (4,947) (5,350)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (11,226) (14,191)
Equity -3 2,113 798
Attributable to non-controlling interest  JE¥E Il 14 AE R el (12) 62)
Attributable to the associate’s NGl S
shareholders 2,125 860
Revenue WA 9,804 8,001
Profit from continuing operations S SR 2,009 1,397
Post-tax profit or loss from ERIERECEEBRTEER
discontinued operations = -
Other comprehensive income Efb2mEikas (79) 18
Total comprehensive income 2 EINE AR 1,930 1,415
Attributable to non-controlling interest  JE¥E I AE R FE( 49 44
Attributable to the associate’s NS )
shareholders 1,881 1,371

T FFEHRE BERERARARA
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e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H = —=

18

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

—tFT-A=+—HILLFE

18 MNEEATZRE(H)

Aktobe
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥EEBERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Reconciled to the Group’s HIRZEAREBNREE QT 2
interests in the associate
Group’s interest (note (i) NEEE R () 25.12% 25.12%
Group’s interest in net assets of the FYAEEREEAREEFE
associate at beginning of the year 2 216 -
Total comprehensive income AEEEEEEWNEEAEE
attributable to the Group 472 345
Dividend received during the year FAE WA E (155) -
Group’s interest in net assets FRAEERBZ QA
of the associate at end of the year BEFEER 533 345
Elimination of unrecognised fﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁu EIERE
share of total comprehensive Wezs 4858 (B 5T (i)
income (note (i) - (129)
Carrying amount of interest in the FAREVE AR REE
associate at end of the year 533 216

Notes:

GEE

M

(i)

The effective equity interest of Aktobe attributable to the
Group is 15.07%, representing 25.12% equity interest in
Aktobe held by a 60% owned subsidiary.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, share of
negative total comprehensive income from Aktobe
amounting to RMB129 million was not recognised as the
carrying amount of interest in Aktobe has been reduced to
zero and the Group has not incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payment on behalf of Aktobe, in
accordance with accounting policy set out in Note 3(b).
During the year ended 31 December 2016, share of total
comprehensive income from Aktobe amounts to RMB345
million and therefore all the previously unrecognised
negative total comprehensive income has been eliminated
as at 31 December 2016.
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() A Aktobe 7 25.12% IR iEM AN EEHE R
60% 2 B ARIFE - BUAEEE(N
Aktobe ~ BFR IR £ 15.07% °

(i) HE_Z-AFT_A=1T—HLFE"
[‘EEAktobei%EEEWmi@%E)\E%129

BHE UM ARERR - ER Aktobe s 2 BR
FESHRET  BREME30)EHSH

BE AEBYEELAEMEERHEEE
AR Aktobe fEH T - BLE

F+-A=Z+—HIEFE ' fE(hAktobe ®
AR REAEAREISEET  BUAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

O
18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18 MEEATZRE ()
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually BRTEZ B E AR ZEHER
material:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Aggregate carrying amount of ERITEE ZBE RN RIRERE
individually immaterial associates in Wk 2 RBREE
the consolidated financial statements 2,982 2,587
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s REBEEZSHMENRI MBS
share of those associates’
Profit from continuing operations SRR ST A 277 260
Post-tax profit or loss from BB E EEHREIEER
discontinued operations - -
Other comprehensive income HEtemikas - -
Total comprehensive income FHKEERR 277 260
19 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19 REELRZEE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 1,879 1,246
Loans to joint ventures MEELEER 39 39
1,918 1,285

ERETERELFR ZFBHNMELS

Details of the principal joint ventures are set out in Note 43.

R-ZE—+tF+_A=+—HRAEELEE

As at 31 December 2017, included in loans to joint

ventures is an amount of RMB39 million (2016 restated:
RMB39 million) which is unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable on demand.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the loans to joint
ventures are not past due and not impaired.

REEAREIBETL(ZT—RFEFI:
ARKEIOBET)  ZoBAEEM 28
KBIRBSKIBIE

RZE—+FER T RF+_A=+—
B mAECEERWERIIERE -

T FFEHRE BERERARARA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H = —=

19

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Dividends declared from joint ventures are approximately
RMB160 million (2016 restated: RMB7 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Share of loss from one joint venture amounting to RMB100
million during the year ended 31 December 2016 was not
recognised as the carrying amount of the Group’s equity
interest in the joint venture has been reduced to zero. The
Group has not incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payment on behalf of the joint venture, in accordance
with accounting policy set out in Note 3(b).

There is no individually material joint venture which
significantly affects the results and/or net assets of the
Group at 31 December 2017.

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not
individually material:

—tFT-A=+—HILLFE

19

REELEZIRE (R)

HE T+t _-_A=1+—HLFE"
BEhETRZKE 77%&%1605%7—5(
E—RFHEY AEM7§%7€)

BHE_ZT—RFT+-_A=+—HILFE &
H—EaELEBBRARKI100BETH AR

EER AXEBRZEELEMNRER
HEDHBEE o BIEHTF3b) TE 25T

R AEBEYWEELAERMEEETHEAR
RZABLREERR -

TERENBERCEELRHAAREN-F
—+FE+ A=+ B EER S REEF
BEREATE -

ERTERRERRZAHER

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARMEBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Aggregate carrying amount of ERITEZE 2 & BERERGE
individually immaterial joint BTk 2 RRHEE
ventures in the consolidated
financial statements 1,918 1,285
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEERLOZECELE BT
share of those joint ventures’
— Profit from continuing operations - BB EES R T 224 162
— Post-tax profit or loss from - BRERFESEEERBIRER
discontinued operations - -
— Other comprehensive income - Hip2mE e - -
— Total comprehensive income - 2HEWNEBRE 224 162
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiE=ZE—t+tF+=A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 41.

The following tables list out the information related
to PetroChina Beijing Gas Pipeline Co., Ltd (“Beijing
Pipeline”), PetroChina Jiangsu LNG Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu
LNG”) and Jingtang Co., the three subsidiaries of the
Group which have material non-controlling interests
(“NCI”). The summarised financial information presented
below represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

RIBABZiRE
BRI EMB AR FBENHE

TRIEFABIERRKAREEGR QA
(MEREE]D - PEARIGHRIERAARE
PR (IELNG]) R REARANSEE
BERIFEHIE R ([FEEHEER]) 2=
BB ARAEEZER - WTH2Y 285
BRI EEMII A B EPERI 2 &8 »

Beijing Pipeline

tREE

2017 2016

—E—+tF AN

RMB’million RMB’million

AREEERT ARKBET

(restated)

(&%)

NCI percentage FEIEFIM R B DL 40% 40%
Current assets BB E 3,392 2,673
Non-current assets SEMENEE 40,958 33,999
Current liabilties hEhaE @4,717) (10,181)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (11,884) (937)
Net assets BEFE 27,749 25,554
Carrying amount of NCI FEPE St e AR T E 11,095 10,226
Revenue WA 10,656 11,637
Profit for the year F N 5,087 6,039
Total comprehensive income FEINERRE 5,087 6,039
Profit allocated to NCI DECE FEIZEHI MR 2w 2,012 2,416

Dividend paid to NCI BRI R 2 B 2,162 1,991
Cash flows from operating activities KEXBMEZIRERE 5,986 7,512
Cash flows from investing activities WEEBHEZRERE (8,828) (4,455)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEBAECHERE 3,102 (1,139)

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 T —+F +—A=+—HItFE
20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 WRMBASZIRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Jiangsu LNG
SIELNG
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ET—RF

RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBET

(restated)
=)
NCI percentage FEVEH R B DL 45% 45%
Current assets MBNEE 1,243 672
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,375 4,642
Current liabilities MEEE (332) (196)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (1,571) (1,962)
Net assets BEFE 3,715 3,156
Carrying amount of NCI FEFESIIE R PR E(E 1,672 1,420
Revenue WA 1,898 944
Profit for the year FNm A 960 283
Total comprehensive income EHNREREE 960 283
Profit allocated to NCI DECEFEE SR R 2 A 432 127
Dividend paid to NCI B IR RS 2 BB 180 -
Cash flows from operating activities KEERFSZIBERE 1,516 714
Cash flows from investing activities REEXBRGEZHERE (12) (146)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEESMECHERE (879) (197)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE —=

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20

(CONTINUED)

RIBATZi%E (8])

—tF+=A=+—ALLFE
O

Jingtang Co.
REAT

2017 2016
—E—tF A
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBEET
(restated)
(&%)
NCI percentage SR B DL 49% 49%
Current assets MBNEE 1,097 653
Non-current assets FEMBEE 4,888 4,980
Current liabilities MEEE (2,113) (2,638)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (19) -
Net assets BEFE 3,853 2,995
Carrying amount of NCI FEFZE I M e 2 AR TEI (A 1,888 1,467
Revenue WA 1,751 784
Profit for the year F RN A 858 168
Total comprehensive income EHNREREE 858 168
Profit allocated to NCI DECEIEE SRR 2w 420 83
Dividend paid to NCI B IR I hE s 2 BB - -
Cash flows from operating activities KEEFS2HERE 1,672 442
Cash flows from investing activities REEREZHERE 121 (796)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEBMEZRERE (789) 354

E LR

BAREERAT @
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REMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

21 TOHtHELSMEE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEERT ARKBEET
(restated)

(&%)

Available-for-sale equity securities: T ff{HERAE % :

— Listed in Australia - PORAF|E = 7 6
— Listed in Hong Kong -REBEM 9 13
— Listed in the PRC - ARE LT 262 364
— Unlisted in the PRC - RRARBIZE L 74 74
352 457

The carrying amounts of the Group’s available-for-sale PN FEMBIRARIRAESERE ST
financial assets in the consolidated statement of financial AN ESREE  IRMAESHNHT4.3() °

position by the measurement hierarchy are set out in Note

4.3(a).

22 INTANGIBLE AND OTHER NON-CURRENT 22

B REMERSEE

ASSETS
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ERF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B 5E 38(b)
Intangible assets (note (i)) mREE () 458 503
Prepaid construction costs B ER AN 509 1,825
Loans to an associate (note (ii)) ) — M & 2 /) & B (5T (i) 173 -
Loans to third parties MEZFEX - 72
Others HAth 33 24
1,173 2,424
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FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

INTANGIBLE AND OTHER NON-CURRENT 22

ASSETS (CONTINUED)

ER R EMIEREEE (BR)

Note: Mz -
() The intangible assets mainly comprise goodwill, franchised 0} BEPEEFZ0ENE  FirEREKE
rights and computer software costs. The movements in HRA - BEEEEBHOT ¢
intangible assets are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZERE
Goodwill Others Total Goodwill Others Total
wE Hith @t e Hit st
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB'milion  RMB’'milion  RMB’million
ARBEER AR¥BEER ARYEELT ARBBERT ARKBERT ARKRER
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(851) (851) (8351)
Note 38(b) ~ Note 38(b)
B 38(0) B 38(0)
At 31 December, W+ZA=+—8
as previously reported (AR Z25)) 243 258 501 235 309 544
Business combinations  EFEEHI T 2 £BAH
under common control - 2 2 - 2 2
At1 January, as restated IR —A—B&# (WEF]) 243 260 503 235 311 546
Additions "B - 10 10 8 3 11
Amortisation for the year A E B - (55) (55) - (54) (54)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 243 215 458 243 260 503
(ii) Loans to an associate are unsecured and interest-bearing (ii) ERT—HEBEA A AERERLREESF
ranging from 4.28% to 4.35% per annum. 4.28% % 4.35% AT 8. °
INVENTORIES 23 #HE

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise:

)

RAaPBIRARTFERE

2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHERT AREEET

(restated)
(&%)
Natural gas KRR, 1,148 823
Materials for oil and gas properties Bl RARDERRARE BME
and natural gas pipelines 362 371
Crude oil in tanks and others TR JR0m K HAth 49 48
1,559 1,242

T FFEHRE BERERARARA
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FEMFEIRFTMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE
24 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24 FEUSERRR
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREBHET
(restated)
(E3)
Note 38(b)
B EE 38(b)
Accounts receivable JERBRE K 3,027 2,977
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B SEBREE (BRE24(b))
(Note 24(b)) (181) (19)
2,846 2,958

(a) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing

(a)

ARk DA

BERSHR - BURER (R ER

analysis of accounts receivable, based on the BB REZAE RO ¢
invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful debts
is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ERF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AR¥BET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
Bt 5% 38(b)
Within 3 months —{EAAUA 1,957 1,962
Between 3 to 6 months =RBAZENEAN 116 191
Over 6 months ~EA M E 773 805
2,846 2,958
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

24 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis (continued)

The Group’s revenue from sales of crude oil and
rendering of terminal and pipeline services are
generally collectable within a period ranging from
30 to 90 days from the invoice date while the sales
of natural gas are made in cash or on credit terms
no more than 90 days. As at 31 December 2017,
accounts receivable of approximately RMB889
million (2016 restated: RMB996 million) were past
due but for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. These accounts receivable relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group.

Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

Impairment of accounts receivable

Impairment loss in respect of accounts receivable
is recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against accounts receivable directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

24 FEWEBRFR (48)
(@) RS (&)

AEEBRBHEE RRHRBERLRE
BRBHUA—ARNE R A HRE 30
HZE Q0 A B E « mHERARIA
BeINEEHTEBHE0RH - K=
T—+E+-A=1+—08  EWEX
HARKBOBEBL(ZE—RFE
A AR®BooeBEEIL) B@H - M
REBIW KRB EEIEIELBE - %
ERBEFREEREASERER
FEERSEBURS -

RIBBELER  BEEREHEMZ
SEMMELRERE  REREER
BIumERE - BZSHERNBR
RREEE -

(b) EUERKEE
B BE PR W RR AR R BB S 1R B R I AR
AR - BRIEASBRE W ZEHKIA

FRTBEMERIR - LB T - BUEE
BEEREERIRRK

FREERE (S TEHR D) 28

during the year for specific loss components is as e
follows;

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARMBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&31))
At 1 January n—A—H 19 19
Impairment loss recognised BRI E B 18 163 -
Uncollectible amounts written off = #fl#5 K Uk B #Y R IE (1) -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 181 19
—ELEFERE BERERERAT
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FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

25 PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT 25

AR BRI EE

ASSETS
2017 2016
—E—+E —T—REFE
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET AREKEER
(restated)
(&%)
Other receivables H A FE MR IE 1,256 1,281
Advances to suppliers M FE P S (ST TR R 271 174
Amounts due from related parties JiE s A BG5Sk 1B
- Intermediate holding company —- REERAT] 588 582
— Others - A - 2
2,115 2,039
Less: Provision for impairment B BB (49) (27)
2,066 2,012
Loans to third parties ME=TER 65 155
Dividends receivable from associates ~ fEURES: & A RIS 1 94
Value-added tax recoverable AT U B E R 2,012 1,403
Prepaid expenses TEfTER 2,214 1,466
Other current assets HEMREEE 282 728
6,640 5,858

All of the amounts due from related parties are expected
to be settled within one year. Except for the amounts due

P FE YR BB R T SRIRTE AR —F EE - 1
e EIER A BIRIBARKE 588 BETT(=

from intermediate holding company of RMB588 million T—RFE5Y: ARKE2BERT) HER

(2016 restated: RMB582 million) which are unsecured and
interest bearing at from 1.65% to 1.80% per annum (2016:
1.65% per annum), the other amounts due from related
parties are interest free and unsecured.
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HRIRFERER1.66%E1.80% (=T —<
F 0 FERNEA.65%) 5T 250
1R A% B IR o

FE K R R 07 &



o o\ ¥

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 Re&RFELEEEH
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (@) BERFESEEEBEHERE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B3 38(b)
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEEIRS 18,407 18,074
Short-term bank deposits HARI TR K 3,443 1,091
Cash and cash equivalents He MReEERR 21,850 19,165

Cash at bank and bank deposits carry interest at
prevailing market rate at 0.33% per annum (2016
restated: 0.32% per annum).

Included in bank deposits, bank balances and cash
are amounts of approximately RMB20,671 million
(2016 restated: RMB17,985 million) denominated
in Renminbi which are deposited with banks
in the PRC. The conversion of these Renminbi
denominated balances into foreign currencies
and the remittance of funds out of Mainland
China is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
Government.

RITRE MRTTEZIRIRITMISEF
R0.33% (T —RNF&EH : FH=R
0.32%) st &

IRITHER - BITEHR LIRS BEFN
R E A RITIAA RESHE Z 3K
BHOARE2067T1ESET(ZZ—X
FEY: ARBE17,985FHETT) © %
ZUARE B BB AR BINE R
BECELFREANBYBERFEFBEK
I A8 2 SNEE B3R Bl SO E AR

T FFEHRE BERERARARA
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S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE —E—+F+-_F=+—HItEE

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 HERBFELXFEERE(F)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) REITEBFFEENEEYHER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TERHAMAEERETESFELHA
liabilities from financing activities, including both SEF  BIERSRERIIFRE TS
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from EHEEE) c B EEELMAaR
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows ErEEGERERERFHRERE
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the BEPEARRKAS TEHEAR
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash BEHMEAHESTHAR -

flows from financing activities.

Obligations

Convertible under finance
Borrowings bonds leases Total
EL TERES MEHERRE At

RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERL  ARWEER  ARWEER  AR%EER

At 1 January 2017 R-ZE-tF-F—H 32,505 3,156 500 36,161

Changes from financing HERSRELT

cash flows:
Increase in borrowings E 26,377 = = 26,377
Repayment of borrowings EERES (17,182) - - (17,182)
Capital element of ENRERE

finance lease rentals paid HereHh = = (146) (146)
Interest element of BENRERE

finance lease rentals paid itkagiliceih - - (24) (24)
Interest paid ENFIE (1,384) (54) - (1,438)

Total changes from financing ~ REERLREZDAE
cashflows 7,811 (54) (170) 7,587

Effect of foreign exchange =~ EZXZBFE

rate changes (390) - - (390)
Other changes: Hihgg
Interest expenses FERY 1,579 128 21 1,728
Net exchange gains B e FEE (232) - - (232)
Transfer to accrued liabilties BRTEHARE (172 - - (172)
Total other changes HEn2gen 1,175 128 21 1,324
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tf
+=R=1+-8H 41,101 3,230 351 44,682
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION 27

SCHEMES

(a) Share capital

FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

(a)

B R B AR HERT 2

MR

Number of Nominal value

ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
million HK$’million
EZBREE ZiEREE
BER BEAT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of ZHREE 0.01,8 L2 ZE
HK$0.01 each
At 1 January 2016, RZZE—RF—HA—H"
31 December 2016 and —E-XRE+ZA=1+—B8BK
31 December 2017 —E—+F+=ZA=+—H 16,000 160

Number of Nominal value

ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
million RMB’million
EEREE ZEREE

BER AR®BAER

Issue and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

At 1 January 2016,
31 December 2016 and
31 December 2017

BT RBBHM

LR ETIE 0.01 8 T.2 BB

RZZE—R"F—H—8"

—E-RE+-A=1+—8BK
—FtFf-A=+—H

8,072 65

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE —E—+F+-_F=+—HItEE

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION 27 BARBIRESTEI(4E)
SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
(b)  Share option schemes (b) EERRFESTE

Pursuant to executive share option scheme (the
“2002 Share Option Scheme”) of the Company
dated 3 June 2002, the directors of the Company
are authorised, at any time within ten years after
the adoption of the 2002 Share Option Scheme,
to grant options to any directors or employees of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe
for the Company’s shares at a price not less than
the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares on the five trading days immediately

REARREHA-_TT_FA=
BZITBRAEBBEERESS(T-ZZ
“FREESE ] ARREFHE
RENRA ST _FRREEIR
TEHEREMERE - IR TARASHE
ERMBAR 2 ENEEHEERE
ARRin 2 i BEAEEX AR
REZBRERTHEMAAERS B
ARy 2 FHRHE - XTER
K@ﬂﬂﬁf’xﬂk‘ﬁﬁﬁm"ﬂﬁ%’\

preceding the offer date of the options, the closing BAERERE) BRBITRBK
price of the Company’s shares on the offer day fEETHN :gg_iﬁ%l}x%ﬁiﬂﬂﬁﬁ

or the nominal value of the Company’s shares,
whichever is the highest. Unless otherwise lapsed
or amended, the 2002 Share Option Scheme will be
valid and effective for a period of ten years from the
date of adoption. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme cannot exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Notwithstanding aforesaid in this paragraph, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme (and under any other shares of the
Company) shall not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

Options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme must be taken up within the period as
specified in the offer of the options and no amount
shall be payable by the grantee to the exercising of
the right to accept an offer of an option. Options
granted are exercisable at any time, but not less
than 3 months and not more than 10 years from the
date on which the option is granted and accepted
by the grantee. All of the options are vested to the
option holders after 3 months from the date on
which the options are granted. The exercise period
of the option is 5 years from the grant date.

The 2002 share option scheme expired on 2 June
2012.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE —=

SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Share option schemes (Continued)

No new share option scheme was adopted after
the expiration of 2002 Share Option Scheme on 2
June 2012. No new option was granted for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, no share options have been exercised by
the directors and employees of the Company
respectively as the exercise prices of the
outstanding share options were above the market
price of the Company’s shares, and the share
options were lapsed.

The movements in the share options granted under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 are shown in
the following table:

(b)

FEMBHRRMEE

—tFT-A=+—HILFE

I R BERR R 8 (4])

fBRERTE (&)

R-ZTEZ_FHBREFEIN T
FINA = AR IR AR B A

e -BE_TEER-TRF
TZA=t - HUESFEAERLHE
Pt -

HE_Z—+FE=-ZT—~E+=H
=T —HIEFE - AR EARITEER
BZITEEDERARRRMD 2T
B ARAEERkEEMETEER
7 BRED KRR -

TREBERE _TZT _FHEKREE
?*szﬁ%HﬂZE*EA%zi_é /\i&_
T LFT- A=t ALFEZE
& :

Number of share options
BREHR
Outstanding
at
Outstanding 31 December Outstanding
at Reclassified Lapsed 2016and  Reclassified Lapsed at
Name of category 1 January during during 1 January during during 31 December
of participants Option type 2016 the year the year 2017 the year the year 2017
R=B-RE
TZA=t-H
RZB-AF R=%-t% R=B-tF
28% -B-H RER RER -B-H RER RER TZA=1-H
HASER BRERR WK ENAR b3 WK ENAR b3 WK
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
T T T T T T T
Directors
Ez
MrZhangBowen 2011 (note () 2,400 (2,400) - - - - -
(note (i) ZE—E(W3H()
REELE 2012 (note (i) 2,200 (2,200 - - - - -
(FizE (i) “2-CE (W)
—ELEFERE BERERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=—F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION 27 BARBIRESTEI(4E)

SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
(b)  Share option schemes (Continued) (b) ERRAESTE (&)
Number of share options
BhRESA
Outstanding
at
Outstanding 31 December Outstanding
at  Reclassified Lapsed 2016and  Reclassified Lapsed at
Name of category 1 January during during 1 January during during 31 December
of participants Option type 2016 the year the year 2017 the year the year 2017
R-E-XE
TZA=t-H
RZZB-AF R=B-t% R=B-t%
$5% -B-H RER RER -A-H RER RER +T=A=1-H
HESER BRERR AR EXNOE b3 WRTE  ENOE b3 WK
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
T T T T T T T
Mr Cheng Cheng 2011 (note () 1,500 (1,500) - - - - -
(note (i) ZE—E(WH()
R (R G) 2012 (note (i) 2,000 (2,000) - - - - -
“T-ZF (M)
Subtotal 8,100 (8,100) - - - - -
It

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION 27 BARBIRESTEI(4E)

SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
(b)  Share option schemes (Continued) (b) EBRREEETEI(E)
Number of share options
BhRESA
Outstanding
at
Outstanding 31 December Outstanding
at  Reclassified Lapsed 2016and  Reclassified Lapsed at
Name of category 1 January during during 1 January during during 31 December
of participants Option type 2016 the year the year 2017 the year the year 2017
RZB-RE
TZA=t-H
RZZB-AF R=B-t% RZZ-tF
$5% -B-H RER RER -A-8 RER RER+ZA=1-8
HESER BRERR AR EHNOE b3 WETE  ENOE b3 R
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
T T T T T T T
Other employees 2011 (note (i) 6,000 3,900 (9,900) - - - -
RS “E2——E(HE)
2012 (note (i) 11,500 4,200 (1,500) 14,200 - (14,200) -
“E-CE (M)
Subtotal 17,500 8,100 (11,400) 14,200 - (14,200) -
It
Total 25,600 - (11,400) 14,200 - (14,200) -
Ak

T LEFERSE BARRARAR @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION 27
SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(b) Share option schemes (Continued)
Notes:

(i) These options were granted on 18 March 2011
with exercise price of HK$11.730 and exercisable
from 18 June 2011 to 17 March 2016.

(i) These options were granted on 17 May 2012 with
exercise price of HK$12.632 and exercisable from
17 August 2012 to 16 May 2017.

(iii) During the year ended 2016, certain directors of
the Company ceased to be the directors and their
share options were reclassified to share options
held by employees as at 31 December 2016.

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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(b) ERRESTE ()
P -

U

(i)

(i)

ZEEPEA—T——F=ZA+N
AiEHE - 17#EEA11.7308 T
AR-—E——F~A+N\BE=Z
—A~EFE=ZA+EBTFUITE -

ZEERER T —FRAA+E
AEE  1TEER12.632F T
AR E——F N \At+ttHE2_ZF
—tFRA+TNEHFUITE -

BE_ZT—RFILFE  ARAHE
TEETHETESERBIRSZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

28 OTHER RESERVES 28 Hith{#iE

(@) Movements in components of other reserves (a) HRBEERES
Group
558
Employee Available-  Convertible
share-based for-sale bond
Share  Contributed compensation Merger financial equty  Translation Retained
premium surplus resernve reserve - assets reserve reserve reserve Others eamings Total
EENRR aft L5
BERZ hEeR 5k
RHEE LH BREE AliEE EEGE B EifE i RRES ]
RMBmilon ~ RMB'miion ~ RMBmilon ~ RMB'milon ~ RMBmilon ~ RMB'miion ~ RMBmilon ~ RMBmilon ~ RMBmilon  RMB'milion
A\REEET AR¥EET AREEET AREEET AR¥EEn AR¥EET ARMBER \RMBER \RMEER ARHEER
note ) note (i) note (i) note () note v note (v note (vi)
g g g R[] i3k R Hizk i)
Balances at 31 December 2015, ~ W-Z-RE+ZB=1-R
as previously reported (uEs) 238 109 3 ) 48 - 1,066 3305 22,063 51691
Business combination under REES T EREN
common control - - - 1,326 - - - 2 89 1,443
Balances at 1 January 2016, RIE-7F-A-AEH
asfestated (1E51) 238 109 IE! 6445) 18 - 1,066 338 215 53134
Total comprehensive income for the year EM2ENEAE - - - - (14 - % - 666 an
Transfer befween reserves FlERea - - - - - - - 609 (609) -
Final dividend for 2015 “3-nERERE - - - - - - - - 407) 407)
Lapsed share options BRiEhE - - (34) - - - - - % -
Issuance of convertible bonds LfiughEs - - - - - 195 - - . 1%
Acquistion of Kurlun Gas fERRIE - - - (15612) - - - - - (15612
Balances at 31 December 2016 REE-AETZA=T-REH 32,358 109 3 (22,067) 274 195 1,091 3942 21,836 37,787
Balances at 31 December 2016,  W=F-~E+=AZt-R
as previously reported [Gubtex-21) 32,358 109 3 (23,389) il 195 1,091 3,905 2,67 36,259
Business combination under KREHT 2 EHAH
common control - - - 1,326 - - - 3 165 1,528
Balances at 1 January 2017, RIF-t5-f-BEk
asrestated (1) 32,358 109 ¥ (22,057) m 195 1,001 3942 21,83 31,787
Total comprehensive income for the year  § AT &R - - - - (107) - (52 - 4760 4601
Transfer between reserves REReR - - - 143 - - - 690 833) -
Final dividend for 2016 E-RERERE - - - = = = = = (52) (522)
Lapsed share optons BRiEhE - - 39) - - - - - 3 -
Acaition of Jngtang Co. hEREAR - - - (1,906) - - - - - (1906)
Balances at 31 December 2017 R-E-tETZA=T-REH 32,358 109 - (23,820) 167 195 1,039 4632 25,280 39,960

T LEFERSE BARRARAR @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED) 28 Hibf#s (&)

(@) Movements in components of other reserves (a) EHittFEAKSE (E)
(Continued)
Company
K07
Employee
share-based ~ Convertible
Share  Contributed compensation  hond equity Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve earnings Total
=D\ B
RHE# E5k
RitaE Edzs fEGE ERfE RRER ]
RMB'million RMB million RMB million RMB'million RMB'milion RMB'milion
AREEET ARMBET ARMEER AREEET AREEET ARMBER
note (| note (i note (v
ik HiEE ) HizEh)
Balances at 31 December 2015~ W=F-EETA=1-A
and 1 January 2016, R-5-~F-F-RER
as restated (nES5) 3,358 109 73 - 13,646 46,186
Total comprehensive EnrElaEE
income for the year - - - - (737) (737)
Final chidend for 2015 “E-RERERS - - - - (£07) (£07)
Issuance of convertile bonds I EAES - - - 195 - 19
Lapsed share options BXERE - - (34 - 3 -
Balances at 31 December 2016, W-EF-~E+-A=t-ALH
as restated (WE5) 32,358 109 39 195 12,536 45,287
Balances at 31 December 2016 WZEF-AE+ZF=1-A
and 1 January 2017 k-5-tE-f-BEH 32,358 109 39 195 12,536 45,37
Total comprehensive EREAlGES
income for the year - - - - 3,424 3,424
Final dividend for 2016 ZE-ERERS - - - - (522) (522)
Lapsed share options BAERE - - (39) - 3 -
Balances at 31 December 2017  WZE-t£+ZA=+-HEH 32,358 109 - 195 15477 48,139

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiE=ZE—t+tF+=A=+—HILFE

28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Notes:

M

(i

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vil)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
the share premium account may be applied by
the Company in paying up unissued shares of
the Company to be issued to members of the
Company as fully paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of
the subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Group and the amount of the
Company'’s shares issued for the acquisition.

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the considerations and the aggregate
share capital of subsidiaries acquired under
business combinations under common control.

Available-for-sale financial assets reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in the fair
value of available-for-sale securities held at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in Notes
3(h).

The convertible bond equity reserve represents
the equity component of the convertible bonds at
initial recognition.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3(d)(ii).

Others mainly represent the statutory surplus
reserves. Pursuant to the Company Law of the
PRC, the Articles of Association and the resolution
of Board of Directors of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are required to transfer
10% of its net profit to statutory surplus reserves.
Appropriation to the statutory surplus reserves
may be ceased when the fund aggregates to
50% of those subsidiaries’ registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserves may be used to make
good previous years’ losses or to increase the
capital of those subsidiaries upon approval.

28 HAhfEME (48
(b) HftREZMHEEREN
W

(i BREERE-NN\—FREDE - K
EERF AR AR RA
RAIBRETZ AR RSB AR
ZIEARBEIT

(i BERRHRIENB R RN HASER
BHAZGABRRESEARRR
WEMHITZ RN EREC Z5

(i)  AGHEBENEREES N RBAH
PrUREF B A R 2 KB RBRA
ER o

vy AIERESREERBRERRE
AR HEEESFATEZR
32 - BREM TSN 2 g5t
BRERIE o

) AR ES R R AR TR R A
AEBRESERED o

(vi) P& X R B IR R E BN SRR E
EZFTAIE R ZRE o FIBIRIENE
3(d)(i) 2 EETERERRIE ©

Vi)  HMFEBEETAHBLAE - RE
(REARKFBARL) - ER4H
Bl Ko A PR B SR AR ST 2 AN S B B
RAEBG R ZEMBARA
RERFFBZ10%RIVEATEER
A - EATERB AR EE
BZEN B AR FEMEARZ50%
B+ A RERTIE o AT BB ATEL
B A AR R FEEE -
FIBINZ S B AT ZRRA -

T FFEHRE BERERARARA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED) 28
(c) Distributability of other reserves

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of
other reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended)
was RMB15,586 million (2016 restated: RMB12,645
million). After the end of the reporting period the
directors proposed a final dividend of RMB21.0
cents per ordinary share (2016: RMB6.5 cents
per share), amounting to RMB1,695 million (2016
restated: RMB522 million) (Note 15). This dividend
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

29 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED 29

Hith i (48)

(c)

] 7k EL At 5

R-ZE—tF+-_A=+—8 [l
MARBIEERED IR HAibFEER
THE(BEARE-NN—FRAE
(B8R TE) RARM 15586 85 &
T(ZE—RFEY - AR®12,645
BEL) MMEPRE EFER
AHBREEREBR2I0OARE D
(ZZE—RF: BR65ARE D) -
EARB16B/BEBIL(ZE—RFE
A ARMB22HE L) (MFE15) o
ZRBRBERRY AERAE—IEHE

e

FEfH R R R B 1R

LIABILITIES
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ERF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B 5 38(b)
Accounts payable FETER K 2,858 3,289
Advances from customers BEE 8,481 7,145
Salaries and welfare payable g e REF 284 255
Accrued expenses FEETR 26 21
Dividend payable FERTARE 1,069 3,246
Interest payable FERTFI B 376 205
Construction fee and equipment FEIT R B AR A AN
cost payables 10,279 9,765
Amounts due to related parties JE 1<) A BSE 75 SR IR
— Non-controlling interests - FEPE S s 1 185
- Others - HAtb 14 11
Deferred income EEWA 400 278
Other payables H th B 5B 2,781 2,384
26,569 26,784

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Cons
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olidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED 29 FEftERFIRETIAE ()

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
accounts payable, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

HERESHAR  EARIRBZAH 7 E®
DT ¢

2017 2016
—E—tE  —B-AF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARWEET ARMEET

(restated)

(E%)

Note 38(b)

B 38(b)

Within 3 months =EAN 2,290 2,448
Between 3 to 6 months =& A =7~E A 109 446
Over 6 months 7NE A LA 459 395
2,858 3,289

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables fall within the credit time
frame. The contractual maturity date of accounts payable
and accrued liabilities is within one year.

REEE M FHERKRHA0 R - REBEDH
EV SRR EIRBOR - ARATA BN RIA
BRBRERRIIAN - BNESXMEABEZS
WEHR—FR -

BORROWINGS 30 B

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—RF

RMB’million RMB’million

AREEERT ARKBET

(restated)

(&%)

Note 38(b)

B 5 38(b)

Short-term borrowings — unsecured HEEE - 10,487 12,149

Current portion of long-term borrowings FHIEE Z BIEAEED 1,318 4,436

7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 11,805 16,585

Long-term borrowings — secured REIEE - BEA 22 167

Long-term borrowings — unsecured REIEE - EEA 30,592 20,189
Less: Current portion of long-term B REEE 2 RNEE

borrowings (1,318) (4,436)

29,296 15,920

41,101 32,505

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated

in the following currencies:

faE (48)

fEEZBEREE TIEEE :

2017 2016
—ET—tF —T-RF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(E31)
Note 38(b)
B 5T 38(b)
Renminbi AR 30,542 22,627
US dollar ET 7,249 7,653
Hong Kong dollar BT 3,222 2,129
Japanese yen Hot 40 57
Euro BT 48 39
41,101 32,505
2017 2016
—ET—+tF —E-RF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
B 5T 38(b)
Total borrowings: REs
— At fixed rates -BER 39,669 29,971
— At floating rates - HEE 1,432 2,534
41,101 32,505
Weighted average effective I BRRF = -
interest rates:
- Bank loans - IRITERX 3.31% 3.75%
— Loans from an immediate - RE—EEEZERATZER
holding company 4.05% 4.19%
— Loans from an intermediate - RE—ETPEERARZER
holding company 2.00% 2.77%
- Loans from CP Finance - REPHEIEZER 417% 4.98%
— Loans from fellow subsidiaries - RERZMBARIZERK 3.73% 3.58%
— Senior notes - BERE 3.31% 3.31%

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE O
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 30 fBE(E)
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the borrowings of the RZBE—tHFRER_FT—RF+-_A=1+—
Group were repayable as follows: A AEBZEBERZINTER
Loans other
Bank loans than bank loans
IRITEN MRIBITERUNMZER
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF —E—+tF —ERF
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREEEBERT ARKBET ARMBER ARKBEERT
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (&%)
Note 38(b)
B 5 38(b)
Within one year —FR 3,386 3,648 8,419 12,937
Between one to two years —E=WF 1,543 1,390 2,888 50
Between two to five years MERF 1,232 1,596 19,178 8,568
After five years AENE 1,223 904 3,232 3,412
7,384 7,538 33,717 24,967
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAMAEBE ZITESHABBEZHRTE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. KFEH - FIZAER U AREBEAST N 2 &
The information presented is based on the earliest date on FHEPREE  WERTARNBRERE(E
which the Group can be required to pay and represents the FAS RFE)
undiscounted cash flow including principal and interest:
Loans other
Bank loans than bank loans
IRITEN MREBITERAIIZERK
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF —E—+tF —ERF
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT ARKBEBERLT ARYBER ARKBEE&ERT
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (&%)
Note 38(b)
B 5 38(b)
Within one year —FR 3,652 3,921 9,547 13,519
Between one to two years —EWF 1,693 1,536 4,105 502
Between two to five years MERF 1,434 1,764 20,249 9,298
After five years FFLAE 1,473 1,083 3,532 3,863
8,252 8,304 37,433 27,182
—E—+tFFERE BERERERAR
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S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

31 CONVERTIBLE BONDS 31 O[ERES
2017 2016
“E-tE “EE
Liability Equity Total Liabiltty Eouity Total
& Es H S ) e

RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'million RMB'milion RMB'milion RMB'milion

AE®BER  ARMEER ARMEEn ARWEER  AREEER  AREBER
(restated) (restated) (restated)

E) £ (&)

Carrying amount as at 1 January N-A-BZERE 3,156 195 3,351 - - -
Par value of convertile RIF-AEETL

bonds issued during 2016 EARSER - - - 3153 197 3350
Transaction costs RHNA - - - ] ] )
Camying amount on el Mg 2 REE

recognition - - - 3,126 19 3,320
Accumulated interest expense RERFIR400% 252

accrued at eflective interest flSRx

rate of 4,08% 128 - 128 b4 - b4
Accumulated interest paid BREHE

(inclusive of aangement feg) (BRRHER) (54) = (54) 2 - )
Carrying amount as MZA=T-8

at 31 December LEHE 3,280 195 3,425 3,156 195 3,351

On 13 July 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
issue convertible bonds due in 2019 (the “Convertible
Bonds”) with principal amount of RMB3,350 million to third
parties. The Convertible Bonds are denominated in RMB
bear interest of 1.625% and will be settled in United States
dollars. The conversion price was HK$7.13 per share
(translated into HK$ at the fixed RMB to HK$ exchange
rate of 0.8625) as at the date of issuance and is subject
to anti-dilutive adjustments. The issuance of Convertible
Bonds was completed on 25 July 2016. The conversion
price was adjusted to HK$7.05 per share with effect from
15 June 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there
was no conversion of the convertible bonds into shares in
the Company by the bondholders.

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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REWZ - Bt ARFREBAE=ZFET
AEBABARKIIOEETN-_TE—NF
FIEg ATsEin(E S ([ ERES]) - ARK
SHER AT B IR E 517 1.625% T B A5 A
TLEEHE - RETH  BIREARESRTI3ET
(IR AR A TTHE FE ER0.8625F A
PETD) W RIEE REEE R o BITRERE
EN_E—RE+A-THARTK - EiR(E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED) 31

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liability. The information
presented is based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay and represents the undiscounted
cash flow including principal and interest:

oERESE (8)

TRHALAEEZEHEEZHRTEHF
Hi - FR2FER AR EEAX N &HFH
HAEE  WRFANRRSKE(BEXN
EMFB)

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET

(restated)
(&%)
Within one year —FR 54 54
Between one to two years —EmME 3,404 54
Between two to five years MZERF - 3,404
3,458 3,512
INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 32 RiBIkRERPZHEH
FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current tax in the statement of financial (@) HERRRFZARBFRES :
position represents:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF

RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET AREBHET

(restated)
(&31))
Note 38(b)
Bt 5E 38(b)
Tax payables in respect of MBARINATEREN 2B :
subsidiaries in:
- PRC - 489 562
489 562
Withholding tax on dividend B ARl KRR B 2 TBHIT
distributed by the subsidiaries 6 163
495 725

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

32 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 32

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The movements in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

are as follows:

SRR P ZFEH (8)

(b) CHEIAZEEHREENREE:

BERBEEE,/(BE)FREHN

T

2017 2016
—E—tHF —TRF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET
(restated)
(&%)
At 1 January Rn—H—H 143 112
Currency EHETE AR
translation differences 9 (19)
Credited to the consolidated RéraEmT
profit or loss (Note 13) o (E13) - 50
Charged to other REM 2SR (39) -
comprehensive income
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 113 143
Representing: i
Deferred tax assets RIERIRE = 1,188 1,050
Deferred tax liabilities RAEFIAE & (1,075) (907)
113 143
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

32 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 32 HBiiRARPZFAEH (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CERIZELEHEEERES: (H)
(Continued)
The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) FRELEHBEE (BB 28
during the year without taking into consideration (I =E R IE R — B AR A
of the offsetting of balances within the same tax EER) AT ¢
jurisdiction, are as follows:
Undistributed
profits of PRC
and overseas
Accelerated  subsidiaries,
tax associate and Deferred
depreciation joint ventures income Others Total
R RS
WEAR
BENAR
mE  fELEX
HERE  APEANG BEWE Hit &g
RMB'million RMB’milion RMB'million RMB’million RMB'million
ARBBET ARMBEL AREBET AREBET AREEER
At1 January 2016, as restated  R=F—~F—A—AR
(mE5]) (290) (235) 223 414 12
Currency translation differences & E R ZHE (17) - - @ (19
Credited/(charged) to the REAEREPES,/ (%)
consolidated profit or loss 38 (50) 49 13 50
At 31 December 2016, WZE2—X"¥+-A=1+-H
as restated (mE31) (269) (285) 272 425 143
At 1 January 2017 R-B—+E-f—H (269) (285) 272 425 143
Currency translation differences & E R £HE 6 2 - 1 9
Credited/(charged) to the REABRTESR/ (1K)
consolidated profit or loss 15 (109) 6 88 -
Charged to other REM2ERENR
comprehensive income - - - (39) (39)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1-H (248) (392) 218 475 113
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

33 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE 33. MEHEERE
At 31 December 2017, the Group had obligations under R-E—+F+-_A=+—8 AEBEE
finance leases repayable as follows: ENRERERENT -
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ERF
Present Present
value of value of
the Total the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REEEN REHEE EMER HEHE
MZBE R AE w2 HE N #E

RMB’million  RMB’million ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB’million
ARBEERT AR®BEER ARBEERLT ARBEER

(restated) (restated)
(&%) =)
Within 1 year —FR 158 161 166 170
After 1 year but R—FZBRMEA
within 2 years 143 153 151 161
After 2 yearsbut ~ RARFEERAFNA
within 5 years 50 57 183 210
193 210 334 371
351 371 500 541
Less: Total future  Jik : RAKH| EFZBEE
interest expenses (20) (41)
Present value of ~ HERIEZIHRE
lease obligations 351 500
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

COMMITMENTS 34 EkiE
Operating lease commitments (a) REHEEE
Operating lease commitments of the Group AEEzEEBEREFTERBEL
are mainly for leasing of land and buildings and HMEEFURZHE HENT—F
equipment. Leases range from one to thirty years =tFZHE —RTBREELOEFR -
and usually do not contain renewal options. Future RZE—+tFERZZE—RF+=A
minimum lease payments as of 31 December 2017 =+—H  BETAIFHEILLEHE
and 2016 under non-cancellable operating leases ZARREEHEERNZTAT
are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(0)
B 5E 38(b)
Not later than one year —FR 279 251
Later than one year and not FE_EFRFA
later than five years 581 482
More than five years AFELE 627 512
1,487 1,245
(b) Capital commitments (b) EFEE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Contracted but not ERINERELEE :
provided for:
Qil field development costs MHEFREER - -
Acquisitions of/capital W EIEE /MR EEE HE
contributions to investments = -
Other property, plant and HHE - BE REE
equipment 395 6,811
395 6,811
Authorised but not EHUEERETH -
contracted for:
Qil field development costs HEREER 285 522
Acquisitions of/capital WIEIREEE /MIREEE HE
contributions to investments - 3,523
Other property, plant and HAinz - Bz K&
equipment 5,490 12,875
5,775 16,920
—E—+tFFERE BERERERAR



o ©)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

35

OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT
Leng Jiapu Contract

Pursuant to the Leng Jiapu Contract signed in 1997, the
Group agreed to acquire 70% of the production sharing
interest for RMB1,008 million and to fund its share of
cost of the development carried out for the realisation
of oil production (the “Development Operations”) in the
area as defined in the Leng Jiapu Contract (the “LJP
Contract Area”), at an estimated cost of US$65.5 million
(approximately RMB474 million) in the first two years of the
development period and be further responsible for 70% of
the development cost after the first two years, in exchange
for a 70% share in the oil production from the LJP Contract
Area.

Pursuant to the Leng Jiapu Contract, the Group shall bear
70% of the costs required for the Development Operations
in the LJP Contract Area which shall be allocated (after
deduction of local taxes and enterprise income tax) firstly
towards operating costs recovery and thereafter in the
proportion of 70% to the Group and 30% to PetroChina
towards investment recovery and profit.

The Leng Jiapu Contract provides twenty consecutive
years of production sharing commencing from the
completion of the Development Operations. The production
sharing period commenced on 1 March 1998.

In connection with the Leng Jiapu Contract, the Group
has also entered into an Entrustment Contract with an
operational entity owned and operated by CNPC, whereby
the latter is entrusted to take up the responsibility as
an operator. Under the Entrustment Contract, a Joint
Development Management Organisation was established
for the performance of the contractual responsibilities
under the operatorship.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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HEERSD KSR
RREAR

BEFTR—NANEFENLREAR @ A&
EREWET70% 2 EMmOKER - FEAR
¥1,008B8TT WEAERRARKESGRMAA
EZHE ([RREARME ) A EER M
Emm ([RBIEXD BLZAEKAN - amF
AR AAEBSAEETL(HAR
BA4T4BEBT)  WINBEBREERFRT0%
LB - LIS RREERHET70% 2
EHE o

RELSREAR  AEEAELSKEGRM
AR ER MAEEDKATHZ 70% KA -
EENEKR MR EMREAERERMEHR
&) RN EEEKA - Harh A EE
B A HIR70% B30% 2 th Pl # 5 - 1B R
W B8 A e BRE RO A

REBERMRE  ARBEXRT AR
AEESEAHEE_+tH - AEEH
—ANANF=A—HEDEAHEES -

AEENTRSFKEERE—EdPEOMmE
BeERATEELXBEBILREA
Rl it - BEEREAEERIEEENE
T REZFAER  CRUBAMEERA
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OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT 35 HHESRSBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Leng Jiapu Contract (Continued) RREGRE (&)
The summary of assets, liabilities and results for the year REEEBASERRREGRZERCE
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in = BEREEMENGREWBRERERH
relation to the Group’s interest in the Leng Jiapu Contract A
is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET
(restated)
(&%)
(i) Results for the year (i) REEEE
Income WA 762 555
Expenses F (745) (767)
(i) Assets and liabilities i) =EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE 471 564
Current assets MEVEE 370 299
Current liabilities mEEE (98) (206)
Non-current liabilities JEmEBAE - -
Net assets BEFE 743 657
(il Capital commitments (i) EAREE
Contracted but not BEEIAERIEL B
provided for - -
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 FEEARS

CNPC, the controlling shareholder of the Company, is
a state-controlled enterprise directly controlled by the
PRC government. The PRC government is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company. Related parties include
CNPC and its subsidiaries (together, the “CNPC Group”),
other state-owned enterprises and their subsidiaries which
the PRC government has control, joint control or significant
influence over the enterprises which the Group is able to
control, jointly control or exercise significant influence over,
key management personnel of the Company and CNPC,
their close family members and any entity, of any member
of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group’s parent.

B A R (R R AR Hxﬁx%)i%EBEPILEﬁZ
FEEZEGZEBLE - PEBRARR
ZEAEYERTT - B E@%EPIEEEI&
HIB AR (588 [imkE]) - B BEBA
EH - KEESISGENEATE 2 HMEE
ﬁ%&ﬁﬁZW% RNV &S SE= 3 e
B - HEEBIHTEERAFEZLE - AR
AINFTEOREEZEIRERAR REZ
MR B ETER - S —HRE IR
KRERAR(REEz—HD) AAKEZHQ
ARHET2EEABR -
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

In addition to the related party information shown
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the following is a summary of significant related party
transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business
between the Group and its related parties during the years
and balances arising from related party transactions at the
end of the years indicated below:

(a) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures

The Group has extensive transactions with other
companies in the CNPC Group. Due to these
relationships, it is possible that the terms of
the transactions between the Group and other
members of the CNPC Group are not the same as
those that would result from transactions with other
related parties or wholly unrelated parties.

The principal related party transactions with the
CNPC Group and associates and joint ventures of
the Group which were carried out in the ordinary
course of business, are as follows:

(i) The Group entered into (i) the Xinjiang
Contract and the Leng Jiapu Contract
(together, the “PSAs”) with the CNPC Group
in 1996 and 1997 respectively and (i) certain
supplemental agreements, including a fifth
supplemental agreement on 6 November
2014 for connected transactions for the
three years ended 31 December 2017, for
the purpose of renewing the terms of the
previously signed master agreement and
supplemental agreements.

Under the PSAs and the master agreement,
a framework for a range of products and
services to be procured from the CNPC
Group to the Group and vice versa including
oil and gas products, general products and
services, financial services and rental services
is provided.

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 FABtARS(48)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates (@) HEFHEE BELATREGELEZ
and joint ventures (Continued) x5 (#)
() (Continued) () (%)

Provision of general products and
services by the CNPC Group to the
Group amounted to approximately
RMB7,908 million (2016 restated:
RMB3,528 million) for the year ended
31 December 2017 which includes
interest charged on the loans and
advances obtained from CNPC,
PetroChina, Sun World and fellow
subsidiaries of approximately RMB959
million (2016 restated: RMB687
million).

Purchase of the Group’s share of
crude oil production by the CNPC
Group amounted to approximately
RMB762 million (2016 restated:
RMB875 million) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

. HE-Z—+tF+=-A
=+—HLFE  #H
SERMASEERHZ —
MEmMIRE BELOA
R¥79088H &t =
T—RFEY AR
3528 B L) BEH
BFREAHEE - PR
A # ~ Sun World X2 [A]
AWBLARESZER
RBFAEZ2NENR
ARBISOEE T(=
T—RFEY: AR
687 HEIT) °

o HE-ZT—+tF+T=H
=+T—BHIEFE  $h
SEBEASEE RH
EESKHO /AR
T2 EBIL(ZE—RF
55 : ARMST5E &
TT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures (Continued)

(i) (Continued)

° Rental payments by the Group
for leasing of certain offices and
warehouses in Hong Kong and the
PRC from the CNPC Group amounted
to approximately RMB11 million (2016
restated: RMB18 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

° Purchase of crude oil, natural gas,
refined oil products, chemical
products and other ancillary or similar
products by the Group from the CNPC
Group amounted to approximately
RMB30,984 million (2016 restated:
RMB27,310 million) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

U Provision of general products and
services by the Group to the CNPC
Group amounted to approximately
RMB15,040 million (2016 restated:
RMB10,569 million) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

(ii) The Group has entered into agreements
for the sales of natural gas with certain
associates of the Group amounting to
approximately RMB113 million (2016
restated: RMB70 million) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The above transactions in (i) and (ii)
constituted connected transactions in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

O
36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 FEAEEARS (48)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates (@) HEFHEE BELATREGELEZ
and joint ventures (Continued) X5 (1)
(i)  Asat31 December 2017 and 2016, amounts iy MRZE—EFRERZT—HF

due from and to CNPC Group and joint
ventures of the Group, which are unsecured

TZRA=1—8  BREERN
THHER AEEZAER

and interest free, except borrowings, loans to ¥2RIE(REE - ERXT—
an associate and obligations under finance B E AR gt & & A E
leases, are included in the following accounts SN REEBERREE  BFFA

captions and summarised as follows:

THgEERE AXLBERIT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEEBERT ARKBET
(restated)
(&%)
Note 38(b)
M EE 38(b)
Intangible and other mRREMIEREEE
non-current assets 387 1,411
Accounts receivable JE U BR X 462 658
Prepaid expenses and FENRREMREEE
other current assets 588 584
Accounts payable and FERBRR R BT A&
accrued liabilities 4,226 4,838
Borrowings BE 27,212 18,159
Obligations under BhE &R IE
finance leases 217 319
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with Beijing Enterprises Holdings
Limited (“Beijing Enterprises Holdings”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Beijing Enterprises
Group”)

Beijing Pipeline has entered into an agreement
with PetroChina (the “Natural Gas Transmission
Agreement”), pursuant to which PetroChina has
commissioned Beijing Pipeline for the transmission
of natural gas to its designated natural gas buyers
and Beijing Pipeline has commissioned PetroChina
to collect from such natural gas buyers payments
relating to the natural gas transmission. Under the
terms of the Natural Gas Transmission Agreement,
the pipeline transmission fee shall be payable on
such basis as set out in the agreement entered into
between PetroChina and the relevant natural gas
buyers. A subsidiary of Beijing Enterprises Holdings,
a non-controlling interests in Beijing Pipeline, is
one of such natural gas buyers designated by
PetroChina. Revenue from transmission of natural
gas received and receivable from the Beijing
Enterprises Group amounted to approximately
RMB3,419 million (2016 restated: RMB5,104
million) for the year ended 31 December 2017. This
transaction constituted connected transactions
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

36 FBARS(E)

(b)

B R ARAR (T RER ) &
MEAE (FHE [t ERER ) X
2

REERABRAMI L — DB
(TRAREXWBZE] - Bt A=
AREFALREEREEEAARE
FRERAR  MEREEEZTH
BEAHEREAZSERAARE KRS
BRRXKARZIE - RIBRARE
KRG BERABKRETE
AREABRRARE HRIN 2 BT
o BEET o A FIERR  — R B
AEI(EREBZ ISR B
FERABEECZERAREAZ
—HEFT—t+tF+_H=+—H
IEFE - B RERIE TR ER 2
REBERARZWAZLNAARE
349BBIT(ZZE—RFEY : AR
¥ 5,104 BEIL) - R SRR AN
BH ETARAEUAZERBERS °

Key management compensation () FEEEEZMS
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREBHET
(restated)
(E3)
Salaries and allowances Hekile 6 7
Retirement benefits — defined RIRER - RERRETE
contribution scheme 1 1
7 8
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Transactions with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Kunlun
Gas, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Compay, has
acquired the equity interest in Jingtang Co. owned
by PetroChina pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the acquisition agreement dated 28 September
2017 and entered into between Kunlun Gas and
PetroChina in respect of the acquisition.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company has acquired the entire equity interest in
Kunlun Gas owned by PetroChina pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the acquisition agreement
dated 28 December 2015 and entered into between
the Company and PetroChina in respect of the
acquisition.

Apart from the aforementioned transactions and
the transactions with CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures, the Group has transactions with
other state-controlled entities include but not limited
to (i) sales and purchases of goods and services;
(i) purchases of assets; (i) lease of assets; and (iv)
pank deposits and borrowings.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business on terms
comparable to those with other entities that are not
state-controlled.

36

O

BARE S X 5 (48)

(d)

RE-F—tE+-A=+—AILF
B ARAZ2EHBARRANE
EL AR IR B A SRR B SR
R = F—EEAA =+ N\RFETT
WO 2 (TR - R LR
PR 3R 2 IR ©

HE-_Z—ARF+_A=+—HItF
B REBEAAGEPRAHGEKES
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W 2 R RIEE  AREIE
WETRE AR ERER AN EE
PRHE o

Br bR 5 R B IHERE - B AR
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37

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker which is determined as the Executive
Directors of the Company.

The Group organises its business around products and
services. From the products and services perspective, the
Group is engaged in a broad range of petroleum related
activities and derives its revenue from its four operating
segments: Exploration and Production, Natural Gas Sales,
LNG Processing and Terminal and Natural Gas Pipeline.

The Exploration and Production segment is engaged in
the exploration, development, production and sales of
crude oil and natural gas. The Natural Gas Sales segment
is engaged in wholesales and retail sales of various natural
gas and LNG products. LNG Processing and Terminal
segment is engaged in the processing, unloading, storing,
gasification and transportation of LNG. Natural Gas
Pipeline segment is engaged in the transmission of natural
gas through pipeline.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on each segment’s profit/(loss)
before income tax expense, share of profits less losses of
associates and joint ventures (“segment results”).

Total assets exclude deferred and current taxes, available-
for-sale financial assets, investments in associates and joint
ventures (“segment assets”), as all of which are managed
on a central basis.

Corporate income and expenses, net, mainly refers to
interest income earned from cash and cash equivalents,
net exchange gains/losses, general and administrative
expenses and interest expenses incurred at corporate
level.

Corporate assets mainly comprise cash and cash
equivalents held at corporate level.
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiE=ZE—t+tF+=A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Neither the Group’s revenue is derived from nor the Group’s
non-current assets are located in the place of domicile of
the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue of
approximately RMB15,800 million (2016 restated:
RMB11,444 million) is derived from one (2016: one)
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group’s revenues. The revenue is attributable
to the Exploration and Production, Natural Gas Sales,
LNG Processing and Terminal and Natural Gas Pipeline
segments.

ACQUISITION

(a) 2016 business combination under common
control

On 28 December 2015, the Company entered
into the acquisition agreement with PetroChina
(“Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Company has
agreed to purchase, and PetroChina has agreed
to sell, the entire equity interest in Kunlun Gas at a
cash consideration of approximately RMB14,827
million, subject to adjustment on gain or loss of
Kunlun Gas during the transition period, as defined
in the Agreement. The acquisition was completed
on 31 May 2016, and Kunlun Gas has become a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since
then. As PetroChina and the Group are ultimately
controlled by CNPC, the acquisition of Kunlun
Gas was regarded as business combination under
common control. To consistently apply the Group’s
accounting policy for common control combination,
the acquisition has been accounted for based on
the principles of merger accounting in accordance
with AG 5 issued by the HKICPA. The financial
statements of the Group have been prepared using
the merger basis of accounting as if the current
group structure had been in existence throughout
the periods presented. The final consideration of
RMB15,612 million payable by the Group has been
treated as an equity transaction.
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38 ACAQUISITION

(b)

2017 business combination under common
control

As mentioned in Note 2(b) to these consolidated
financial statements, the acquisition of Jingtang Co.
has been accounted for in accordance with AG 5.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of Jingtang
Co. acquired by the Group have been accounted
for at historical cost and the financial statements of
the Group for periods prior to the combination have
been restated to include the financial position and
results of operation of Jingtang Co. on a combined
basis. The final consideration of RMB1,906 million
payable by the Group has been treated as an equity
transaction. The details of the restated balances are
as follows:

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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38 ACQUISITION (CONTINUED) 38 IEE(48)

(b) 2017 business combination under common b) —FE—tFHEZHTZEEESH
control (Continued) (&)

BE-_ZT—FXR"F+-_A=+—HIF
EREEERRN - E—RF+ A
—t+—HZUBRKRZBEHT M

The summarised results of operations for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and the financial position
as at 31 December 2016 are set out below:

T~
Inter-company
The Group Jingtang Co. eliminations The Group
F5E REAA NEHEHE r5E
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
ANEKEBEET ANEEEET ANERBBET ANEBBET
(as previously (restated)
reported)
(A& 25) (Z51)
Results of operations HEZZ—AF
for the year ended +-A=t+-H
31 December 2016 IHFEZBE%E
Revenue WA 69,616 784 - 70,400
Other gains, net Eiths o 38 674 - - 674
Interest income MEBA 297 3 - 300
Purchases, services and others e RS R (48,191) (121) - 48,312)
Employee compensation costs EEMENA (3,810) (37) - (3,847)
Depreciation, depletion and & BREREH
amortisation (5,411) (279 - (5,690)
Impairment loss on property, nx  BERRXEZ
plant and equipment FEEE (3,913) - - (3913)
Seling, general and HE - —RUEAEERER
administrative expenses (2,890) (22) - (2,912)
Taxes other than income taxes BRETERIAIN B R (507) (18) - (525)
Interest expenses MEXH (565) (86) - (651)
Share of profits less losses of: FELRFIAES
- Associates =N 605 - - 605
- Joint ventures -RERE 162 - - 162
Profit before income tax R EHE RADRR
expense 6,067 224 - 6,291
Income tax expense FERER (3,144) (56) - (3,200)
Profit for the year FEREF 2923 168 - 3,091
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38 ACQUISITION (CONTINUED) 38 WEE(48)
(b) 2017 business combination under common b) —F—tFHEAZHTZEESH
control (Continued) (&)
Inter-company
The Group Jingtang Co. eliminations The Group
F5E RERT S| iEiwE F5E
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
ANREEER AREEET ANEEEET ANREEET
(as previously (restated)
reported)
(A& 25) (E31)
Results of operations HE-TAF
for the year ended +-A=1+-H
31 December 2016 (Continued) IHFEZBERE(B)
Other comprehensive income: ~ Hit2HUE :
Items that may be reclassified L8 SEF by
subsequently o profit or loss: B ER -
— Exchange differences on -BiRRGEE L
tranlation of financial AR
statements, net of nil tax, of; NBRERER -
- Subsidiaries -fBAdE 66 - - 66
- Associates -BE AT (122) - - (122)
- Joint ventures -BERE 47 - - 47
- Fair value loss on -ARHNESREEL
available-for-sale financial AVEEE:
assets, net of tax MBHER (272) - - (272)
Other comprehensive income H2EkE (281) - - (281)
Total comprehensive income ER2ENRAH
for the year 2,642 168 - 2,810

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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38 ACQUISITION (CONTINUED) 38 IEE(48)

R -LFHRAEMT XK SH

(b) 2017 business combination under common (b)

control (Continued)

(%)

Inter-company
The Group Jingtang Co. gliminations The Group
F5E RERT AR r5E
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
ANREEER AREEER AEEEER ANEEEER
(as previously (restated)
reported)
(A& 25)) (Z31)
Results of operations HE-TAF
for the year ended +-A=1+-H
31 December 2016 (Continued) IHFREVREEE (B
Profit for the year attributable to: £ REERF :
- Owners of the Company - ARARE 581 85 - 666
- Non-controlling interests - JEEI R 2,342 83 - 2,425
2,923 168 - 3,091
Total comprehensive income FREE2ENGEE
for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company -ARRRE 392 85 - 477
- Non-controlling interests - JERRIM R 2,250 83 - 2,333
2,642 168 - 2,810
Earnings per share for profit FARARREERRZ
attributable to owners BREF
of the Company
- Basic (RMB cent) -ER(ARES) 7.20 1,05 - 8.25
 Ditted (RB cent) -EH(ARES) 7.20 1.0 . 8.25

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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38 ACQUISITION (CONTINUED) 38 WEE(48)
(b) 2017 business combination under common b) —F—tFHEAZHTZEESH
control (Continued) (&)
Inter-company
The Group Jingtang Co. eliminations The Group
F5E RERAH NIt F5E
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
ANREEER AREEET ANEEEET ANREEET
(as previously (restated)
reported)
(A& 25) (Z31)
Financial position as RZB—E+-A=+-H
at 31 December 2016 LI BAR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 0% - BERX 83,077 4,782 - 87,859
Advanced operating lease BREERER
payments 3,637 196 - 3,833
Investments in associates REERT RE 2,803 - - 2,803
Investments in joint ventures RREGEZRE 1,285 - - 1,285
Avallable-for-sale financial assets ~ AIEEESBEE 457 - - 457
Intangioles and other non-current &R AEREMIEREEE
assets 2,422 2 - 2,424
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 1,050 - - 1,050
94,731 4,980 - 99,711
Current assets RBEE
Inventories Ie3 | 1,242 - - 1,242
Accounts receivable IR 2,767 191 - 2958
Prepaid expenses and BRI RAMREEE
other current assets 5,398 460 - 5,808
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEERE 19,163 2 - 19,165
28,570 653 - 29,223
Total assets BeE 123,301 5,633 - 128,934

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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38 ACQUISITION (CONTINUED) 38 IEE(48)
(b) 2017 business combination under common b) —FE—tFHEZHTZEEESH
control (Continued) (&)
Inter-company
The Group Jingtang Co. gliminations The Group
F5E RERT NEEEHE r5E
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
ARBBEL AREEER AEEEER ANEEEER
(as previously (restated)
reported)
(mpAE251) (Z51)
Financial position as RZB—E+-A=+-H
at 31 December 2016 LB ()
(Continued)
Equity 4
Capital and reserves attributable &2 7R REERAR e
to owners of the Company
Share capital g 65 2,600 (2,600) 65
Retained earnings BRET 21,671 324 (159) 21,836
Other reserves Eit G 14,588 71 1292 15,951
36,324 2,995 (1,467) 37,852
Non-controlling interests FEHIEER 22,576 - 1,467 24,043
Total equity % 58,900 2,99 . 61,895
Current liabilities nBaE
Accounts payable and ERESRENEE
accrued liabilities 26,704 80 - 26,784
Income tax payable FER AR 693 32 - 725
Other tax payable HthEATE 654 26 - 680
Short-term borrowings EHEE 14,085 2,500 - 16,585
Obligations under finance leases HERSHE 166 - - 166
42,302 2,638 - 44,940

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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38 ACQUISITION (CONTINUED)

38 WHEE (&)

(b) 2017 business combination under common b) —F—tFHEAZHTZEESH
control (Continued) (&)
Inter-company
The Group Jingtang Co. eliminations The Group
F5E RERT NIt F5E
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
ANREEER AREEET ANEEEET ANREEET
(as previously (restated)
reported)
(A& 25) (Z31)
Financial position as RZB—E+-A=+-H
at 31 December 2016 LB ()
(Continued)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Long-term borrowings REMEE 15,920 - - 15,920
Convertiole bonds AEHEs 3,156 - - 3,156
Deferred tax liabilities ERHEAR 907 - - 907
Obligations under finance leases BERSHIE 334 - - 334
Other liabilties EftafE 1,782 - - 1782
22,099 - - 22,099
Total liabiities Ba% 64,401 2638 - 67,039
Total equity and liabilities AEEREE 123,301 5,633 - 128,934
Net current liabilities RBEETFE (13,732) (1,985) - (15,717)
Total assets less current BEERRDAR
liabilities 80,999 2,995 - 83,994

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017



o o\ ¥

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRFRMEE
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O
38 ACQUISITION (CONTINUED) 38 IEE(48)
(b) 2017 business combination under common b) —FE—tFHEZHTZEEESH
control (Continued) (&)
Inter-company
The Group Jingtang Co. gliminations The Group
F5E RERT AR r5E
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
ANREEER AREEER AEEEER ANEEEER
(as previously (restated)
reported)
(A& 25)) (Z31)
Cash flows for the year HE-TAF
ended 31 December 2016 +-A=t+-H
IFEEZRERE
Net cash generated from BEsBmEL
operating activities BeEs 13,689 442 - 14,131
Net cash used in investing REXBIAZ
activiies Be%E (19,536) (7%) - 20339)
Net cash generated from BEEBMEL
financing activities BeEs 10,470 354 - 10,824
Net increase in cash ReRAEEEER
and cash equivalents ZIEMFE 4,623 - - 4,623
Cash and cash equivalents RZB-~E-F-H
at 1 January 2016 ZHERBESEER 14,378 2 - 14,380
Effect of foreign exchange Exggs 58
rate changes 162 - - 162
Cash and cash equivalents at BRoB-RE
31 December 2016 T-A=t+-H
ZEEREESEER 19,163 2 - 19,165

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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39

40

41

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the change in presentation currency and
application of AG 5, certain comparative figures have been
restated. Further details are disclosed in Notes 3(y)(a) and
38.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2018 and will be
submitted to the shareholders for approval at the 2018
Annual General Meeting to be held on 24 May 2018
(Thursday).

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which
are limited liability companies at 31 December 2017, are as
follows:

39 LLEEE

HREYEBEEH RIRMNTTESIE55%
ETLRBIBECEET - #E— PFBERHE
3(y)(@) & sk 38 %= ©

40 HLESFEMBRE

HiEABRREN —_E-N\E=A=-+H
EEECE R FREAPEIER
“E-NFREA-ZTHAESHN) ARz

T \FRRBEFAg LEH -

41 FEMHBAT

RRARZE—+F+_A=+—HBZEEM
BRR(BGRBERETRR]) 2FBWT

Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
e/ BRARARRA/ AREEL
WEARAR et 3 iftEA 2 EEERER EZEIM
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in the PRC
EhEBE  LEREERA
Beckbury International Limited British Virgin Islandss (“BVI") USS1 Limited liabifty company 100.00% (note {j)
ABRUES %7 ERERLA k)
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Peru
EREER  LEREERM
SAPET Development Corporation (“SAPET") United States of America 100 ordinary shares Limited liabilty company 50.00% (note (i)
1@ 1o par valu EREAAT Rz ()
100 EBRERE
SAPET Development Peru Inc. United States of America 100 ordinary shares Limited liabilty company 50.00% (note (i)
1@ 1o par valu EREAAT Rz ()
100 EBRERE

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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41 FEMBAE(E)

Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
e/ BRTRERRE/ ALEEL
WEARER R iftEAz#E EEERER RREAM
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Thailand
EREHE  LEREERH
Central Place Gompany Limited Hong Kong 160 ordinary shares Limited liabilty company 100.00%
Bk 160 &R BREALF
Sino-U.S. Petroleum Inc. United States of America US$1,000 Limited liabilty company 100.00%
X8 1000%7 ERERLA
CNPCHK (Thailand) Limited Thailand Baht100 million Limited liabilty company 100.00%
78 1008 ERHK EREfRLF
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Azerbaijan
EMEREGR  LERHERM
Fortunemate Assets Limited BV US$1 Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note (i)
ABRAES E3 EREfRLF (&)
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Kazakhstan
ERERAGE  tEREERH
CNPC International (Gaspian) Limited BvI US8100 Limited liabilty company 60.00%
AERAER 100%7T EREMRA
Natural gas business
KREEH
Kunlun Gas PRC RMB8,560 million Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note (i)
ERIR hE ARESS60EET EREMRA (Bzq)
Xinjlang Xinjie Co., Ltd. PRC RMB4,370 million Limited liabilty company 98.50% (note (i)
HEMRRNERAT hE ARB43I0BET ERERLA GiR1)
EERRRRNERAA PRC RMB2,082 milion Limited liability company 77.88% (note ()
hE ARE2082EET EREMRA (Bzq)
GNPC Shennan Oil Technology Development PRC RMB1,102 million Limited liability company 100.00% (note (i)
Co,, Ltd. hE ARE1102BET ERERLA (HzEM)
AR RARRRR IR EERAR
—ELEFERE BERERERAT
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

41 FEMBAE(E)

Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
e/ BRARARRA/ AREEL
WEARER et 3 iftEA 2 EEERE BRAAM
Natural gas business (Continued)
AREEH ()
Kunlun Energy Investment Shandong PRC RMB1,500 million Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note (i)
Company Limited T ARE15005ET BRELAE (BirzE0)
ERiRRE(LR)ARAT
Huagang Gas Group Company Limited PRC RMB1,500 milion Limited liability company 51.00% (note ()
ZEMREERRAT hE ARE1S00BET ERERLA (RszE ()
X'an Qinggang Clean Energy Technology PRC RMB330 million Limited liabilty company 51,00% (note ()
Company Limited P ARE30EET EREALT GE)
AR EBZMARERAR
B RERERLR PRC RMBI00 milion Limited fiabilty company 51.00% (note ()
hE AREQOEET ERELAR (M)
HERREERRAT PRC RMB500 millon Limited fiabilty company 94.00% note ()
e AR#S0EET EREfLF (M)
Emthe AERAT PRC RMB195 milion Limited fiabilty company 100.00% note ()
hE ARE195BET ERELRA (BizEq)
KunLun Energy (Liaoning) Company Limited PRC RMB192 million Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note (i)
Emih (RE)ARAT hE AEE 19288 ERERLA k)
RRsREEERAT PRC RMB48 milion Limited liabiity company 100.00% (note (j)
hE AR BEET ERELAR (&)
Binhai New Energy Co., Ltd. PRC RMB224 million Limited liabilty company 51.00% (note ()
REABRERENEARARAA e AEB24EET EREfLF (W)
RRiR (8 BRAT PRC RMB105 millon Limited fiabifty company 100.00% (note ()
hE ARE105BET EREMRA (BzE)
Jiin Jigang Clean Energy Company Limited PRC RMBE57 million Limited liabilty company 51.00% (note ()
ENEREZRARAR hE ANREBTBET ERERLA k)
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FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 41 EEMBAT(EF)
Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
e/ BRTRERRE/ ALEEL
WEARER R iftEAz#E EEERER RREAM
Natural gas business (Continued)
AREEH ()
Gangzhou Gas Limited Gompany Petrochina PRC RMB200 million Limited liabilty company 51,00% (note ()
BN RERAT hE ARE200EET ERERLA GiR1)
Jiangsu LNG PRC RMB2,651 million Limited liabilty company 55.00% (note ()
TELNG hEl ARE2651EET BREMRA (Rizq)
Jingtang Co. PRC RVB2,880million Limited liabilty company 51.00%
RERA hE ARE280EET EREMRA
PetroChina Dalian LNG Co., Ltd. PRC RMB2,600 million Limited liabifty company 75.00% (note ()
TR AERAARARAR hE ARE260EET EREMRA (Bizq)
Beiing Pipeline PRC RMB17,733 milion Limited liabilty company 60.00% (note (i)
IrER hE AREATIEET ERERLA (MzEM)
Petrochina Tianjin Gas Pipeline Co., Lid. PRC RMB255 million Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note (i)
hRBRERAREERRAR e ARE 255 BET EREfLA tied)
Notes: BaE
() Shares are held directly by the Company. 0} BAARIEERERD
(i) In accordance with the share purchase agreement dated 0) BEAMAE-SZT—FNANE ZEBRIB

8 September 2001, the Group has the rights to variable
returns from its involvement with SAPET and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over SAPET. As
a result, SAPET is accounted for as a subsidiary of the
Company.

Since SAPET Development Peru Inc. is wholly-owned by
SAPET, it is also accounted for as the subsidiary of the
Company.

o AEEBREANFELESAPET £55m=
B RIRER - WHEE B BEE SAPET
BAEMNEIMEEZEO®R Bt
SAPET #RBARBIZHEB AR

A SAPET Development Peru Inc.
SAPET2E#H » tRH IR AR AR Z
MEBAR -

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE

42 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had interest in
the following principal associates:

42 FEBEANT

RZE—+tFR_FE—ARNF+_A=+—
B AEBRATEBHBL G BAER

Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to

Name of associates establishment registered capital legal entity the Group

AL/ BRIRMERT/ AREEL

BENTER R BE ifEA 2z EEERER BHASY

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Kazakhstan

ERERFEGE  EEREERA

Aktobe Kazakhstan 8,946,470 Joint-stock company 15.07% (note (i)

g A common shares LN (Rf3Eq)
0f 1,500 tenge each
(note (i)
8,946,470
BRME 508X
B (3t )

Natural gas distribution in the PRC

EPEAERAR

China City Natural PRC RMB,000 million Equity joint venture 49,00% (note (ii)

Gas Investrent Group Co,, Ltd. e ARE10008ET RhaErE (Bs (i)

TP R R R A BARAR

Notes: BaE -

() Issued and paid up share capital of Aktobe consists () Aktobe B 31T K 81 2 AR 7N 135 8,946,470
of 8,946,470 ordinary shares and 943,955 preference [i% I 38 A% B2 943,955 AR B % o 1B 5T AR R
shares. The preference shares give their holders the right THEHRBEARNZHERRBFAE (MB
to participate in general shareholders’ meetings without BRBIRERE) -
voting rights generally.

(ii) The effective equity interest of Aktobe attributable to the (ii) FA Aktobe 2 25.12% i A E 35 F

Group is 15.07% as the 25.12% equity interest in Aktobe
is held by a non-wholly owned subsidiary in which the
Group holds a 60% equity interest.

(iii) Shares held directly by the Company.

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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B FE {5 Aktobe 7 BRI A 15.07% ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

O
PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES 43 TEEGELHE
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had interest RZBE—tHFRER_FT—RF+-_A=1+—
in the following principal joint ventures: H AEERUATEECECEEAER -
Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of joint ventures establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
ML/ BRIRMERE/ AREEL
RELRLR R BE ifEA 2z EEERER BRADY
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Oman
EREHE  LEREERA
Mazoon Petrogas (BVI) Limited BV 50,000 ordinary Limited liabilty company 50.00% (note (i)
shares of US$1 each ERERLA (zE )
ABRAES 50000 kS RERE
1ETERR

Manufacturing of steel pipe in the PRC

RPERERE
EpEEERAA PRC RMB468 millon Equity joint venture 30.56%
e ANRE 48 EET Riragrx (note () and (i)
(0 R
Production of petro-chemical products in the PRC
ROEAERRLIER
EERWEHERAT PRC RMB223 millon Equity joint venture 25.00% note ()
hE ARE23BET RhaErE (PR3 )
Notes: BT -
0] The shares of the above principal joint ventures are held i) FlFEEELENROBARREEE
directly by the Company. B
(i) In accordance with the joint venture agreement, the Group (i) BEREECERZE AR RAMEES
and the other investor agreed to share control of the entity AELEESHEEREREZEZLHNE
and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. EFE -

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE —E—+F+-_F=+—HItEE

44 COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 44 ATEBEMABIRAER
FINANCIAL POSITION

2017 2016
—E—+E —T—REF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
BRE ARBEET AREKEET
(restated)
(&%)
Assets BE
Non-current assets QFﬁEJ EE
Investments in associates ABFE N R ZIRE 931 931
Investments in joint ventures E(‘f:.\ BEIRE 80 82
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRZI&E 54,520 52,712
Intangible and other non-current B R EMIERE
assets BE - 401
55,531 54,126
Current assets REEE
Prepaid expenses and TAR R H A7 ED
other current assets BE 7,993 11,945
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS FEIEE 4,426 1,073
12,419 13,018
Total assets HWEE 67,950 67,144
Equity R
Capital and reserves attributable AR B IR R AEAG B AN
to owners of the Company K f#iE
Share capital [N 27 65 65
Retained earnings B 7 EF 28 15,477 12,536
Other reserves Hibfkts 28 32,662 32,701
48,204 45,302

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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FEMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE O
COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 44 ATBEHBIRRARE ()
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
2017 2016
Bt —ZE—RE
Note RMB’million RMB’million
B 5T ARBEERT AREBHETT
(restated)
(E%)
Liabilities aE
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable and FERTBR R
accrued liabilities EETafE 1,463 1,165
Short-term borrowings MHEE 3,200 7,963
Income tax payable FERT RS HL 15 10
4,678 9,138
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Long-term borrowings REEE 11,838 9,548
Convertible bonds AERES 31 3,230 3,156
15,068 12,704
Total liabilities waE 19,746 21,842
Total equity and liabilities EEhEEHEE 67,950 67,144
Net current assets REBEEEE 7,741 3,880
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERARHEE 63,272 58,006

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 45
PARTY

At 31 December 2017, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Sun World and CNPC which are incorporated
in the BVI and the PRC respectively. PetroChina, an
intermediate holding company, produces financial
statements available for public use.

HEERRZERAL

R-TE—+tF+-_RA=1+—H EFRR
AABEEERE MERZEBRALRSun
World J Bl MR B - 0 Bl 588 s X Bf
SRPBEEMKIL - PEAH - A—RHEE
ERAR - WEAHARALER 2% H
= o

T FFEHRE BERERARARA @
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46 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 46 &HEZE-_T—t&+-A=+—HIL%E
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EEMEM{BIERERRIERT « FER
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ERENTRRE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, BHEZSMBHREREMBE  HEGSFMA
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new SO EMZIBEE] « FELNRE  REZ
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective TE—tEFTZA=T—BLEFENRE
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and which have not W MAREREZ T EwmED - ZF8E
been adopted in these financial statements. These include VAR AT gE B AR SR BIARRE 2 (85T o
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting

periods beginning

on or after

RUT Bz &R ESTTHBEN

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

EBMBMEEANEIN 2 LA —E-N\F—HA—H

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018

ERMBHMEEAES  KEEFEAZHUA —E-N\F—-HA—H

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and measurement 1 January 2018
of share-based payment transactions

BEAUBREERE 25 (BFIR) - URGZIT - URG XX 5.2 5 E R E —Z—-N\F—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: Transfers of investment property 1 January 2018

EEGTERIE 4058 BFTR) - KEYE - KEY X2 —Z-N\F—H—H

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 1 January 2018

55 (BBRMBHREREEEY) REE 225 M ZRENTHE —E-N\F—-HA—H

HKFRS 16, Leases
BEEMBMELEAE 165 HE

HK(FRIC) 28, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

1 January 2019
—E-NF—HA—H

1 January 2019

&8 (BN ERERERE ) RBFE 235 - fTEHE T HEL —T-hF—HA—H

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BiE=ZE—t+tF+=A=+—HILFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretation is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of the new standards which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial
adoption of the standards may differ as the assessment
completed to date is based on the information currently
available to the Group, and further impacts may be
identified before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ending
30 June 2018. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until the
standards are initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement
of financial assets, calculation of impairment of financial
assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand,
HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive changes the
requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition
of financial instruments and the classification of financial
liabilities.

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are as follows: HKFRS
9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to
use the exemption from restating comparative information
and will recognise any transition adjustments against the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
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B8FEF-_FT—tE+-A=+—HIL#E
EEEMHELRAENMIEST - HER
RERENTIREE ()

AEBEAFEZEFER] - MELRER
BRERYRHERELEZZE - 25 K&
BE@AE THRAMBRRELEATE
ZHTRT AR FEMF B 2 E - FHIGR WM
T o ANAEEHARTREE  E—FF
ERNERERALRNEERERZEHE
A A AT R A% 2 Rl M SR ER (] RSB 05 &
(REFEFIEIE 2 H M TX) KT IA
ZR - BEHBRBUBRELNEIRLE
B BREEMNE SR EDEARTRK
BUFRABRENNERZERIETR
RARES RIETRAFETIERNEER
BER  HABEANSERRAKEEEE
“E- N\FRA=THIARERS BT
WER - ATRERIREMRE - EHBERIY
FRANZU B RER - NEE IR L
HEENSHRE  BRREERE -

BERMBHELEIR  £HTA

EEMBEREERNEIRERABRAERT
HestREEANRELERT B ERIE
395 - TE LA - EHRAE - BV
SEAFIRSIAD BN ESHEE - 5t
HeMEBEERERENEFTHFIRE - 5—
FH - BAYBREENEORMARLE
RIgEBE/E GRS 395 A MR LK
HEREMTARSRABED BORTE °

MR EHAERBEGRE VB RR 2B EN
T BEMBEREEANEIRE —T—N\F
—A—BRZZRBNFEREERLER -
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46 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

- The classification for debt instruments is
determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the asset. If a debt instrument is classified as
FVTOCI, then interest revenue, impairment
and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.

- For equity securities, the classification is
FVTPL regardless of the entity’s business
model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the
entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is
designated as FVTOCI then only dividend
income on that security will be recognised in
profit or loss. Gains, losses and impairments
on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.

The Group has assessed that its financial assets
currently measured at amortised cost and FVTPL
will continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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(a) FTHEER

%éiﬁﬂﬁi%i&mi AERBEEmE
EN=ZBEEZHEER : (1)IE&#E
KA E - QB BEREAFENE
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— TR A 2 W AR A 78 55 0 FEHF
EEENRERE T A HE R E
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Classification and measurement (Continued)

With respect to the Group’s financial assets
currently classified as “available-for-sale”, these are
investments in equity securities which the Group
has the option to irrevocably designate as FVTOCI
(without recycling) on transition to HKFRS 9. The
Group plans to elect this designation option for
available-for-sale investments held on 1 January
2018 and will recognise any fair value changes in
respect of these investments in other comprehensive
income as they arise. This will give rise to a change
in accounting policy as the current accounting
policy for available-for-sale equity investments is to
recognise fair value changes in other comprehensive
income until disposal or impairment, when gains or
losses are recycled to profit or loss in accordance
with the Group’s policies set out in Note 3(h). This
change in policy will have no impact on the Group’s
net assets and total comprehensive income.

The classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely
unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9
requires the fair value change of a financial liability
designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes
of that financial liability’s own credit risk to be
recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently
does not have any financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL and therefore this new requirement will
not have any impact on the Group on adoption of
HKFRS 9.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event
to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure expected credit losses as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. Based on a preliminary assessment,
the new requirement is not likely to have significant
impact on the Group.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting for
revenue from construction contracts.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group
has identified the following areas which are expected to be
affected:

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in Note 3(r). Currently, revenue arising
from construction contracts and the provision of
services is recognised over time, whereas revenue
from the sale of goods is generally recognised when
the risks and rewards of ownership have passed to
the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good
or service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3
situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as the entity performs;

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced;

(iii) When the entity’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to
date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS
15 the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that
good or service at a single point in time, being when
control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership is only one of the indicators that will
be considered in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group has assessed that the new revenue
standard is not likely to have significant impact
on how it recognises revenue from construction
contracts.

(b) Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money when a
contract contains a significant financing component,
regardless of whether the payments from customers
are received significantly in advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such a policy
when payments are significantly deferred, which is
currently not common in the Group’s arrangements
with its customers. Currently, the Group does not
apply such a policy when payments are received in
advance. The financing component would not be
significant to the contract.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 3(i), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently, depending
on the classification of the lease. The Group enters into
some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

@ KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE=F—tF+=-A=+—HILFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that lessors account for their rights and obligations
under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted,
lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases
and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise
and measure a lease liability at the present value of the
minimum future lease payments and will recognise a
corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition
of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee
can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-
term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less)
and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental
expenses would continue to be recognised on a systematic
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ=ZE—tF+=-A=1+—HILFE
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as
a lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected to
lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease. As
disclosed in Note 34(a), at 31 December 2017 the Group’s
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amount to RMB1,487 million for leasing
of land and buildings and equipment, the majority of which
is payable either between 1 and 5 years after the reporting
date or in more than 5 years. Some of these amounts
may therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS
16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform a more
detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new assets
and liabilities arising from operating lease commitments
on adoption of HKFRS 186, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for any
leases entered into or terminated between now and the
adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The standard offers different
transition options and practical expedients, including the
practical expedient to grandfather the previous assessment
of which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. If
this practical expedient is chosen, the Group will apply the
new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
are entered into on or after the date of initial application.
If the practical expedient is not chosen, the Group will
need to reassess all of its decisions about which existing
contracts are, or contain, leases, using the new definition.
Depending on whether the Group elects to adopt the
standard retrospectively or follow a modified retrospective
method of recognising a cumulative-effect adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at the date of initial
application, the Group may or may not need to restate
comparative information for any changes in accounting
resulting from the reassessment.
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INFORMATION ON EXPLORATION AND
PRODUCTION SEGMENT

In accordance with the Listing Rule 18.18, this section provides
supplemental information on oil and gas producing activities of the
Group.

Proved Oil and Gas Reserve Estimates

The following table sets forth the Company’s estimated proved
developed reserves and proved reserves as at December 2015,
2016 and 2017. The tables are formulated on the basis of reports
prepared by DeGolyer and MacNaughton and Ryder Scott
Company, independent engineering consultancy companies.

o o\ ¥

Reserve Quantities Information
HEEE
O
HEAMFER A ERRE 2 SR

Bi8 ETRAIE 181814 - AREEBAEER
FEAEEDOBITEN -

REAhSR BT

TREFARFAR-ZE—RFE  —BE—RER-FT
—tF+ZAZEHEHEREHEREARE -
ZERWE TR BB T2 E R 2 8 DeGolyer and
MacNaughton #1 Ryder Scott Company #7 %L~ R &

CRUDE OIL: J:9:: I
Proved
developed Proved
reserves reserves
(Estimation) (Estimation)
AT R 7L
& (&5 & (&5
(million barrels) (million barrels)
(BEBW) (BE®)
Reserve as at R-ZE—F
31 December 2014 TZA=tT—HZFHE 65.0 84.8
2015 Revision —E—FFEE] 21.7 16.7
2015 Production —hFE=S (17.2) (17.2)
Reserve as at RZE—AF
31 December 2015 +-A=+—HZ2fF= 69.5 84.3
2016 Revision T REEE] (1.5) (0.4)
2016 Production —E-AFEE (15.6) (15.6)
Reserve as at NZE—XE
31 December 2016 “RA=t—HZREE 52.4 68.3
2017 Revision —E—+FEF] 10.3 10.0
2017 Production —tFES (13.4) (13.4)
Reserve as at RZE—+F
31 December 2017 +TZA=+—HZRE=E 49.3 64.9
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Reserve Quantities Information

g B S50 ks
HREESH
O
NATURAL GAS KRR,
Proved
developed Proved
reserves reserves
(Estimation) (Estimation)
HREE B e e
& ({450 FHE (&350
(million cu feet) (million cu feet)
(BBYAR) (BBIAR)
Reserve as at MZE—NF
31 December 2014 +-A=+—HZ2fF= 79,952.6 127,834.5
2015 Revision —E-RFEELT 103,375.7 82,795.9
2015 Production “ET-hHFES (722.9) (722.9)
Reserve as at RZE—RF
31 December 2015 +-A=+—RHZ2fF= 182,605.4 209,907.5
2016 Revision =SNG ) 66,155.8 63,508.0
2016 Production “E-RFEE (31,291.0) (31,291.0)
Reserve as at RZE—RF
31 December 2016 +-A=+—RZF=2 217,470.2 2421245
2017 Revision —E—FEF] 18,814.9 (284.2)
2017 Production —E—+FES (32,307.8) (32,307.8)
Reserve as at RZE—+F

31 December 2017

+-B=t-AziE

203,977.3

209,532.5
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Definition:
The petroleum reserves are classified as follows:

Proved oil and gas reserves — Proved oil and gas reserves are
those quantities of oil and gas, which by analysis of geoscience
and engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty
to be economically producible — from a given date forward, from
known reservoirs, and under existing economic conditions,
operating methods, and government regulations — prior to the
time at which contracts providing the right to operate expire,
unless evidence indicates that renewal is reasonably certain,
regardless of whether deterministic or probabilistic methods are
used for the estimation. The project to extract the hydrocarbons
must have commenced or the operator must be reasonably
certain that it will commence the project within a reasonable time.
(i) The areas of the reservoir considered as proved includes:
(A) The area identified by drilling and limited by fluid
contracts, if any, and (B) Adjacent undrilled portions of the
reservoir that can, with reasonable certainty, be judged
to be continuous with it and to contain economically
producible oil or gas on the basis of available geoscience
and engineering data.

(ii) In the absence of data on fluid contracts, proved quantities
in a reservoir are limited by the lowest known hydrocarbons
(LKH) as seen in a well penetration unless geoscience,
engineering, or performance data and reliable technology
establishes a lower contact with reasonable certainty.

(iii) Where direct observation from well penetrations has
defined a highest known oil (HKO) elevation and the
potential exists for an associated gas cap, proved ail
reserves may be assigned in the structurally higher
portions of the reservoir only if geoscience, engineering,
or performance data and reliable technology establish the
higher contact with reasonable certainty.
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Reserve Quantities Information
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Reserve Quantities Information
O

(iv) Reserves which can be produced economically through
application of improved recovery techniques (including,
but not limited to, fluid injection) are included in the proved
classification when:

(A) Successful testing by a pilot project in an area of the
reservoir with properties no more favorable than in the
reservoir as a whole, the operation of an installed program
in the reservoir or an analogous reservoir, or other evidence
using reliable technology establishes the reasonable
certainty of the engineering analysis on which the project
or program was based; and (B) The project has been
approved for development by all necessary parties and
entities, including governmental entities.

(V) Existing economic conditions include prices and costs
at which economic producibility from a reservoir is to be
determined. The price shall be the average price during
the 12-month period prior to the ending date of the period
covered by the report, determined as an unweighted
arithmetic average of the first-day-of-the-month price for
each month within such period, unless prices are defined
by contractual arrangements, excluding escalations based
upon future conditions.

Developed oil and gas reserves — Developed oil and gas reserves
are reserves of any category that can be expected to be
recovered:

(i) Through existing wells with existing equipment and
operating methods or in which the cost of the required
equipment is relatively minor compared to the cost of a
new well; and

(i) Through installed extraction equipment and infrastructure

operational at the time of the reserves estimate if the
extraction is by means not involving a well.
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Undeveloped oil and gas reserves — Undeveloped oil and gas
reserves are reserves of any category that are expected to be
recovered from new wells on undrilled acreage, or from existing
wells where a relatively major expenditure is required from
recompletion.

(i) Reserves on undrilled acreage shall be limited to those
directly offsetting development spacing areas that are
reasonably certain of production when drilled, unless
evidence using reliable technology exists that establishes
reasonable certainty of economic producibility at greater
distances.

(ii) Undrilled locations can be classified as having undeveloped
reserves only if a development plan has been adopted
indicating that they are scheduled to be drilled within five
years, unless the specific circumstances, justify a longer
time.

(iii) Under no circumstances shall estimates for undeveloped
reserves be attributable to any acreage for which an
application of fluid injection or other improved recovery
technique is contemplated, unless such techniques have
been proved effective by actual projects in the same
reservoir or an analogous reservoir, or by other evidence
using reliable technology establishing reasonable certainty.
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Reserve Quantities Information
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Reserve Quantities Information

O
Results of Operations for Exploration and Production EIRELXERBEEEE
Segments
RMB’ million
ARBEER
For the year ended BE-Z—tfF
31 December 2017 +ZA=+—HIEE

Gross revenue S ON 1,505
Less: Inter-company adjustment W A RIE R -
Revenue from external customers REINBE P Z A 1,505
Segment results RIRELE 114
Share of profits less losses of: FE(R = R g 18
— Associates — Bt 490
— Joint ventures — 5EDE 216
Profit before income tax expense BRPT1S T B R AT A 820
Segment results included: RIRFEEIE
— Interest income — FEWA 6
— Depreciation, depletion — & - BREREH

and amortisation (225)
- Interest expenses — MEXE 4]
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Reserve Quantities Information

O
RMB’ million
AREBET
For the year ended BZE-_Z—XKE§
31 December 2016 +ZA=+—HLEE
Gross revenue LU 1,491
Less: Inter-company adjustment B R elfEFE -
Revenue from external customers KEINBEF Z WA 1,491
Segment results RIBSELR (489)
Share of profits less losses of: MR ARES 8 -
— Associates — Bt 338
— Joint ventures - BELE 163
Profit before income tax expense BRPTSTE R AT A 12
Segment results included: RIRFEE BRI
— Interest income — MEHA 29
— Depreciation, depletion — e - BREREH
and amortisation (565)
— Impairment loss on property, — M - BEREERESE
plant and equipment (47)
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Reserve Quantities Information
O

Costs Incurred for Property Acquisitions, Exploration and
Production:

Costs Incurred for Property Acquisitions, Exploration and
Development Activities

MEWE - BREEEEE ZRA :

YRR - BRERBEBEL 2 KA

2017 2016
—B—tF —TAF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREBHET

The Group AEH
Property acquisition costs SIEIETDFN - -
Exploration costs RS - -
Development cost FIEE AR 63 169
Total @t 63 169
Equity method investments REmERE
Share of costs of property baK(ayis /N PN
acquisition, exploration and BEPENMEWE
development of associates and BhIR R KA
joint ventures 633 500
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http://www.kunlun.com.hk
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